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My, Ast. Gen, Where was it, in Ewugland or
France?

Sir H, Hobart. Whilflt he lived in Bloomsbury,
he fays.

My, Williams, Call Dr. Needbam and Monfieur
Fuftell. [ Who appeared.] And Monfieur Fuffell was
fworn. Pray Sir H. Hobart, will you ask Mon-
fieur Fuflell who fpeaks French too, if he know
any thing of Mr. Hampden's Refolution to Travel
with Mr. Mountague into France ¢

Sir H, Hobart, He fays, Yes. Hedid tell him
he was gomng nto France, and he offered to carry
fome Books for him along with him.

Mr. Williams. What Company was he to go 1n,
and what time?

Sir H. Hobart. He fays, Sir, he can’t be exact
to the Month when Mr, Hampden {pake of gong
over, but he fays, it was a great while before
this Plot came to be difcovered.

Mr. Williams. Was it fome Months before?

Sir H. Hobart. 1t was a Month before it was
known, he fays.

Mr. Williams. In what Company was he to go?

Sir H. Hobart. Fe faid he was to go with M.
Mountague.

Mr. Conyers, Pray, Sir, Will you ask him, was
he employ’d to get any French Servants to be
with him ?

Sir H. Hobart. Yes, he fays,

L. C. F. Ay, but what was the Queftion? For
there is fuch a Crowd of People before the Coun-
fel, that the Court cannot hear Mr. Conyers’s Que-
{tion.

M. Conyers. My Lord, 1 asked him, whether
he was employed to get any French Servants to
be with Mr. Hampden.

Sir H. Hobart. Yes, he fays.

L. C. . Well there 1s Dr. Needhas, what do
you ask him ¢

Then Detor Needham was fworn,

My, Filliams.  We call Dr. Needbam for this
Purpofe, my Lerd, to prove that thefe Gentle-
men that are accufed, Mr. Hampden, and my
Lord of E£ffex, and the others, had very little E-
fteem, and mean Opinion of my Lord Howard.
And how one, they fo little efteemed, fhould be
let into fo great a Secret, will be very ftrange
to imagine.  Dr. Needbam, Pray, what can you
fay of any of thefe Gentlemens Opinions of my
Lord Howard ? What Opinion had my Lord of
Effex of him?

L. C. 7. Is my Lord of Effex now before us?
What is that to this Cafe, Mr. Willlams ¢ Let my
Lord of Effex have what Opinion he would of
him ; how does that concern the Defendant ?

Mr. Williams. 1 tell you why, I offer it, my
Lord

L. C.F. But pray, offer what 1s Evidence, and
keep to the Bufinefs before you.

M. Williams. Falfus in uno, falfus in omnibus. 1f
we can prove that what he hath faid of my Lord
of Effex 1s falfe, he is not to be believed againft
the Defendant.

My, A411.Gen. Ay, but upon the Evidence of
my Lord Howard, all the reft were convicted.
Mr. Williams. 1offer it only upon what is here

to Day before you. He fays, my Client, and

my Lord of [fex were confederate with him
apon fuch a Defign. Now if my Lord of Ef
fex was not there, then heis falfe in that, and that
he was not, we offer this as Evidencg -
L.C. ¥, But tis not a proper Evidence in this

Cale.
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M. Williams. *Tis a fort of Evidence——s

L.C. 7. Ay, 'ts afort of Evidence, but ’tis
not to be allowed. If youwill prove Mr, Hampden's
Opinion, you may, but you muft not for him
bring Proof of what my Lord of Effex, a third
Perfon, thought of my Lord Howard,

Myr. Williams. 1 only offer it thus

L.C.J. Offer what 1s Evidence, Man! You

are 2 Practifer, and know what 1s Evidence, buc

you have offered two or three things to Day,
that I know you do at the fame time know 15 noz
Evidence, and I {peak it that it may: not be
thought we deny you, or your Client any thing
that 1s according to the courfe of Law. You that
know the Law, know ’ts fo as we fay. Mr. At
torney has gratified you in waving three or four
Things already, but nothing will fatsfy, unlefs
we break the courfe of other Trials,

Mr. Williams. My Lord, What I take not to
be Evidence I do not offer, and where the Court
over-rules me, I have not infifted upon ir.

L.C. 7. No!

Mr. H illiams, No, my Lord.

L. C. 7. But you would have infifted upon i,
if Mr. Attorney would not have been fo eafy as to
confent, and the Court would have let you. Pray
keep to the Bufinefs, and the Methods of Law 3
you know the Law very well,

Mr. Willams. My Lord, I humbly apprchend
this may be Evidence, and 1 lay it before yon.
My Lord Howard has proved that my Lord of
Lffex and Five more, of which Mr. Hampden
was one, met and confulted about fuch Matters.
We may, I hope, be admitted to prove, That
my kord of Effex was not there; for if we can
take off his pofitive Proof; as to any one of the
Circumftances, we take off from the Truth of
the Fa&, 1If all the Perfons were not there;
then my Lord Hpward is miftaken in that, and
accordingly muft not be believed in the reft;
therefore, my Lord, I prefs it no otherwife : He
hath proved thefe fix Perfons were there. 1 of-
fer this as fome Evidence, That it is unlikely it
fhould be fo, becaufe my Lord of Effex had fo
little Opinion of my Lord Hsward, that he would
never confult with him about any matter.

L. G, F. Then certainly my Lord Howard is to
be believed, to all Intents and Purpofes, for here
15 2 Record of the Conviétion of my Lord Ruffi,
and of Colonel §idney, and all upon the Tefti-
mony of this Gentleman, my Lord Heward ; and
is not that more to fupport his Credit, than a
flying Reportof a third Perfon’s Opinion of him.
And yet after all we fay, ‘tis no Evidence again(t
Mr. Hampden, and has been waved by Mr. At-
torney. '

My, Williams, Then I will not prefs it, my
Lord.

Mr. Jufk. Withins. It 1s no Evidence, certainly,
Mr. Williams.

L. C. 7. It feems my Lord Effex had fuch an
Opinion of my Lord Heward's Evidence, That
he thought fit to cut his own Throat, rather than
abide the Tral.

Mr. Williams, Call Mr. Murray.

L.C. F. Suppofe my Lord of Efféx had faid,
That he was out of the Plot, and Mr. Hampden
was in, would that have been good Evidence
againft Mr. Hampden, do you think ? Pray mind
what 1s the Bufinefs before you ?

Mr, Williams. Swear Mr, Murray.

[P hich was done,

L, C. j. Well, what do you ask this Ma%
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Mr. Williams. My Lord, we call him as to what
I opened of my Lord Heward’s Opinion of the
‘World to come, and Rewards and Punithments
there.

L. C. . Mr.Williams. Pray take notice of this :
Private Difcourfes that People can’t come to
make Anfwer unto, becaufe they can’t imagine
to have them objefted, are a very odd fort of
Evidence. .

Adr. Williams, Therefore I opened it warily and
tenderly 3 my Lord, the Witnefs will tell you the
Story better than 1. |

L.C.¥. 1cannot tell what Mr. Willams has
faid, or I have faid in heat of Talk or Vanity.
God knows how often all of us have taken the
great Name of God in vain: Or have faid more
than becomes us, and talked of Things that we
fhould not do.

M. Att.Gen. My Lord, how can my Lord How-
ard be prepared to give any Anfwer to this?

Lord Howard. My Lord, this prefies hard up-
on my Reputation, my Lord. I profefs before
God I do not know this Fellow, I never faw him
in my Life before as I know : Buta Company of
impudent Fellows take the liberty of faying what

they pleale. _
L.C. % To rake into the whole courfe of a

Man’s Life is very hard.

Lord Howard., 1 would fain have thefe Fellows
dare to fay this any where elfe of me.

My, Williams, Well, my Lord, we will wave it.

L. C. 7. They do not think it a fit Thing to
prefs It. '

Lord Heward. But, my Lord, it concerns me
in my Reputation ; who is this Ralfcal they bring
here 7 God’s Life, who is he?

L.C. 7. Wemuft be tender of Mens Reputa-
tion, and not let every thing come as Evidence
when *tis not fit to be Evidence, to put Slurs and
Scandals upon Men that they can’t be prepared to
wipe off. Is he convicted of any Crime ? If he is,
vou fay fomething, fhew the Record of it.

Mr, Fuft. Withins. Mr. Billiams.  You know
the Cafe adjudged lately in this Court, a Perfon
was indicted of Forgery, we would not let them
give Evidence of any other LForgeries, but that
for which he was indited, becaule we would not
fuffer any raking into Mens Courfe of Life, to
pick up Evidence that they can’t be prepared
to anfwer to.

Nr. Williams. We have that Refpe@t for my
Lord’s Honour too, as not to prefs it, only we
had it in our Briefs, and we muft go according to
our Inftruétions.

Lord Howard, 1 defire to know who that Raf-
cal is ? What is he? Where does he live? 1 will
make him an Example.

L.C. ¥. Pray compofe your {elf, my Lord,
there is nothing of this preffed.

Lord Howard. To fay I am an Atheift, my
Lord! What can be a greater Reflettion ?

L.C. ¥. He has not told us any fuch thing as
vet, And we will take care that nothing thall be
offered but what is fitting,

Lord Howard. 1 vow to God, my Lord, I do
not know the Man.

L.C.¥ My Lord, do you think that every
thing that a Man fpeaks at the Bar for his Client,
and his Fee, is therefore to be believed, becaufe
he faid it? No, the Jury are to take nothing here
for Evidence to guide them of what the Counfel
fay, but what is approved. They are to judge

fecundum allegata & probata, that is their Duty,

Jor an High Mildemeanour.
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Lord Howard. Does that Fellow look like a
Man of that Figure, that I fhould fay any thing,
or have any Converfation with him ?

L.C. .My Lord, I don’t know what he is. Go
on, Gentlemen,

Mr. Williams. My Lord, we have done with
our Evidence, If Mr. Attorney will leave it here,
we will. | -

Mr. At Gen. My Lord, we won’t miftruft
the Evidence, nor the Court.

My, Hainpaen. My Lord, I defire to fpeak a
Word myfelf, if you pleafe.

L.C. 7. Ay, in God’s Name. You; of your
Counfel, I will hear all you will fay, and as long
as you will {peak, provided you fpeak within the
Bounds of Decency. ,

Mr. Wilsamms. My Lord, I think it beft to leave
1t to the Courr: 'We hope we have made it clear
that our Client is innocent,

L.C.7. Would to God you were innocent;
thatis the worft With I with you, but we will either
hear him or you {peak, fpeak as Jong as you will.

Mr. Wallop. My Lord, I delire to make but
one Obfervation.

L.C. ¥. Ay, in God's Name make what Ob.
fervations you will, Mr. 2allop, I hindered you
from making your Obfervations at firft, becaufe
I knew it would be defired after the Evidence
was over.

Mr. Ast. Gen. Then my Lord, Texped to be
heard too. It Mr. Hampden makes a Speech, J
will reply, or if his Counfel do it, I expect the
latt Word, for I will have neither the Party, nor
the Counfel to fpeak after I have fumm’d up the
Lvidence for the King. Mr. Hampden, and his

Counfel are all one.

M. Wallsp. 1 have but one thort Obfervation
to make,

L.C. J. Go on then, Mr. Zallsp, and fay what
you will,

Mr. Juft. Withins. Lthink *tis very fit you thould
do 1t of both Sides; *tis a Caufe of great Con-
cernment.

Mr. Williams. My Lord, we will leave it here,
I think.

L.C. ¥. Take your own Courfe, do not fay
we hinder you of faying what you will for your
Client,

Mr. Al1. Gen, Let them do what they will.

L. C. j. Pl fic ftill, make Speeches every one
of you as long as you will,

Mr. Juft. Walcot. " Tisfit they fhould fpeak what
they can for the Advantage of their Client,

Mr. Williams, My Lord, we leave it to the
Court.

L. C. ¥. Gentlemen of the Jury, the Evidence
has been fomething long, and the Counfel both
for the King, and for Mr. Hampden, againft whom
this Indictment has already been found by the
Grand Jury, having left it to the Court to fum
up all, I fhall doicaswellas ! can: And the
Queftion before you, Gentlemen, is, Whether
the Defendant be guilty of the Offence charged
in the Indi¢tment, or not Guilty, and there hav-
ing been fo long an Evidence on the one Side,
and on the other, 1t will be fit for me according to
the beft of my Remembrance to help your Me-
moties, by recolle¢ting what has been faid on both
Sides, which I fhall doas near asI can, and if
my Brethren will pleafe to fupply any thing that
fhall be omitted by me, nay, if the Counfel for
the King, or for the Prifoner, will put us in mind
of any thing thar has been fpoken, and proved.

. ¢ither
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either againft, or for the Party indicted, in God’s
Name let them have Liberty to fpeak it : For it
is fit the Queftion fhould be left before you with
all Fairnefs, and according to the beft of my Ob-
fervation and Memory, thus it {tands.

The firft thing, Gentlemen, that 1s confidera-
ble to you, is, that there is fuch an Indi¢tment,
as has been already opened unto you, that is pre-
ferred againft Mr, Hampden, that does fet forth,
that Mr. Hompden 1s a leditious Perfon, and a
Man, according to the Language of the Indict-
ment (which were Words of Courfe and Form 1n
an Inditment of this Nature) of an evil Difpo-
fition, defigning to difturb and diftraét the Go-
vernment, and that he with feveral other Perfons,
did conipire to bring in Troubles, and Perplexi-
ties upon the Government ; and in order to that,
that there were fomne Meetings between him and
{everal other Perfons, and that there was a Delign
to conciliate fome Perfons of another Nation to
ao along with them in their Defign, particularly
fome in the Kingdom of Scotland. This 15 the
Purport in the IndiGtment, to which the Defen-
dant has pleaded Not Guilty.

Gentlemen, the Evidence for the King has
been of this Sort, They did at the beginmng,
which yet I muit tell you by the way, 1s not any
thing of Evidence, but the King’s Counfel would
make fome Overtures to prefs on their Side, as
the Defendant, and thofe that are of Counfel for
Mr. Hamnpden, have made fome little Hints to
prefs on their Side, that fome Witneffes the one
and the others would have had here, were fub-
pana’d but conld not be here. It feems by the
Proof, here was a Meeting, as 1t was between
Six feveral Perfons, and they name them, the
Duke of Moumouth was one, the Lord Howard
another, the Lord Rufle! a third, the Earl of Ef-
fex a fourth, Algernon Stdueya fitth, and Mr. Hamp-
dent the fixth, Asfor my Lord of Effex he is gone
to his long Home, my Lord Ruffel and Mr. Sidney
have received Scntence, and been executed. So
there remains three furviving, and {ay they that
are for the King: We produce my Lord Heward,
and we have taken care to fummon the Duke of
Monmouth, by leaving Subpena’s where it could
be thought he was to be met with, with Promufes
of his Servants todeliver them to him in order to
have the Duke to be a Witnefs for the King this
Day. I prefume the meaning s, they would in-
fer from that, that they would give an Account
of the Fairnefs of this Proceeding, though it has
been a Matter that has obtained a fort of Belief
in the World, as though the Duke of Aonmonth
had denied that there was any fuch thing as this
Confederacy and Confpiracy : And that has given
People occafion to be of very different Opinions,
and Perfuafions about the Matter; but, fay they,
to fThew we are not afraid to have the Truth come
out, we have done as much as 1n us lay to get
this Perfon hither : Therefore we have left Sué-
pane’s at his Houfes, at his Lodging with his Ser-
vants, and they have promifed to take care they
fheuld be delivered to him, and he 1s not come.
Againtt this on the other Side, fay they, for the
Detendant, we have taken all the care we could to
bring my Lord Auglefey, who was to have been
a Witnefs for the Advantage of the Perfon in-
dicted, but my Lord Anglefey is at prefent afthét-
ed with a Fit of the Gout, and for that very Rea-
fon wecan’t have him here. And fo they fhew,
that they have been very zealous to get Witnefles
on their Side to vindicate their Reputation, but
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they did not meet with that Effe& that they de-
fired, Thefe two Things, Gentlemen, are Matters
that are ufed both againft him one way, and for
him another,

But now to come home to the Evidence upon
which this Matter is to turn, and here you arc
to conflider, that whatfoever has been faid or
offered by the King’s Counfel on the one Side, or
the Counfel for the Defendant on the other Side,
(I call him fo, for *tis but a Trefpafs tho® a greac
one) You muft not take into your Confideration
at all any further than as their Allegations are
lupported by the Teftimony that has been given -
And whatfloever the Witnefles have faid either for
or againft him, and out of that Teftimony as near
as 1 can remember I will give you the Objeétions,
and their Anfwers with the Obfervations that have
been made, or do naturally arife out of the Fa&s
in Proof.

My Lord Heward, in the firlt Place, givesan
Account of this Matter, and, Gentlemen, the Times
will be wonderful material, and therefore I beg
you would take a Pen and Ink, and mark thefe
material Circumitances as you go. For in all Mat-
ters of Fact politively proved, which alio have
their Credit fupported by Circumftances which
do accompany them, the Teftimonies given of
fuch Facts are to be valued according as thole
Circumftances keep touch with, and humour, as
I may fo fay, the Iact that they are to evidence
the Truth of,

My Lord Hpward does therefore in the firft
place acquamnt you, that about Michaclnas there
was a Dilcourfe berween him and my Lord of
Shaftsbury, and that was conceramng a Rifing in-
tended to be had, and he tells you how that my
Lord Shaftsbury was fully réfolved upon it; That
Things at length came to that pafs, that he was
forced to go from his own Houfe, as he faid, be-
mg difappointed by the Duke of Mommouth and
others who had promifed to join with him, and
was retired to the Houle of one #7a1fen in or near
Woodfireer, Bat he underfltanding where he was,
my Lord Howard went to him, (I thirk he fays
my Lord Sbaftsbury fent to him) when he came,
my Lord Sbafisbury told him, thatalthough there
had been fuch a Difappointment by thofe Perfons
he named, yet that did not take off his Edge,
but he was refolved to go on himfelf, nay, tho’
his Body was infirm, yet he would be fet on
Horfeback, tho’ he was lifted up to appear in
the Head of a Party that he had prepared, and
were ready when he would call them. And he
began then to reflect upon the Difappointment
of the Duke of Mommonth, and as tho® the Dake
of Monmoutls had only a Profpe& to advance him-
felf, and had only an eye upon his own parti-
cular Intereft. That he fo managed matters as if
he defign’d to have the fole Difpofition of all
Things whatfoever, and began to be uneafy with
the Duke of Mommsnth, My Lord Hsward did
endeavour to have prevailed with my Lord of
Shaftsbury for a Reconciliation between the Dyke
of Monmouth and him, It being a matter that re-
quired fo much Safety and Security, and did de-
fire him that he would have fome Intercourfe
with the Duoke of Mouimouth in order to conciljate
a Friendfhip between them, that they might go
hand in hand. You find he was under {ome D?f-
ficulties about this matter, he was not able to

- bring the Thing about ; for after he had {pake

with the Duke of Aommouth, and prevailed with

hum, my Lord of Shaftsbury was peevith, and
talked
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talked at a Diftance, and when he had appointed
a Meeting one Time, 1t was prevented, my Lord
Shaftsbury went away into Holland, and there died
in Holland. This is the Subftance of what my
1 ord Howard faysas to that Matter,

But, Gentlemen, this is material, and Il tell
you why I think it material ; becaufe the Countel
for the Defendant have made it an Objeftion par-
ricularly to my Lord Howard’s Teftimony, That
my Lord Howard is particular as to the Day after
Michaelmas-Day, but he isnot fo particular when he
comes to {peak of other Timesupon which the true
Queftion before you depends. For now he fpeaks
more generally as to the Meetings at the Defen-
dant’s, and my Lord Ruffel’s, that they were about

the middle of Fanuary and the Beginning of Fe-
briary, and 15 not particular as to the Day. I fpeak

of this becaufe that has been made ufe of as an
Objetion againft my Lord Howard’s Teftimony.
And I will tell you as near as I can all the Objec-
tions that have been made againi{t this Teftimony
after fuch Time as I have fettled 1t and laid before
you what the whole of it amounts to.

Then comes my Lord Howard and fays, that
meeting with the Duke of Monmouth fome time
after this they began to talk together, and they
thought that tho’ the Bufinefs bad failed in the
Managery of my Lord of Shaftsbury, yet it was
fit there fhould be a reafluming of the Bufinefs
acain, but in order to fettle matters that things
may not go inconfiderately on, it was thought
fit that they fhould refolve themfelves into a cer-
tain Number that were confident one of another,
in order to fteer and tranfat thefe matters the
better among themfelves. And they mult be Per-
fons At to be trufted and for whom there thould
be an Undertaking among them for their Faith-
fulnefs and Integrity; for all Perlonsare not fit
to be trufted, but only fuch as they agreed upon.
The Duke of Mensouth he undertook for my Lord
of Effex and my Lord Ruffel, thole were the Per-
{fons for whom he would engage, as likewife for
my Lord Salisbury. And then they began to talk
of fome more, particularly of Mr, Sidiey, but he
was 2 Cynical Man, and 2 Philofopher, and they
were firft to come to him, and to treat with him
in another manner than the reft. He was not to
appear as the Duke of Moumouth, but to take him
in his Retirement and Privacies, and then they
might be the better able to break the matter to
him. And he fays accordingly there wasa T'ime
defigned on purpofe; and at that fame Time the
Duke of Monmeuth and my Lord Heward did go
and attack Mr. Sidiey ;3 they found him on a pri-
vate Day, and dined with him; and upon that
Dinner the whole Matter was broke up, and put
into fome Method; then was the whole Defign
contrived - as-to the Perfons that were to be en-
gaged in this Matter; and he fays, they agreed
upon Six. The Duke of Monmouth undertook
for my Lord of Effex, and my Lord Ruffe/ and
Colonel Sidwney undertook: for Mr. Hampaein. He
{peaks of my Lord of Salisbury, butmy Lord of
Salisbury was never there among them, and -fo I
put him out of the Cafe, I quit him from being
of their Number, becanfe there were but Stx in
all, my Lord of Efféx, and my Lord Rdffe/, who
were undertaken for by the Duke of Monmoush;
Mr, Hampden undertaken for by Mr. Siduey, and
my Lord Howard; for by that ttme Mr, Hamp-
den was come into the Matter upon Colonel $id-
ney’s Undertaking,

Now we are got, Gentlemen, by thefe Steps

Jor an High Mifdemeanour.
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til we come about the middle of Famuary; bue,
fays my Lord Howard, 1 cannot pofitively fay, it
was this Day, or that Day of the Month ; but be-
Ing about the middle of Fannary, 1 conjelture
it was about the 14th, but he is not pofitive to the
Day. He fays, accordingly they went to Mr. Hamp-
dew’s Houfe, which was the Place firft defign’d for
them to meetin, He fays, there accordingly they
did all fix meet; and that it being Mr. Hanpden’s
Houfe, they thought it moft proper for him who
was Mafter of the Houfe, who ufually bids his
Guefts welcome, to break Silence, and to impart
the Bufinefs of the Defign they metabout. He
fays, accordingly Mr. Hampden, after the firft Com-
pliments of Entertainment, did give an Account
of the Bufinefs they were come about, and that
it was in order to have a Riling. This, he fays,
was propofed by Mr. Hampden. He tells you,
then they fell into Debate about the Time when,
concerning Men, and Arms, and Money ; and
likewife concerning the Places. He tells you the
Places wherein the Rifing was defign’d to be, were
Devonfhire, Chefbire, Somerfetfbire, and other Places,
thatis, as to the Circumftance of the Place. Then
he tells you concerning the Time; it was debated,
Whether 1t fhould be all at one Time, or at {e-
veral Times; whether they fhould only begin
here, and the Country fill in, or all at once:
That likewife they had in Confideration the Bufi-
nefs of Money, and that his Grace the Duke of
Mounmonth did fpeak of 30 or 25 Thoufand Pounds,
or fome fuch Sum at that Time. But then as was
natural for Men of Deliberation and Confidera-
tion to confult about, they took into Debate that
they might not go headlong, to endeavour to
conciliate another Party to chime in, as he fays,
along with them, in the Bulinefs they” were going
about; and accordingly 1t was thought fir and
propofed, That there fhould be an Endeavoar
to conciliate a Friendfhip with fome Perlons in
Scotland, to fall 1n with them; and then he- tells
you who the Perfons were that were named : Some-
of the Names he remembers, and others he has
forgot; he fpeaks particularly of the Campbels, Sir
Fobn Cockram, and my Lord Melvin : And he fays,
other Perlons were mentioned, but he can’t re-
member their Names ; and my Lord Ruffe/ knew
fome of thefe Perfons, and the Duke of Mon-
month knew {ome others of them, becaule of his.
near Relation to the Earl of Argyle, the Perlon
that you know was profcrib’d for Treafon 1n the:
Kingdom of Scotland. He fays, that fo far the De-
bate of this matter went, that they thought fit a
Meflenger (hould be provided, a trufty Man to be.
fent into Scotland to treat with thele Gentlemen-
about this matter ; and my Lord Ruffe/ I think
he fays, undertook to write a Letter to be car-
ried by this Meflenger to thele Scorch Gentle-
men.

He fays, purfuant to this Confultation at M.
Hampden's, a Fortnight after, or thereabouts,
which brings it up to the Beginning of February,
then was the Meeting at my Lord Ruffel’s Houle,
and there they debated thefe matters over again,
and the whole Managery of fending a Meftenger
into Scotland was left to the Difcretion of Colonel
Sidney, and he undertook that Work, that was
his Poft that he was to manage; and he doss fay,
that he does very well remember, that Aaron Smith
was the Perfon propofed then; and tho® he was-
unknown to fome of the Company, yet he was:
well known to others; and by reafon of that:

Knowledge that others had of -him; they looked-
upon




848

upon him as a Perfon very fit, and every way
qualified for it. '

So that, Gentlemen, here is proved a Conful-
tation in order to the Raifing of Men to infeil
the Government:; a Difcourfe concerning Mo-
ney and Arms for this End, and the Places where,
and the Time when 3 and of conciliating a Friend-
fhip with fome difcontented Perfons in Scotland,
to join, and chime in with thefe Confpirators in
England, |

And then there is yet another Circumiltance
very remarkable, becaufe tho’ my Lord fpake it
not at the fame Time that he delivered his Te-
ftimony ; yet upon the Queftion asked, he gives
you a plin Account of it; and it has a plain
Dependence upon what went before. Said they
among themfelves. *Tis proper for us, as near
as we can, to fhut the Door againft any Ixcep-
tions about thefe Mens coming to treat with us;3
but how fhall we gec *hem hither without Sufpi-
cion ? We muft have fome Shams, or Cant or
other, to be a Pretence for thefe People to come
into Engiznd 3 and that was agreed to be about
fome Plantation in Carsline.

This, he fays, was the Refult of that Meeting ;
and that when the Meeting was broke up, about
three or four Days afterwards (mind the Circum-
ftance of Time, Gentlemen, for ’tis very mate-
rial) Col. Sidney and he met together, thgy went
to Col. $iduey’s Houle, and there he faw him take
MMoney out of a Till, where there were leveral
Fundreds of Guineas, or Pieces of Gold; and
as he believes, he fays, he took threefcore Gu-
neas, or fome fuch Sum 3 and told_ him, it Was to
aive to Aaroir Simith 1n order to his ]our_'ne}f 1o
Scotland : That he went out with him in his Coach,
but Mr. Siduey fet him down by the way, and he
himfelf went into Londsn, telling him, he went to
that purpofe, to give Aaroir Swith the Money.
Some time after, about a Week, or a Fortnight,
or ten Days after that, he fays, he met with Mr.
Siduey again 3 «n.d he fays, Mr. Sidney gave him an
Account, that he had heard Aaron Smith had been
at Nezvcaftle, but he had not heard of him fince
that Time, and that is another Circumitance in
Pointof Time, Gentlemen; fo that you have here
2 pofitive Oath made by my Lord Heward, that
Mr. Hax:pden was privy, and confenting to all
thefe Debates, as to the Raifing of Men, and the
Levying of Money, and about the conciliating a
Friendfhip with thele Men of Scotland, and about
fending a Metlenger into Scotland to that Purpofe.
And if my Lord Howerd do {wear true, no Man
fiving can doubt but that Mr. Hampdeir 15 gulty
of this Indi@ment. The birlt Meeting was at his
Houte, and there he did take notice of what had
been formerly done, and propofed the Things,
breaking the Silence, and entering into the De-
bate ; which fhews that he had been difcourling
about it before, and had it in his Thoughts before,
or clfe he could not have propounded 1t as the ind
of their Meeting.

Now this, Gentlemen, here 1s a pofitive Faét s
and as Mr. F#illiaias 1.ys true, no Man hving can
sive any Anfwer to a poliuve Fact, but by fome
other Things that may be Circumf{tances to op-
pofe that Fact. Now he fays, thereare no Cir-
cumftances that have been proved, that will give
any Credibility to what has been depoled, befides
the poficive Oath of my Lord Howard. So that,
fays he, your Fact, tho’ it be pofitively fworn,
is not fupported by any Circumftances of the Fact,
thatmay give Credibility to it, And he objeCts,
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very materially 5 for if 1t be not fupported by
credible Circumftances, then indeed it would be
lefs material ; yet I cannot fay, it would not b
at all materialy 1t is material, and you are to
determine, whether you have fufficient Evidence
oiven you, to induce you to believe, that my
Lord Hewsrd 1s at this Time gumlty of wilful
and malicious Perjury; for it is Perjury; and
that in the higheft Degree, if it be not true that
he fays 3 and God deliver all Mankind from be-
ing guilty of any fuch Thing. I leave that to
your Confciences, Gentlemen, who are the Judges

of 1t
But, fays the King’s Counfel, Here are Cir-
cumftances that do fupport our Fact, and the Cre-
dibility of it, Ior, firlt, here is the Circumftance
of Aaron Smith, who was fent into Scotland by
Mr, Sidwey in purfuance of this Defign, and this
Circumftance my Lord Howard does fubjoin to
what he has politively affirmed againft the De-
fendant. And this Circumftance is a thing that
may be helped by other Proof; and what js this
Circumftance? Say they, that Aeron Smith was
fent into Scotlandy and in order to prove that,
they have called one Sheriffe, wno 1sa Man that
keepsan Inn at the Poft-houfe in Newcaftle, from
whence Col. Siduey told my Lord Howard he had
notice of his Arrival at Neweaftle, .but had heard
no more of him after that. And this Sheriffe fwears
direCtly, Ifaw that Man they call daion Swmith,
when he was fhewn to me before the King and the
Council ; and Mr. Atserbury fwears hethew’d Aa-
aron Smith to him, and then Sheriffe fwears, that
Man you fhew’d to me was the Man I faw at my
Houle at Neweaftle, that chimes 1n with the Cir-
cumftance of Fact that Mr, Siduey heard from him
at Neweaffle.  And then thereis the Circumitance
of Time when he faw lum there; fays he, I faw
him the Friday before Shrove-Tuefday, which they
in the North call £gfier’s Even.  He came to my
Houfe on Thurfday Night, and went away the next
Day, Friday; and he went with his Guide, the
other Man, Northward, in order to his Journey
into Scotland, as he himfelf fard,  Says he, I re-
member the Time very particularly, 1t was the
Friday before Shrove-Tuefday laft, this February
was Twelve-month ; and he went yet further, fays
he, I did not only fee him when he went away,
but when he came back again, for he left his Man
at my Houle all the Time, and he tells you what
his Name was; for he fays, Swrth went under the
difguifed Name of one Clerz, and he did then
talk of going to the Weftern Parts of Scot/aid,
he named Douglas as he thinks, tho® he is not po-
fitive 1n that, but he is in the Perfon, that was
the Man, And, fays he, I fent for this i“erfon,
the other Fellow Be/, and he was the Guide he
had along with him. And upon Be/’s Exami-
nation, What fays he ? Says he, I remember that
Mana came thither at that Time to the other Man’s
Houfe; I take irupon my Qath that is the Man,
and he went by the Name of Clerk, he hired me
to be his Guide ; | went out with him on Friday
Morning, and 1 wentalong with him all thut Day 5
but upon Sa/urday, which was the next Day, go-
ing Northward with him, my Horfe tired, and
falled me: Thereupon I was forced to be left be-
hind, but I overtook him on Sunday Night follow-
ing; I overtook him at fuch a Place, and faw him
within {ix Miles of the Borders of Scotland, 1 take
1t upon my Qath, this is the Man that was there
under the Name of Clhrk; and at his returning,
back again] took notice of him, I wentup to him,
' | I drank




1683. BR.  for an High Mi{demeanour.

I drank with him, and we had Difcourfe of our
Journey. He told meat arlt, he was to go to the
Welt of Scotland, and fo he went Northward. Af-
ter that, which was about ten or twelve Days, he
came back again, and fo went Southward towards
Zondon. This he doth fear directly to beat that
Time.

Now, Gentlemen, the Time 1is wonderful ma-
terial in that Cafe, becaufe that very Time twelve-
month that they tatk of, is the Beginning of Fes-
ruary. If you look upon your old dlmaiack of the
faft Year (I happen’d to have one in my Pocket,
and look’d upon it, when the Men gave their Te-
{timony) and there you will find, that the Monday
before Shrove-Tucfday, when he fays, he left him
within fix Miles of the Borders of Scotlaind, falls
out to be the 1gth of February; 1 will look upon
it again, lelt I thonld miftake; ’us juft fo, and
that humours the Time that my Lord Howard
fpeaks of, which was about the Middle of Febru-
arys afew Days after that, he fays the Money was
given by Mr, Sidreys and then for the Time for
Aaren Swith to get to Neweaftle, there s a fit
Space of Time, tor it falls out that the Thurfday
that he arrived at Neweaftle, is the 15th Day of
February, and fo it falls in well with my Lord
Howard’s Telimony, and fo the Mouday that he
parted with him at the Borders of Scotland was the
19th, which alfo juft humours the Time that he
fpeaks of.  So that here 1sa Circumftance of Faét
to confirm his Teftimony, both as to the fending
the Meflenger, and the Circumf{tance of Time,
That he is the fame Man 1s proved by thefe two
Wiinefles, who agree in this, that he was there
about fuch a Time; and it does likewife humour
that other Circumftance of Place, that Mr, Sid-
sey faid he had heard from him from Newcaffle,
but not fince; and then there is the other Circum-
ftance which backs and confirms all, There was
not only a fending for thefe Perfons, but there is
Notice taken that thefe Camplels, who were to be
afliting in this Matter, were to come about the
Sham, and under the Difguile of purchafing Plan-
tations in Carolina.  About the Beginning of Fune
they came to Town, the two Campbels, Sir Fobu
Cockrawm, and Mr. Meuroe.  Sir Audresv Foffer he
tells you he met with fome of the Men, and they
told him, they came about the Bufinefs of Carofi-
#a 3 and 10 the Cant of Carofing is made good in this
Circumftance that way; but when the Plot brake
out, thefe Men fculk, one flies one way, another
another; fome were taken as they were efcaping
away by Water; others of them were taken upon
the Bed at Noon-day in Moorfields: Had the Bu-
fineis they came over into Eugland about been a
fair, and a lawful, and honeft Bufinefs, why fhould
they hide themfelves? Why fhould any Man fneak
and {cullz, and be alhamed to own an honeft and
lawful Bufinefs?  But this does humour and touch
the Thing exactly, as to that Circumftance, that
Carelina was only a Cant for to difguife their com-
ing over, Thele are the only two Circumfitances
that feem to be pretty ftrong tor them, to prove
and fupport the Credibility of what their Witnefs
has {worn.

For, Gentlemen, what a wonderful {ort of Ex-
pectation would it be.  That we fhall never con-
vict a Man of Fligh-Trealon, unlefs you can bring
a Man to be a Witnefs that 1s not concern’d?  For
then all thefe Perfons muft have been acquitted,
for they intrufted none, it feems, but thele Six;
they took care they would keep it amongft them-
felves, Do yau think they called their Servants
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to be Witneffes of what they were about?. That .

is a vain and idle Imagination. In the Popifh Plt,

what Witnefles of it had you there? Were they

Strangers to the Plot 2 No, you cannot expett any

g’VitncﬁEs but fuch as the Nature of the Cafe will
ear,

This 15 the Meaning of the Evidence that has
been given for the King, and it carries a great
Weightinit, But they have made an Objeétion,
which indeed is not remote, but may coacern the
Queftion very much, Say they, if we prove my
Lord of Zffex was not there, or {uch a one was not
there, would it not difcredit the Evidence of my
Lord Howard? Yes, certainly, it would wholly
difcredic 1t, and he were not to be believed at all;
nay, which is yet nearer to the Queftion, if Mr.
Hampden, that had notice all along of the Times
fixed wherein this Tranfattion was, to wit, about
the Middle of Faunary, and Beginning of Febru-
ary. For becaufe they talk of the Prints, Mr, Hamp-
derr had from them fufficient Notice and Intima-
tion of the Time. If Mr. Hampden, that hath had
all this Notice, could have proved before you, that
he was 1n France, or any other Place at that Time,
that had been wonderful material. But all the Cir-
cumitances that are any way fignificant to {upport
the Credit of this Matter are very well proved ;
and fo the Teftimony of my Lord Hewerd ic, by
thefe concurrent Circamftances of Fa&t, fufficient-
ly fupported.

Now, Gentlemen, I muft tell you, This being
the Subftance of the Evidence for the King; 1 will
now, as near as I can, give youan Account of the
Evidence for the Defendant; it was opened by
Mr. Williams very ingentoufly for the Advantage
of his Client, as every Man is bound to fay what
he can for his Cliens.  He made a great many Ob-

jetions againft my Lord Heward; fo if he could

but fhake the Teftinony of my Lord Hiward,
then he might ealily bring off his Clent; and if
you, upon any thing that has been offered, either
in Evidence, or by way of Obfervation fairly made
from the Evidence, do believe my Lord Howard
has forfworn himfelf, you muft find Mr. Hampden,
the Defendant, Not Guilty; butif you believe he
has not forfworn himfelf, you muft find him Guil-
ty. Soall our Matter is reduced 1nto a very narrow
Compafs; and therefore I muft repeat it again
what I faid at the Beginning, if my Memory do not
{ferve me to recollet all right, the Counfel for the
Defendant fhall have free Liberty to inform the
Court of what has been omitted.

Firlt, fays Mr. Williams, My Lord Howard was
a Man very deep in a Confpiracy with my Lord
Shaftsbury, by his own Acknowledgment, endea-
vouring to conciliate a Friendthip between the
Duke of Monmonth and my Lord Shafisbury ; and
fo he had a great Hand in the Plot; and what he
might do on purpofe to get himfelf out of danger
from that Plet, and procure his Pardon, 1s not
known.

Itis a very ftrange Thing, that it (hould be an
Objection before he had his Pardon, that he did it
for Fear, and to get his Pardon; and when he
has it, now the Objettion is, becaufe he has his
Pardon ; and he got ity fay they, by this Means.
It feems, whether he had his Pardon or no, it
muft be an Obje@ion againft him: Before he had
it, he was under the Fear of not obtaining it *till
the Drudgery of Swearing was overs; but now he
has his Pardon, What now ? Why he does it on
purpofe to accufe other People. Why, he fays
no more now than what he has faid before he

5 Q_ was
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was pardoned ; and 1f after he is pardoned, when

he is under no Dread or Fear becaufe of his Guilt,
he fays the fame Things that he did 'when he
might be in Fear, How can that be an Objection
to him? He cannot be thought he does it to fave
his own Life, for that 1s as fafe now by his Par-
don, as it can any way be; and ’u1s, and muit be
a great Satisfaction to his Mind, and wili be fo to
any other reafonable Man’s Mind: And isa plain
Anfwer to the Objection of his Fear, (for *us a
captious Age we live in, that will make {fome
{pecious Objetion or other, tho’ it be not of any
areat Weight,) But how can 1t be thought a Man
would come and fivear too much, or too far, for
fear he fhould not fave himfelf'; or, as they call
it, fwear himfelf into a Pardon, when he has his
Pardon? It might be an Objeétion before; but
as long as he is under no fuch Terrors now, but
ftands right, both by the Laws of God and Man
to be heard as a Witnefs, I think it would be hard
for any one to come, and fay, This Man would
forfwear himfelf.  'What thould provoke him to
come and forfwear himfelf, when he 1s under no
Danger as to his own Parucular?  There might
be an Umbrage, I fay, of an Objection before he
had bis Pardon, tho’ 1t was, indeed, no Objec-
tion before; not a rational weighty one, to {et
afide his Teftimony. But no body knows which
way in the World to fatisiy the Minds of jome fort
of People.

In the next Place, Gentlemen, fays Mr. 777l
liains, You are not politive as to the Time; you
fay, 1t was about the Middle of Fanuary, or the
Beginning of Feliuary, and that is too general and
wide; but you remember particularly to a Day the
Bufinefs between you and my Lord of Séaftsbuiy,
That that was the Day after Michaelmas-Day :
How can you be fo particular as to the one, and
not as particular as to the other ?

Why, I will undertake chat Mr., ?7illiams, when
he made the Objeétion, muft needs think of the
Anfwer that woula be given to it. It is notori-
oufly known, that the Preflures thefe Gentlemen
thought they lay under, were what my Lord of
Shaftsbury fnd, New they bave got the Furies in-
to their cwin Powocr, and no Man is fofes they will
find me o airy Maip Guilly, as they pleafes Why,
how came they to get Juries into their own Hands,
but by having the Shenfls as they would have
them? Now the Sheritfis that are to return Juries
are, as all Men know that know any thing, fworn
the Day before Michaelnas-Day, theretore he
might very well, and had good reafon to remem-
ber that Day ; when fuch a notorions Thing hap-
pens to fall out at fuch a notorious Time, ’tis eaficr
tor 2 Man to remember that Time, than to fpeak
to the particular Time of an Aétion, done about
the Middle of a Month, where there is not fuch
a notorious Circumftance, 'Why, I can tell you
very well where I was upon the Day before M-
chaelmas-Day; upon that Day, and the Day af-
tery for that very Reafon, becaufe it was a noto-
rious Day-about the Swearing of Sheriffs in Loxn-
don. Burtif you ask me, where I was the Middle
of Fanzary, or the Middle of February, I cannot
fo well remember that,  But there 15 Credit to be
aiven to a Man that {peaks to a notorious Circum-
{tance, and thereby proves the Probability of what
he fays, though he fhould not be fo particular ina
Thing that admits not of {fuch a notorious Circum-
ftance.

Gentlemen, I make the Objections as they are
ftated on the one Side, and on the other Side;
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and the Anfwers that naturally flow to prove the
Matters before you one way or other; and you are
to judge, you are to weigh them; and which has
the greater Credit with you, you are to take no-
tice of.

He does fay, in the next Place, Here was a
Difcourfe of Arms and armed Men, and a great
Sum of Money fpoken of, but there breaks out
nothing of this Matter *ull 7uly following; but
this Debate was in fannary and Felrnary before.
For that Matter, the Anfwer that is given, and
it feems to be a plain one, 15, ‘That they were to
conciliate a Correfpondence with People that were
Abroad, and that they could not go on *ull they
had effeCted that, and ’till thefe People came to
jomn with them, which could not be without fome
Time, And you hear the Cockrawms and the Camp-
bels came not to the Town, *ull Fue or Fulys fo
that it was not probable it thould break out *uill
then, becaufe ir was to be agitated upon their
coming here, Aud fo that Objection is anfwered,
they did not apprehend any fuch Necefiity for
prefent engaging in it.  Ior my Lord Heweid,
becaufe he thought 1t would be a Work of Time
to fettle the Correfpondence, and get thele People
to Town, went down to his Country-Houle 1 £/~
féx, and from thence to the Bath, for he did ap-
prehend fome confiderable Time muft be {pent ere
thefe People could come; and therefore he thoughe
1t convenient to take his Retirement in the mean
tume.

Ay, but’tis {trange, fays Mr. 7¥illiams, and he
makes that another Objection; he would have my
Lord Heward to draw 1n this Accufation of
Mr. Haipden, to precure his Pardon, by going
further than the other Dilcoverers had gone. It
feems, fay they, Mr. Haimpden was not thought of
at firft; but becaufe Z7e# and Keeling had difce-
vered a Plot, my Lord Msward 1o {ecure himiclf,
muft go a Step further than they, and (as the De-
fendant’s Counfel would have 1t) than the Truth;
and that 1s the Strefs of the ObjeCtion. Bat the
Weight of the Proof 1s quite difierent; for all
Men know, in the Plot there were feveral Parts.
There was the Bufinefs of Keeling and Weft, and that
was the Affaflination of the King and the Duke ;
but the Duke of Moiinouth, my Lord Howard,
and thofe other Gentlemen, were for the Bufinels
of the Rifing, tho’ that might be in order to that
other Purpole; but they kept not Company with
thofe that were engaged 1n that Part of the Defign.
They were the Underlings, the Scoundrel Plot-
ters, that were concerned in the Aflaflination. But
thefe Gentlemen Jooked upon themfelves to be
Privy-Counfellors, not to be the Executioners ;
they were to be only Advifers, what was to be done
after the other Bufinels was over; and their Con-
fultations were for raifing of Men for an Infur-
re€tion, not the Bufinefs of the Affaflination of
the King, that was not their Province. Can it
be an Objection againft my Lord Howard, becaufe
he gives a Teltimony #¢ff and Keeliug could not
oive? Could they go further than the killing of
the King, which was their Bufinefs: If any Man
fhould have asked my Lord Hsward about that
Matter, he would have made Anfwer, it was not
for that Purpofe that we met together at Mr. Heusp-
den’s, and my Lord Reflel’s; no, that was upona
particular Bufinels, and to a particular End and
Purpole.

Then he fays too, that though my Lord How-
ard comes here upon his Ouzth, and declares thefe
feveral Matters that he hath depofed ; yet he has
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given a different Account of things elfewhere,
and he has called feveral Witneffes to that purpofe.
To whom my Lord Howard feveral times upon
his Honour, upon his Word, with Eyes lifted up,
and Hands elevated to Heaven, and many extra-
ordinary Proteftations, declared, that he knew
nothing of the Plot; and fay they, i.F 1 Man will
at one time pawn his Flonour, and his Repatation
for the Truth of a Thing, and after that, will
come again to fwear againft all that Mater, that
is an -Argument that does fink the Creditand Re-
putation of that Witnels 3 and tht-:rcupan they
call you feveral Witneffes, fome whereot are Per-
fons of great Honour and Quality. I think they
begin firft with Dweas, fo:rvnnt to Colonel Sidney,
and he tells you, after his Mafter was taken, my
Lord Heward came thither, and defired he might
lie there 3 and defired the Ule of fome Plate and
Goods of Colonel Siduey’s 5 and then asked, what
was become of his Mafter? And when Dizcas told
him what he heard of the Plot, that fomething
was talked of, about the Aflaflination of the King
and the Duke, my Lord Howard hfted up his
Eyes, and his Hands to Heaven, and declared
he knew nothing of ir, but he believed Colonel
Sidzcy was a very honeft Man, and knew nothing
at all of any fuch Matter ; and as for himfelf, ra-
ther than he would be taken or confined again,
he would do any thing, This was the Evidence
they gave as to him, Then they come with Mr.
Howard their fecond Witnels 3 tor I would take
them in order as they were produced, and he
oives you an Account, that he met ws_th my l.ord
Howard, and my Lord Howard told him, he knew
nothing at all of any Plot, and did believe that
Colonel Sidiey was innocent, and he did believe
likewife that my Lord Raffe/ was mnocent, and
for his Part he knew nothing of any fuch thing
as a Plot; but he fays, when he began to talk to
him, why did he make fuch a Bultle, and go fo
often into the City and concern himlelt abour the
making of Sheriis? He nniwercd_; I.do nothing
but what is in a leeal way, and he juftibed all chac
was done to be only in a legal way.

When once People come to believe, that the
railing of Tumults, and making Seditions, Strs
and Noifes, is a legal way to obtamn their Ends,
as we know it 1s the Tenet and Principle of great
many People, what will they not do under that
Pretence, that all they do is according to Law?
They think it is lawful by the Religion they pro-
fefs, to refift and oppole the Government, and
the O/d Canfe isa good Canfe to this Day 1n fome
Mens Opinion, and they can die in 1t, and thank
God for being concerned init, And there are
fome People that fay, the raifing of Arms by
the King’s Authority againft his Perfon is lawful
by the Religion they profefs, and they cail them-
felves Proteflents (how jultly you may nnagine)
and if Men will make Infurrections to difficult the
Government, it is Rebellion, and no Man can juf-
tify it, let him pretend Corfcience, or what he
will, *us rank Treafon, it is not fa:ing 1 am thus
perfuaded in my Confcience, that will excufe the

Man ; if I fteer my felf by the Dictates of a good

and regular Confcience, it can never be thought
that I fhall commit Treafon, but it is the effelt of
evil Principles.

Was 1t not under the Shape of Relrigion, that
that bleffed Martyr King Charles 1. of ever blef-
{fed Memory came to the Block ? Nay, and I have
heard of fome Men in the late Times that were
engaged on that Side, who finding that the King
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did prevail at the beginning of the War, becaufe
he had Gentlemen of Quality and Spirit to appear
for him, were at a lofs to know which way n
the World they fhould put a Spiric in the com-
mon People to oppofe the King; and fome a-
mong them bid them be fure to put Religion to
be but the Pretence, and that would make them
run headlong to what they would have them.
Whofe Opinion that was, is not {irange to any that
know any thing of the Hiftory of thofe Times.
So that when once People take it to be the Prin-
ciple of their Religion to oppofe and refift all that
are not of their Perfuafion, and for Religion fake
to refilt Authority, then they think all is lawful
they can do to preferve their Religion as long as
they are wound up to that Opinion.

The next Witnefs, Gentlemen, is my Lord
of Clere, and he gives you an Account of his
Difcourfe with my Lord Heward. And by the
way { muft obferve, what I am very forry for with
all my Heart, to hear, that among Gentlemen
of Quality and Honour, Difcourfes of the Go-
vernment, and the Male-Admintftration of it, as
they think, fhould be only Matter of Jeft fit
for their Recreation, and Laughter, only merry
Table-talk, as though Government, fo facred a
Thing, were as mean as any trivial Concern what-
foever. Tam forry to hear and fee, that Perfons
of great Honour and Quality fhould efteem it fo,
And I muft be pardoned 1f I take notice of it:
For Matters of Government, and yielding Obe-
dience to Superiors, 1s a Matter of Religion, °tis
a ferious Matter, and every Man ought to make
Confcience of it; to talk of Government with
Reverence, as well as pay Duty and Obedience
toit. And when I find 1t madea Jeft; I muft be
permitted to fay that 15 not fo well done, and
whoever it is that makes it fo, ought very much to
be blamed.

My Lord of Clare comes and teftifies, that my
Lord Howard told him, he did not believe my
Lord Ruffel was guilty of what he was accufed
of, much lefs did he believe it of Colonel Siduey,
and when he began to talk about Writings found
in Siduey’s Clofet, he faid, there can be nothing
of his Writings found, that can do him or any
Man elfeany hurt.  This is the Subftance of what
that Noble t.ord has faid.

Then there is my Lord Pages, and he likewife
gives you an Account, that he had fome Difcourfe
with my Lord Howard about the Plot; and he
told him too, that he did not believe any thing
of this Plot, or that my Lord Ruffe/ and others
accufed had any Hand in it. But I would obferve
this one thing upon my Lord Pages’s Teftimony,
that ftill my Lord Howard was wilhed Joy by e-
very body, and I am glad to fee your Heels at
liberty, and the like. So that there was fome
Jealoufy of his being concerned 3 fome thing or
other there wasin it, Says my Lord Howard, I
look upon my felf as affronted, that any body fhould
talk fo of me, He was concerned that they fhould
fufpect him, But fomething there was at the bot
tom., Says my Lord Paget, I am glad to hear
you are out of it. For he began to imagine there
muft be fome Fire for all this Smoke. That,
Gentlemen, was the Difcourfe he had with him,
But he fays, that with my Lord Paget there
were Difcourfes of his going beyond Sea, but he
did not go.

Then comes Dr. Buriet, and he tells you, that
there were Proteftations made to him, and he
has got the fame Words as the Frenchman had,

5 Q2 thag
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that he did it with lifted up Eyes and Hands, he
profefied folerhnly he was altogether a_Stranger
to any fuch Thing. The Doltor fays, he had heard
there was a Plot, and was perfiaded of the Truth
of it, buthe was a little thaken by what my Lord
Hoezard faid to him,  But now he is fufficiently
fatisfied there is a Plot, and I am glad he is; for
I think it fearce does remain a Doubt, with any
Men that have any Value for the Religion and Go-
vernment we liveunder. And I know not how
they could be better fatished, than by the Evidence
that has been given of it, a main Part of which
was given by my Lord Hewaerd,  All this before
my Lord Howard was taken,

Then comes in one Mr. Gishorne, and he tells
you the fame Story, that a great while ago my
Lord Howard told him he knew nothing of the
Plot. |

"The next to him is Mr. Bleke, and he tells you,
that after Tuch 2 time as the Plot was difcovered,
and after my Lord Ruffe/ was tiied, and afurmy
Lord Howard had given Evidence at the O/d-Bazly,
he thewed him the Warrant for his Pardon, and
Blate telling him that was not fufficient without
an actual Pardon ; he replied, Ithink in my Con-
icience I fhall not have a Pardon till the Drudgery
of Swearing is over. But is that any Argu-
ment? Hereis a Man under the Drudgery of
Swearing; therefore he did not know any fuch
thing as he fwears. It carries thus much along
with it, that it was unealy to him, and there Is a
kind of 2 force put upon him to fwear as they fay,
in order to his Pardon.

But now, Gentlemen, that will admit of ths
Anfwer, and a plain one certalnly 1t 15, When
a Man comes over and over again to tell the
World fuch a Story, and give fuch an Account
of himfelf, it muft a little grate upon him, though
it be his Duty to rtell the Truth, and though, as
Mr. Williams fays, he is the beft Martyr that 1s
a Martyr for Trath; even fo fay I on the other
Side, he is the beft Penitent that is a Pemtent
for Truth, and he is the beft Witnefs that 15 a
Witnefs for Truth’s .ake, and he gives the belt
Teftimony of his Repentance, that by his Tefti-
mony declares the Truth, though it be harfh and
uneafy to him; for if I have any Ingenuity, and
have lived in good Credit in the World, 1t muft
e a drudgery and irkfome thing to call myfelfa
Traitor fo often in a Court of Juftice. It 1s rrue
he might have given it a more moderate Term,
and yet withal upon thefe Circu mtances, he might
have reafon to call 1t in fome fenfe a Drudgery.
But now, Gentlemen, as he did fwear it, before
he had his Pardon from time to time upon all
Occafions when he was called as 2 Watnels : So
now the Pardon is come, which they would have
to be the Reafon of the continuance of his Prudge-
ry, he fwears the fame thing. He has s Par-
don under the King’s Seal, and tho’ it might be
thought they would keep him withn the compafs
of his Tether tifl he had done his Evidence 5 now
he has got that he defired, he fwears the fame
Thing. And now his Pardon does not at all in-
fluence his Teftimony, he is not under any fear,
but 1s as free as any Subjedt the King has, and
now he is upon his Outh, he gives you the Ac-
count you have had, and he did fay all the fame
Things, before fucn time as Colone] Siduey, and
my Lord Rufle/ were tried, that he {1ys now.

Then, Gentlemen, you have in the next Plice
Witnefles called, feveral of them to give you a
Account of the Converfation and Duipolition of
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Mr, Hamnpden 5 for fays My, Williams, for a Man
to be guilty of a Crime of this nature, there
muft be fome kind of evil Difpofition to it, and
{fo Mr. #illiams would argue and make this Infe-
rence, You fee he is nota Man of a turbulent,
feditious and fractious Spirit and Temper, he is
a ftudious Perfon, very retired, that has been be-
yond Sea much, and came not Home till fuch a
Time. And if there were Interlocutions between
my Lord Heward and my Lord Shaftsbury it was
before he came into Eugland, and fo he was not
concerned in them. He fays, That Maerch laft
he was to go agatn, hehad a mind toreturn again
to France tor his- Health 5 and what reafon have
we to imagine he (hould concern himfelf in the
Plot, when he was fo ftudious a Man, lived fo
retired a Life, and intended to go Abroad fo fud-
denly ? And for this you have my Lord Pager,
Mr. Pelbain, Sir Henry Hobart, Dr. Lupze, Mon-
ficur Fuftel, and one Murray,

Mr. Williasss. Murray, my Lord, we did not
exanine.

L.C. 7. *Tis true, 1 beg your Pardon. Well
then, thefe others tell you, they have been Per-
fons very Inumately converfant with him, they
never knew he concerned himfelf with any thing
about Government, but was of a quier, praceable
Demeanour, and was fo far from thar which the
Indi¢tment talks of Turbulency and Sedition, that
they never had any Difcourfe with him about a-
ny fuch Thing at all, fave what Dr. Lupee fays,
who it feems hived with him about two Years,
and kept him Company in his Studies, and that
once having fome difcourfe about the Popifh Plot,
He faid he would venture his Life, and any thing
he had to preferve the King and Government 2-
gainft this Plot ; he did very well, and if he had
iince declared, he would have ventured his Life
to have fecured the King and Government againft
this Plot, I thould have been glad to find him
of that Mind, I pray God you may find him to
be fo. DBut from the Evidence, even of .that
Firenchiman, 1t feems there was fome Jealoufy in
the World, and that he lay under hard Cenfures
as well as other People. For fpeaking of the
Plot, the Advice given him was this, My Lord
Grey 1s gone, and the Duke of Moinoutt 1s gone,
why won’t you go? Why fhould that Advice be
given, 1f there were no Sufpicion of his being
concerned ¢ That he faid, [ will mot go, ard io
they would make his ftaying here to bean Inftance
and ['roof of his Innocence; Why, Gendemen,
if that fhould be fo, then there was the fame Inno-
cency mn my Lord Rauffe/, and Colonel Sidiey,
and all of them : For all the Council of Six, every
onc of them, f{tay’d, except the Duke of Adox-
month, and he indeed did abfcond. And the fame
Evidence that made the Duke of AMoumonih fly,
and my Lord Lffex cut his own Throat, convilted
my Lord Reffe/ and Colonel Sidrey, and is now
brought aguinit the Defendanr, and has from time
to time been given againft the reft. We know
no reafon that they had to ftay more than /i%?
or Rumfey had to ftay and be taken, and yet that
1s not ufed by them as an Argument of their In-
NOCenCy.

Thefe are the Evidences that have been civen

.

on the Defendant’s Part; and I tell you as 1 go
along what Anfwers are given to it on the Part
of the King. As ro what is fpoken of his Inten-
tion to go agun mio France, it he defigned to
g0, why did he not go betore ail this Mifchicf
broke out ¢ Fle came here at Afichaedwias, and |

may
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may fay he came, it may Hq at an unhlcky time
when the City and its Neighbonrhood was in a
Diftemper, and fome Men were blown with Fears
and Jealoufies, Thefe might animate him, and
infpirit him as they did other People, and put
them into a Ferment; but you find him attend-
ing in Town conftantly here *nll the Matter was
difcovered; swhatfoever his Intentions were, ’tis
much he did not put them mto Action, ’ts
{trange he did not go all this while, it had becn
much for his Advantage that he had never came
out of France, or that he had returned thither much
focner.

Againft all this that has been urged for the De-
fendant about my Lord Hewerd, T will tell you
what is the Anfwer to it ; and truly firlt I fay, I
am apt to believe my Lord Howard did tell thefe
Gentlemen what they here tefufy 5 but wasit ever
thought, that any Man that was guilty of High
Treafon would prefently proclaim his own Guile?
Is it reafonable to imagine, my Lord Aoward
would tell Dr, Burnet 1 am 1n a Plot, and Colonel
Sidwey is in a Plot, and Mr, Hampdei is in o Plot,
and make it his common Talk ? Nay, it is fo far
from being an Argument of his Innocency, that
more naturally it may be turned upon them as an
Argument of his Guilt. Forif a Man had not
been concerned in the Bufinefs at all, - but were
an honeft Man, and free from Sufpicion, what
necd I talk or concern myfelf to proclaim my
own Innocency, not being accufed? Why muft
tell Colonel S§idney’s Footinan, this Man, the
other Man, that I know nothing of the Plot, and
nc.cher I nor any other Man I am fure 1s concerned
in 1t¢ But that fhews there was a Dread and Ap-
prehenfion upon him of fomething that he was
confcions of, and that lying within muft have
fome Vent, and this Over-caution is an Intimation
that there was fomething more than ordinary in
the Matter,  We take notice of 1t as a great
Evidence aganlt a Man that 1s accofed for an
Highway-man, if he comes to fuch an Ale-houfe
or Inn, and bids the People take notice T am
here at fuch a Time of the Day, and that 15 2 Cir-
cumftance of Time that will {erve to anfwer a
Proof, 1t may be, that may be brought againft
him of a Robbery done at fuch a Time; but we
always look upon that Induftry of theirs, as a
Piece of Artifice defigned to patch up a Tefti-
mony to evade a Proof. So that the Argument
wil] turn the other way; and *tis more for the Ad-
vantage of thefe worthy Gentiemen, that it fhould
be turned the other way, for otherwile they would
be thought to be Perfons 1l affected to the Go-
vernment; that 1s, Dr. Buruet, my Lord Paget,
my Lord Clare, and thereft,  And if they havea
Mind to be thought otherwife, they muit let the
Argament run that way as I fay, and in Charity
we ought to believe the beft of all Mankind, *ll
we find otherwife by them.  We fay then in Cha-
rity, we fuppofe he thought it not fit to intruft
you with his Confeflions; for you are all loyal Men,
I know ’us the beft Anfwer that can be given,
and that which they ought to value themfelves up-
on for their own Credit and Repuration, and not
to make itan Argument againft my Lord Hewerd,
or again{l the Credibility of his Teltimony in the
Matter,

I don’t know, truly, Gentlemen, that I have
omitted any one Thing that 15 material, on the
one Side or on the other, of which there hath been
any Proof, but I muft only repeat to you this,
Here 15 a Matter of great Concern and Confe-

853
quence, a Matter wherein the Peace of the Go-
vernment and the Kingdom 1s concerned in a ve-
ry bigh degree; a Matter, thatif there were ano-
ther Witnels as pofitive againft the Defendant as
my Lord Heward; would amount to no lefs than
High-Treafon. .But as there is but one Witnefs,
backed with thefe Circumlitances to corroborate
his ‘T'eftimony, *tis but only a Trefpafs; but I tell
yon it treads very nigh upon High-Treafon, and
the Tendency of 1t was to bring us all into Con-
fufton ; and what would be the' Confequence of
that, but to lay us open to the fame Mifchiefs
that we were under in the Times-of the late Re-
bellion¢ ¥or tho® Men preténd never {o fair, and

veil itunder the Names of “the Security of the Go-

vernment and- the Proteffant Religion 3 yet they
would have done well to have tarried *cill they had
a legal Authority to call them to confult of thefe
hich Matters that they pretend to fecure; that had
been well. What had thefe Gentlemen to do to
take upon themfelves this Power without Autho-
rity 7

Gentlemen, you have heard the Evidence, and
you fee what it is, And I muft fay, the late
Evidences you have had concerning another Bu-
(inefs of this Nature, I wifh that might be faid
to preferve and fupport the Credit of fome Per-
fons upon whole T eftimonies Lives have been
taken away, as has been faid, and s evident for
the Advantage of my Lord Howard. ] do not find
that he has been guilty of Perjury, as being con-
cerned in taking Oaths one way, and then giving
Evidence another, I mean, firlc taking Qaths of
Secrecy and then revealing; not but that not-
withftanding! all this, they fnay be believed, and
God forbid but they fhould be believed according
to Truth. ButIfay, if Objections of this Nature
are to prevai, we muft never expect any great
Crime to be punifhed, becaufe we mull ftay *ull
Perfons that are Strangers to the Guilt of the Faét
come to give Evidence of it, which is impofiible
to be done, *

Therefore, Gentlemen, I muft refolve 1t all into
one Head ; You have the Cafe of a Gentleman of
Quality on the one Side, and the Peace and Pre-
fervation of the Government on the other Side.
You hear what 1s proved againft him, the Evidence
aiven on this behalf, the Objections that have been
made by the Counfel, which all of them, as near
as ] can remember, 1 have repeated to you, and I
ask your Pardon and theirs 1t I have omitted any
thing, and I defire to be minded of it.  You Lear
the Anfwers that have been given,  And becaufe
the Counfe! were unwilling to give the Court trou-
ble, or themlfelves to make long Speeches and Ob-
{fervations, thercfore I have been neceffitated to do
it as well as [ can.

Upon the whole matter, my Lord Howard has
thus pofitively fvorn the Matter of Fact charged
in the Indi¢kment again{t the Detendant; he has
been fupporced by the Wienelles that confirm
the Circumftances of Smith’s going into Scetland,
the Scotchineir’s being here in Fuue, and the Sham
and Cant of Cuaroliza. All which you have heard,
and I make no Queftion obferved, and is not con-
tradicted by any thing I hear that carries any I’ro-
bability of an Anfwer, Therefore, Gentlernen,
I leave it to you, whether upon this Ividence you
will take it upon your Conlciences and Oaths, thar
my Lord Heward is guilty of wilful and corrupt
Perjury, then you muft find the Defendant not
Guilty ; but it you think he has proved the Mat-

ter fully, and lus Teftimony 1s fupported by thofe
four
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four Witnefles, Atterbury, Siv Audrew Fofber, She-
riffe, and B:ll, then, Gentlemen, you muft find
the Defendant Guilty.

Furymain. My Lord, we defire to ask one Que-
ftion. At the Meeting at Mr. Hampdew’s Houle,
1 think my Lord Howard fays they went to
Dinner,

My. Fup. Holloway. No, it was at Col. Sidiey’s
they went to Dinner.

L. C. ¥ I know not whether you have taken
notice of it, but I have, it was at Col. Sidwey’s
they dined, not at Mr. Hampdei’s.

Then the Fury withdrew from the Bar, and
sithin balf an Hoar the Fury returied, aid
being called over anfwered to their Naties,
and gave in their Verdifi thus. |

Cl.of Cr. Are you all agreed of your Verdict?

Omnes. Yes.

Cl. of Cr. Who fhall fay for you?

Oummes, Foreman, |

Cl. of Cr. How fay you? Is the Defendant Guil-
ty of the Trefpais and Mifdemeanour whereof he
is impeached, or Not Guilty ?

Foreman, Guilty.

Which Verdift being Recorded, the Cozrt vofe.

Martis 12. Febiuarii, An. 1683. B. R,
L. G ?M R. Attorney, Have you any thing to
move ? |

M, Att.Gen, 1 pray your Judgment againit
Mr. Hampden, my Lord, who was Convicted the
other Day of a great Mildemeanour,

L. C. }. Let Mr., Hampdeir come into the Court
then. [1Which be did,

My, Ait. Gei. My Lord, I need not aggravate
the Heinoufnels of the Oifence; for it appears
both by the Information, and upon the Evidence
to be beyond all Aggravation, wherefore I fhall
only pray your Judgment for the King, that you
would pleafe to fet a good Fine upon him, and
that he find Sureties for his good Behaviour du-
ring his Life. _

M. Williains. May 1t pleale your Lorafhip, I
am of Counfel fo. Mr, Hainpden.

L. C. 7. Are the Rules out in this Caufe?

Mr. Williaws. Yes, my Lord, they are out.

L. C. 7. Well then, what fay you for Mr. Haiup-
deit ?

M. Williams. Mr. Hompdzir does attend here ac-
cording to the Condition of his Recognizance, and
{ince Mr, Attorney hath prayed your Judgment, I
thall not ftir any thing as to the Indi¢tment or the
Verdiét, butall I have to fay for him is this, Mr.
Hawpden is but Feir apparent, his Father is alive;
and fo tho’ he has the Profp:ét of a good Eftate,
yet he has but little at prefent in Pofleflion 5 your
Lordfhip knows what Azgna Charta fays, that
there fhould be a Salve Contencinento 1n ail Fines,
and how far that may be an Ingredient into your
Lordfhip’s Judgment, I leave to your Confidera-
tion.

L. C. #. For that matter, I cannot tell what his
Eftate 1s, I have no Knowledge of him, nor of
his Eftate, whether it be great or fmall, but Mr,
PWilliams knows verywell, that the Crime, in Con-
{cience as well as Law, in cafe it had been proved
by two Witneffes, would not only have wrought
a Forfeiture of all his Efate, but a Forfeiture of
his Life too, and all his Reputation, would have
baftardized his Children, would have attainted and
corrupted his Blood. So that there is no fort of
Imagination but that the Crime was high enough
of Confcience; and certainly deftrves, if we can
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impofe it adequate to its Defert, a very great
Punifhment.  Mr. Hampden nor his Counfel can
deny but that they had a fair and a full Hearing,
they had the Liberty to fay and prove all that they
could, and you cannot but fay, Mr. Attorney was

very fair 1n making feveral Conceffions that he

might very lawfully and rightfully have infifted up-
on. So that there can be no Exception of that kind,
I am forry that Mr. Hampden, a Gentleman of
good Quality as he 1s by Birth, tho® he be a Perfon

1 never faw before he came here the laft Day of the

laft Term upon lus Habeas Corpus, that I know of.
I fay, I am forry one of his Quality and Education,
a {tudtous Perfon, as it feems, by his own natural
Inchination, and a learned Man, thould be fo un-
happily engaged in a Defign of this horridly evil
Nature. But on the one Side as well as we muft
take care of the Subject, fo on the other we muft
take care of the Government., Here was a Defion
: . . O

of deftroying the King, and {ubverting the Go-
vernment, and bringing all into Confufion. Of
this Delign the Defendant is convicted, and we muit
take care to proportion the Puntfhment, and ac-
cording to our Confciences and Oaths, and as we
ought to have regard to the Offender, fo alio we
are to have regard to the Government that he has
oficnded.

Mr. Fuft. Withins, Mr, Filliams, 1t was Amerce-
ments that were fpoken of there in Magia Charta.

L. C. J. Ay, itwas never meant of Fines for
great Offences,

Then the Fudges confilted together,
My, Juft. Withins. Mr. Haipden, you know you

are convicted of a very great Offence, as grear an
Offence as can be I think committed, unlefs it were
High-Treafon. For the Matter of it would have
made you Guilty, if there had been two Witnefies.
It was for conlpiring to levy War againft his Ma-

jelty, and for Conlpiring to raife an Infurreétion

and Rebellion within the Kingdom, a Confpiracy,
of which fome other Perfons being lawfully con-
victed, they have foffered Death for it. You are a
Perfon of an extraordinary good Family, and Iam
forry one of your Famuly that has flourifhed fo long
and through fo many Generations in great Honour
and Reputation, and great Profperity under the
Monarchy of Enugland, thould come to confpire to
deprive that King of his Government, whofe An-
ceftors have proteéted and defended your Family,
and to fpoil that Monarchy that has been the Foun-
tain of o much Profperity and Honour to it. I
am forry it comes to my turn to pronounce the
Sentence of the Courr upon you, Mr. Hainpden, I
have not any perfonal Knowledge of you, but I
have heard of you, and heard heretofore very well
of you. You have had a good Education, and the
Report of a learned and ingenicus Perfon, which
makes me yet wonder the more that you thould en-
oage 1n ‘uch a horrid Defign as this was. Indeed,
Mr. Hampden, 1 am fatished no IFine can be too
oreat, 1f any can be great enough for fuch an OF
tence, We cannot take Cognizance what your Eftate
15, ’us reported there is a great Eftate in your Fa-
mily, 1t has been always reprefented to be fo.

Mr. Hempden. 1 have nothing but for Life, and
that is but little neicher.

Nr. juft. Withins, ¥ know not what it is truly,
Sir. But it was always reported to me to be a very
grear Bftate, but whatfocever it is, we are to look
after the proportioning the Punithment as near as
we cin to the Offence, My Lord, and the Court

havq
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have confidered of the Matter, and they think fit
to give this Judgment upon you.

They fer the Fine of Forty Thoufand Pounds
upon you, to be paid to the King, and you
muft be committed till you pay it.

L.C. 7. And that you find Sureties for your
good Behaviour during your Life.

My, Att. Gen. 1 pray he may be committed for
his Fine.

L.C. . Letitbefo. Mr. Hampden, if you will
apply yourfelf to the King, you may, and there
perhaps you may find Mercy; we muft, accord-
g to the Duty of our Places and Oaths, give
fuch Judgment as the Law requires.

Mr. Fuft. Withins. Ay, n God’s Name. You
are in the King’s Hands, and he may do what he
pleales 1n it.

L. C.¥. If a Crime of this Nature fhould have
a little Punithment, 1t might encourage Offenders,
and if we were to judge according to fome Ver-
di€s that have been given here for lefs Offences,
where Gentlemen Lave given very much greater
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Damages than this Fine amounts to, this would
be thought a moderate Fine. I am forry any Man
fhould bring himfelf into thefe Circumftances :
The King as he is the Fountain of Juftice, fo heis
alfo of Mercy, and you and all thereft of his Sub-
jects have Caufe to blefs God that you live under
a Monarch that is very merciful. No doubt, if
you give Account of your Contrition and Sorrow
for your great Offence, and decently apply your-
felf to the King, he will think of fhewing Mercy
to you; but Juftice is our Work thatare Judges;
and according to the Methods of Juftice we think
we cannot inflict lefs than we have done,

M. Williams. My Lord, { pray his Bail may be
difcharged.

L.C. J. Ay, his Ball is difcharged, he being
commutted.

Mr. Williains. And for the High-Treafon, heis
dilcharged by the Habeas Corpus Alt.

L.C.7.Yes, he is fo, for there 1s o Profecution.

Then My. Hampden was carried by the Mai-

Jhal away Prifoner.
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CXXIV. The Trial of Laurence Braddon + and Hugh
Speke ar the King's-Bench jfor a Mildemeanour, 7

[uborning WitnefJes to prove the Earl of Eflex* was mur-
dered by his Keepers, Feb. 7, 1683, Hill. 36 Car. 1L

P HE Defendants, who had pleaded NVos
gAY {5 Guilly to an Information filed laft
; weo Lerm, were now brought to Trial,
TV Ef(?' 2 (. of, Cr.Crier, Call the Defendants,

eds Laurence Braddon, and Hugh Speke.

Crier. Laurence Braddon and Hugh Speke, come
forth, or elfe this Inquelt fhall be tzken by your
Default.

My, Wallop. They appear.
Cl. of Cr. Gardez votrex Challesiges.  Swear Sir

Hugh Middleton.  [Which was done.]  And there
being no Challenges, the twelve Gentlemen fworn
to try this Caufe, were thefe.

SirHugh Middleton, Samuel Roufe,
Thomas Harriott, Hugh Squire,
Thomas Earséy, . } Nebemiah Arnold,
Fofbua Galliard, J SJobn Bifield,
Richard Shoreditch, Williain Wait, and
Charles Goad, V Faines Supple.

Who being counted, Proclamation was made iy

2fual Form for Information.

Cl. of Cr. Gentlemen, you of the fury hearken
to the Record.  His Majefty’s Attorney-General
in this Court has #xhibited an Information againft
the Defendants by the Names of Lanreace Brad-
doir of the Middle-Temple, Gentleman, and Hygh
Speke of Lincoln’s-Inn, Gentleman,

And the Information fets forth,

That whereas Arthur Earl of ¥flex, the 12th of
July, fn the g5th Year of the Reign of our Soveresgin
Lord Charles 11, &y the Grace of God, of England,

* Burnets Hiftory of his Own Times, 7o/, 1, p. 569.

Scotland, France and Treland, King, Defender of
the Faith, &c. was committed to the Prifon of . our
Lord the King, in the Tower of London, for cer-
tain High-Treafons by bim fuppofed to be commitied.
And the furd Arthur Earl of Effex being a Pri-

foner it the Tower of London aforefaid, for ibe

High-Treafon aforefaid, the 13th Day of July, in the
aforefaid 35th Year of the Reign of our faid Sove-
reign Lord the King, that now is; not having the
Fear of God before his Eyes, but being moved and

feduced by the Inftigation of the Devil atthe Tower

of London aforefaid, in the County of Niddlelex
aforefard, bimfelf felonionfly, and as a Fulou of bitn-

[felf, did kill and inurder, as by an Inguifition loken

at the Tower of London sforefaid, in the County
of Middlefex aforefaid, the x4th Day of July, in the
Year aforefaid, before Edwara Fernham, Efgy ther
Coroner of our Lord the King, of the Liverty of the
Tower of L.ondon aforefaid, upon the View of ihe
Body of the faid Arthur Earl of Eflex 5 and new
in this Court remaining of Record more plainly does
appear. They the faid Laurence Braddon and Hugh
Speke ot being sgnorant of the Preuifes, but cois-
triving, and malicionfly and feditionfly intending the
Government of onr faid Lovd the King of 1bis King-
doms of England, inte Hatred, Difgrace and Coir-
tempt to bring the 15th Day of Augut, in the a-

forefaid 35th Year of the Reign of our Jaid Sove-

reign Lord the King that now is, and divers other
Days and Times as well before as after, af the Parifl
of St. Clement Danes in the County of Middlefex,

with Force and Arms, &c. falfly, unlawfully, mali-

cioufly and [editionfly did Confpire, and endeavorr

+ Ihid. 552, 553,
i
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to make the Subjeéis of our faid Lord the King of tbis
Kingdoms of England, to belicve that the Inguifs-
tion aforefaid was undnly taken, and that the faid
Arthur Earl of Eflex, by certain Perfons unknown,
in whofe Cuffody be was, was killed and murdered.
And to perfeit and bring 1o effel their malicions
and feditions Contrivances aferefaid; 1they the faid
Laurence Braddon and Hugh Speke as the Parifb
of §t. Clement Danes 7 the County of Middlelex
aforefuid, the 15th Day of Augutt, in the 35th Year
aforefoid, fallly, wilawfully, unjuftly, malicionfl and
feditionfly did Confpire to procure certain falfe Wit-
neffes 1o prove, that the foid Arthur Earl of Ef-
fex, was not a Felon of himfelf, but that the faid
Eorl of Eflex, by the faid Peifons unknown was
Filled and murdered: And to perfuade other Subjelis
of our faid Lord the King 1o believe this 1o be true,
they, the faid Laurence Braddon and Hugh Speke,
falfly, malicionfly, and feditionfly, then and there in
Writing did declare, and canfe 1o be declared, the faid
Laurence Braddon 0 de ¢ Peifon that wonld profe-
cute the Murder of the faid Earl of Effexy 1o the
great Scandal and Contenpt of the Government of onr
Lord the Kiug of this Kingdein of England, zo the
evil Example of all other in the like Cafe offending,
and againft the Peace of our Sovereign Lord the King,
bis Crown and Dignity. To this Inforination the
Defendants have feverally pleeded Not Guilly, and
forr their Trial have put thewfelves upon the Countzy,
and His Majefty's Attorney-General likewife, which
Country you are : Your Chaige is 1o enquirey wicther
the Defeudants or either of then, are Guilly of 1his
great Mifdemeanonr whereof they are impeached, or
Not Grilty?2  If you find them, or either of {bfﬁ:
Guilty, you are to fay fo 5 if you find them, or either
of them Not Guilly, you are tv fav fo, and no sisore,
end bear your Evideice,

Then Proclamation was made for Evidence.

M. Dolben. Nay it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen that are {worn : This is an Infor-
mation preferred by Mr. Attorney-General, agamnit
the Defendants L.:vrence Bradden and Hugh Speke,
and the Information does fet forth, that whereas
Arthur late Farl of Effex the 12th of Fuly laft
was committed to the Tower of London for certain
Treafons fuppofed to have been by him done :
And the fud Earl being fo committed Prifoner
to the Zower for Treafon, not having the Fear of
God before his Eyes, felonionfly and asa Felon
did kill and murder himfelf, as by an Inquifition
taken before the Coroner of the Tewer Liberty may
more fully appear; yet the Defendants Lawreirce
Braddon and Hugh Speke not being ignorant of the
Premifes, but defigning to bring the Government
into Hatred and Contempt, the 15th Day of Ax-
guft Iaft, 1 the Parith of St. Clement Daizes in this
County, with Force and Arms, fallly, unlawfully,
malicionfly and feditioufly did confpire together
to make the King’s Subjedts believe, that the
Inquifition aforefaid was unduly taken, and that
the faid Ear] of Effex did not murder himfelf,
but was by certain Perfons unknown, in whofe
Cuftody he was, murdered. And it further fets
forth, that thele Defendants, Lanieice Braddos
and Hugh Speke, deligned to difturb and difquiet
the Minds of the King’s Subjets and to {pread
falle Reports, did Confpire. to procure certain
falfe Witnefles to prove that the faid Earl of Ef-
fex was not 2 Felon of himfelf, but was by fome
Perlons unkrown, killed and murdered :  And
to perfuade other Subjets of our Sovereign Lord

the King to believe the faid Report, they did

f

124. 1be Trial of L. Braddon and Hil. 36 Car.11.

falily, malicioully, unlawfully and feditioufly caufe
to be declared in Writing, that the faid Lanrence
Braddoir was the Perfon that did profecute the
fad Earl’s Murder.  And this was to the great
Scandal of the Government, to the evil Exam-
ple of all Perfons in like cafe offending, and againft
the Peace of the King, his Crown and Dignity.
To this the Defendants have pleaded Not Guilty ;
if we prove it upon them, we make no queltion
you will find it.

Mz, Ait. Gen, May it pleafe your
Lordfhip, and you Gentlemen of ¢
this Jury, Mr. Speke and M. Braddon,
thefe two Gentlemen, are accufed of as High Con-
fpiracy as ever has or could well happen in our
Days, of throwing the Murder of a Perfon that
killed himfelf, upon the Government, And I
muft acquaint you, their Defign was of an higher
nature than barely that; for this Gentleman, my
Lord of Effex, was committed to the Tower for
the late Plot, and being fo committed, when he
had killed himfelf there, that was more than a
thoufand Witnefles to open the Eyes of the Peo-
ple; and confirm the Belief of the Confpiracy:
And one would have thought, after that there
had been an end of the Delign, that thefe Pro-
teltant Gentlemen, as they call chemfelves, were
carrying on 5 when the Earl of Efex, a Perfon
of that Quality and Worth, thould go to murder
himfelf upon the fenfe of what he was Guilty of.
So that the Defign, Gentlemen, was to ftifle the
Plot, and at the fame time they muft throw this
1l thing that the Earl had committed upon him-
felf, upon the Government: That, Gentlemen,
was the man Difgrace in order to flifle that grea
Evidence of the Plot. And Mr. Braddsn muft
of his own Iead, not being put on by any of
the Friends of the Earl of Zfx, who were ail
very fenfible the Earl had done this Fa@t, com-
mitted this Murder upon himfelf; but I fay, he
out of a true Principle to manage the Proteftanc
Caufe as they call 1, but indeed it was the Plot,
he becomes the Profecutor of this Bufinefs, and
you will find him by the Proofs in the Cafe, a
Man of many like Projeéts. For you will find
him value himfelf upon thefe Titles, thar he is
the Profecutor of the Earl of Efzx’s Murder, and

the Inventor of the Proteftants Flails, an Inftru-
ment, I fuppole Gentlemen you have all heard

of,

Now, Gentlemen, To make this appear to the
World, Lettersare fent into all parts of England
of this Bruit and Report. He himfelf goes about
to find Evidence ; for it was fo great a Truth,
and there was fuch a plain Proof that the Earl of
Effex had killed himielf, that he muft labour it
to get Evidence. And he goes about it accord-
ingly, and at length he meets with a lictle Child of
twelve Yearsof Age, and he prepares for him
all with his own Hand-writing, a Difpofition,
which is a feigned Story all of it, and in every
part of 't will appear to be falfe, and there he
mightily folicites this young Boy to fign it. He
comes to his Father’s Houfe, carries him in 2
Coach, forces him away, and forces him to fign
this Paper that he had thus prepared for him, alf
of his own Invention and Writing; and with the like
Confidence as he appears here, (for fo he does ag-
pear with very great Confidence, as you may ob-
ferve,) he attefts it himfelf. And, Gentlemen,
we fhall thew you, that here up and down the
Town he makes it his common Difcourfe

what he was in hand with, and makes his boal’cf
0

Sir Robers
wyer,
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of himfelf to be the Profecutor of the Earl of Ef-
fex’s Murder, -and he had as good a Confederate
as himfelf, Mr. Speke, and he having an Intereft
in the Country, whither the News muft be fent all
abroad, and Mr. Braddon muft go to pick up Evi-
dence, I know not where a great way off, of a
Murder committed in the Tower. We fhall prove
to you, he had Letters Miffive and Recommenda-
tory from Mr. Speke to a Gentleman with whom
N, Braddon was to advife; for they looked upon
it to be as dangerous an Enterprize almoft as the
Plot itfelf, as indeed it was; therefore they muft
be wary, and Mr. Braddon 15 adviled to go by a
wrong Name, fo this Mr. Speke and Bradden were
to carry on and make up this Tragi-Comedy, for
I can call it nothing elfe, for the Ridiculoufnefs as
well as the Dangeroufnefs of the Defign, The
Report was to be, that this Murder of the Earl
of Effex was committed by the Officers that at-
tended my Lord, and to fall out i time when His
Majefty was in the Tower, as 1f the King himfelf
had a hand init. We fhall trace 1t 1n all Parts
of it by feveral Witnefles, and hope you will
make them an Example, firlt by finding them
Guilty, and the Court aftcrwards by a fevere Pu-
nithment for fuch a villainous Practice, to fean-
dalize the Government with the Murder of a No-
ble Peer. 'We fhall begin with fhewing you the
Inquifition, or rather firft with the Conviftment
of the Earl of Effex for High-Treafon, becaufe
that is faid in the Record by way of Inducement.
Call Mr. Reynolds. [Who was fworn.) Have you
the Warrant of Commitment of my Lord of
Effex ¢

Mpr. Reynolds. Yes.

Mr. Att, Gen, Shew 1t the Court, Let the Clerk
read 1t.

Mr., Reynolds. This s the Commitment that was
delivered the Lieutenant of the Zower, together
with my Lord of Effex.

Cl. of Cr. This 1s directed to Thomas Check, Efq;
Licutenant of His Majefty’s Tower of Loudon.
Subfcribed Leolin Fenkins, and dated ~——

Sir Leokin Fenkins Knight, of His Majelty’s
moft Honourable Privy-Council, and Prin-
cipal Secretary of State.

TI—]}’/E are in His Majefly’s Name to will and
require you to receive into your Cufledy the
Perfon of Arthur Earl of Eflex herewith fent
you, being committed for High-Tyeafon, in Com-
paffing the Death of the King (whom God preferve)
and Confpiring to Levy War againfe His Majefty.,
And bim the faid Earl of Effex 1o keep in fafe Cu-

frody, until be fhall be delivered by due Courfe of

Law., And for fo doing this fball be your War-
ramt,  Given under my Hand and Seal at W hite-
hall, tbe 10th Day of July, 1683.

To Thomas Check, Efquue,
Lieutenant of IHis Ma-

.. L. Jenkins.
jelty’s Tower of London.

My, Att. Gen. My Lord, we will then read the
Inquifition, that the Earl, being thus in the
Towwer, kiiled himfelf.

’ M. Sol. Gen, Shew the Inquifition,

Mr. Finch. “Where is Mr, Farnbam ¢

My, Faribam. Here 1 am. The
Inquifition is returned here, and is upon Record.
Cl. of Cr. Hereit is, Number 11. [He reads. ]

London . An Tnquifition indented, taken at the
Vovu. IIL
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Tower of London aforefaid, in the County of Mid-
dlefex, the 14th Day of July, in the 2ear of the
Reign of our Sovercign Lord Charles I &y the Grace
of God of England, Scotland, France and Ireland,
King, Defender of the Faith, &c. the 45th; before
Edward Farnham, Efg; Corouer of onr faid Lord
the King, of the Liberty of the Tower of London,
aforefaid, upon View of the Body of Arthur Earl of
Lffex, then and there lyng deads by the Oaths of
Samuel Colwel, Efs; Willlam Fifher, Thomas
Godlel, £f7; Thomas Hunt, Nathaniel Mount-
ney, Efg; Thomas Potter, William How, Rob.
Burgoine, Eleazer Wickins, Thomas Hogsflefh,
Henry Cripps, Richard Rudder, William Knipes,
John Hudfon, John Kettlebeter, Lancelot Cole-
fen, Morgan Cowarn, Thomas Bryan, William
Thackfton, Richard Chffe, Zebediah Pritchard,
William Baford and Theophilus Carter, good and
lawful Men of the Liberty of the Tower of London
aforefaid, who being charged and fwora to enquire for
our faid Lord the King, when, by what means, and
bow, the faid Arthur Earl of Eflex came to bis
Deazh, upon their Qaths do fay, that the faid Ar-
thur Earl of Efiex, the 13th Day of July, in the
Thirty fifth Year of the Reign of owr faid Sovereion
Lord the King aforefard, at the Tower of London
aforefaid, in the County of Middlefex aforefaid, a-
bont the Hour of uine in the Forenoon of the fame Day,
not having the Fear of God before bis Eyes, but be-
ing feduced and moved by the Tuftigation of the Devil,
of his Malice aforethought, at the Tower of Lon-
don aforefaid, in the County aforefaid, then and
there being alone 11 bis Chamber, with a Razor of
the Value of One Shilling, voluntardly and felonionfly
did cut bis Throat, giving unto bimfelf one mortal
Wound, cut from one fugular to the other, and by
the Afpera Artera, and the IWind-Pipe, to the Ver-
tebres of the Neck, both the Jugulars being throughly
divided, of which faid mortal Wound the faid Ar-
thur Earl of Eflex, imflantly died; and fo the Fu-
rors aforefaid, [ay upon their Oaths, that the faid Ar-
thur £arl of Eflex, in Mamer and Form aforefaid,
then and there, voluntarily and felonionfly as a Felon
of himfelf, did kill and murder bimfelf, againft the
Peace of our Severeign Lord the King, bis Crown and
Diguity.  In Witnefs whereof, as well I the Coro-
ner aforefaid, as the Jurors aforefaid, to this Ingui-

Sition, have imterchangeably put our Seals, the Day

and Tear absvefaid,

Mr. Ait. Gen. Call Mr, Evans and Mr. Edwards.
After this, my Lord, we fhall fhew you, that Mr.
Bradden went about the Town, and declareqd the
Earl was murdered, and he was the Profecutor.
There is Mr. Evais, {wear him.

[Which was done. ]
Pray will you give an Account to my Lord and
the Jury, what you know of Mr. Braddow’s going
about and declaring he was the Profecutor of my
Lord of Effex’s Murder? -

Mr. Evans. My Lord, all that I know of this
Matter, is this. About the 17th of Fuly laft —

L. C. F. When is the Inquifition?

Cl. of Cr. Tt 1s the 14th of Fuby.

L.C. 7. Well, go on.

M. Evans, The 17th of Fuly laft 1 was at the
Cuftom-houfe Key thipping off fome Lead, and
the Perfon that brought me the Warrant, I told
him I could not execute 1t without one of the
Commiffioners Officers; and I bid him go to Mr.
Edwards, who was the next Officer adjoining ta

the Key, and he went to his Houfe, and told him

Sir G:argt

Tefferies.

I was at the Water-fide, and had a Warranr,

5 R which
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which T defited him to'be prefent while I executed
it; Mr. Braddoi it feéms was' then prefent in thé
Place with-Mr. Edwards when this was told hirs,
and hearing my’ Name, Mr. Brdddon carmie down
with' Mr, Edwards, arid found me then at Smith’s
Coffee-houfe; arid Mr. Edwards told meé Mr. Brad-
dort had beeh with himy examining his Sof, in re-
lation to a_Maittér of a Razor that was thrown
oiit of my Lofd of Effex’s Window, and I pre-

fently replied, I defired cliey wobld not fpeak of

any fuch Matter to me, for, 1 had feen the Coroner’s
Inquifition upon Qath, where it was declared, the
Thing was fo and fo, and two Perfons had {worn
what feemed to be contrary to this; and therefore
1 defired they would forbear any fuch Difcourfe to
me.

L. C. #. Who they?

M. Evans, Braddon and he were togecher.

L.C. ¥ Who, he? Man,

- My, Evans, Mr. Edwards. And withal T made
my Application to Mr. Braddon, and I defired him
ke would nor meddle with fuch a Matter, for I
thought 1t might be prejudicial to him and Mr. £4-
awards too. Mr. Braddor made me no Anfwer, but
went direCtly out of the Room,

L. C.7. What do you mean by o and fo, and
a Razor thrown out of « Window? We do not
underftand your fo and fo.

Mr. Evans, Relating to a Matter of a Razor.

L. C. 7. Priythee, we don’t know what that
Matter of a Razor 1s.

M. Evans. A Razor that was faid to be thrown
out of my Lord of Effex’s Window,

L. C. 7. Tell us what the Story was, Man.

My, Evaus. Mr. Edwards told me, that Mr.
Braddor was with him to examine his Son, relating
to a Matter of throwing a Razor out of my Lord
of Effex’s Window: This 1s that he faid, to the
beft of my Remembrance.

Mr. Sob. Gen. Was Braddon prefent there?

M. Ewvans. Yes, Mr. Braddon and Mr, Edwards
were both prefent.

L. C. 7. Well, \What was the Difcourfe between
you? Tellus plamly.

Myr. Evans, Says Mr. Edwards to me, Mr, Brad-
donr has been to examine my Son about fuch a
Matter, fo I defired he would not difcourfe any
thing of that Matter to me, and I told him, I
advife you not to proceed; for I told him, it
would be prejudicial both to him and Mr. Edwards
t00.

L. C. {. 'Whatis meant by this Martter? He
examined my Son about a Matter, and I defired
him he would not difcourfe of this Matter; What
1s all that Matteer?

Mr. Jufe. Holiswway. What did you apprehend
by 1t?

YM‘. Evaps. 1 apprehend that Mr. Braddes had
been to examine Mr. Edwards’s Son about fuch a
Matter.

L. C. ¥. What Matter, Man?

M. Evans: His difperfing of any fuch Report.

L.C. 7. What Report ?

Mr. Evans. A Report of throwing a Razor out
of my Lord of £ffex’s Window.

L. C. J. Here 1s a Razor thrown out of a Win-
dow, and a Matter of I know not what.

Mr. Fuff. IVithins. Suppofe a Man fhould throw
a Razorout of a Window, what fignifies that?

L. C. J. Where heatd he of that Matter ?

Mr. Evans. Thisisall I heard, my Lord, [am
upon my Qath,

L.C. 7. But I with thou wouldft let us know
what it 1s thou didft hear, |

M. Fones, Was there no Talk of a bloody Ra-
Zor !

M. Evans. No, not a Word of it.

L. C. 7. How came you to be frighted then,
and to be unwilling to hear of that Matter, and to
tell him, you thought it might be prejudicial to
him and Mr. Edwards.

Mr. Evans. 1 told him I had feen the Coroner’s
Inqueft, where it was proved, ‘that the Razor
lay in fuch a Place; thercfore I defired they
would not {peak to me of any fuch Matter, and
I defired Mr. Braddon not to proceed in it, for
you may do your felf and Mr, £dwards too fome
Prejudice.

Mr. At Gen, Look you, Mr. Evans, what did
you underftand by the throwing the Razor out of
the Window, and giving him Caution not to pro-
ceed? The Razor might be found there, what was
the Meaning of 1t?

My, Evans, May 1t pleafe your Lordfhip, there
was a Report at the Cuftom-houfe that very Morn-
ing the Farl of Effex cut his Throat, that there
was a Razor thrown out of the Window,

Mr. Jones. You did advife Braddom, you fay,
not to proceed 1n 1t?

Mz, Evans. Yes.

Mpr. Jones. How came you to advife him fo?

Myr. Evans. Becanfe it might be prejudicial to
him and Mr. Edwards too.

Mr, Att. Gen, Was there no Talk between Mr.
Edwards, Mr. Bradden and you, that Mr. Brad-
dois would be a Profecutor of the Murder of the
Earl of Effex, upon your Qath?

My, Evans, Not one Word or Syllable, For
Mr. Bradden {pake not one Word, good or bad :
I gave an Account to Secretary Femkins, of every
Word that paffed,

My, At Gen. Did not you advife him not to
profecute the Bufinefs?

Mr. Evans, 1 did advife him not to difperfe
fuch a Report.

L.C. 7. What Report?

Mpr. Evans. Of a Razor being thrown out of
my Lord of Effex’s Window.

Mr, At Gen. Why, fuppofe there had been
a Razor thrown out of the Window, What
then ?

My, Evans. Then 1t was contrary to the In-
formation and Evidence given before the Coro-
ner.

L.C. 7. Why fo? Why might it not be thrown
out after it was found in the Place where the In-
quifition fays? Thou art a wonderful cautelous
Man; Where is the Danger of the Report of a
Razor bemg thrown out of a Window? There
muft be fomething more in it, if we counld but
get 1t out of him,
~ Mpr. Luans. Will your Lordfhip be pleafed to
hear me?

L.C. 7. Ay, Ido hear thee, but I do not un-
derftand thee,

Mr, Evans, May it pleafe your Lordfhip, Iwill
read the Words werdatim that I gave to the Secre-
tary.

L.C.¥. Why, I belicve you can read, and I
make no doubt you can write too, or you are not
fit to be 2 Cuftom-houfe Officer.

Mr. Evans, 1 putinthis Paper to the Secretary,
and will repeat what I faid then, as near as I can,
upon my Oath,

1.C¥.
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L. C. 7. I care not a Farthing what you deli-
vered to the Secretary; tell us what thou halt to
fay plainly. '

My. Evans. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, I will
read it what It s,

Mz, Sol. Gen. You may look upon your Paper
to refrefh your Memory, but you muft not read it
here.

Mz, Lvans, If 1t pleafe you, I'will tell you the
Reafon and Occafion I had to go to the Secre-
tary.

L. C. ¥. 1 know not what Occafion thou hadft
to go to the Secretary, nor do I care what thou
didit when thou cameft there, it may be thou
madeft three Legs, 1t may be never a one; what
is that tous? What canit thou fay to the Matter
here before us 2

Mr. Evans. Thatisall I can fay, my Lord, It
was an Accident that they came into my Com-
pany. And totell you the Manner and the Occafion,
"That Perfon that brought me the Warrant, faying
to Mr, Edwards that 1 was below, Mr. Braddon
hearing my Name named, comes down with Mr.
Edwards, for he had told Mr. Edwards 1 was re-
fated to him, and they both came to the Coffee-
Houfe, and there they began to difcourfe about
this Matter.

Mr. Fuft. Withins. Who began to difcourfe ?

Mr. Evans. Mr. Edwards,

L. C. 7. Well, what was it he faid to thee?

Mr. Evans. Mr Edwards began thus, Says he,
Mr. Evans, this Gentleman has been at my Houfe
to examine my Son concerning a Report that
15 {pread abroad cencerning a Razor that was
thrown out of the Window of the Earl of Effix’s
Yodgings, that Morning he cot his Throat, [
hearing of that, faid I, Gentlemen, I have read
the Coroner’s Inqueft that is in print, and it is
otherwife declared there: And therefore let there
be no Difcourfe of any fuch Matter, for I be-
lieve no fuch Thing, And, faid I to that Gentle-
man, Mr. Braddon, pray forbear meddling in any
fuch Thing, for Mr. Edwards is a poor Man, and
has divers Children, he may be ruined, and you
likewife may be ruined your felf, if you proceed
any farther in it

My, Att. Gen. We {hall interpret this Matter by
our other Witneffes.

L. C. ¥. Ay, fo you had need, for there is no-
thing to me made of this Fellow’s Evidence,

M. North, Pray, by the Oath you have taken,
when you gave that Advice, did Mr. Braddon
make you no Anfwer?

Mr. Evans, No, none at all.

My, Braddon. [ Lifting up bis Hands in an untfuo!
manner. }

Mr. Evans, Pray, will you anfwer one Thing ?

L.C.}. Pray, Sir, let us have no Elevation
of Hands. Your Confidence does not fo well
become you In a Court of Juftice, this is not a
Caufe wherein you need ufe fo much Confi-
dence.

My . Braddon, Sir, pray anfwer, did not I ~—

L.C.J. What s it you would ask Him ?

Mr. Braddon. My Lord, I defire he may be ask-
ed, whether I, with a Brother of his, did not
come to his Country-Houfe, on the Meirday im-
mediately after my Lord of Effex’s Death, and
whether at his Table there was not a Report then
of a Razor being feen to be thrown out of my
Lord of Effex’s Window ?

L.C. 7. Pray ask by your Counfel, they are

Vo lIL
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moft proper to ask Queftions for you. Tell them
what you would have asked, and don’t make long
Stories your ‘lf.

Mr. Wallsp. Were you not in Company with
Mr. Braddon, the Monday after my Lord of Effex’s
Death?

Mpr. Freke, W hat was the Report, Sir, at your
Table, upon the Monday next after my Lord of
Effex’s Death ?

Mr. Evans, My Lord, if your Lordfhip

leafe
f L.C.}. Pray, Sir, makea fhortand plain An-
fwer to what Queftions are asked you, and let us
have none of your Circumlocations, and your
Difcourfes of the Matters but let us underftand
what you fay.

Mr, Evans. 1 will, my Lord.

L. C. ¥. What is your Queftion ?

My, Braddon. Whether I was not upon the
Monday after the Earl of Effex’s Death at his Ta-
ble, where there wasa Difcourfe of a Report that
a Razor was thrown out of the Window, before
Murder was cried out, and concerning a Boy
which went to take it up ?

L. C. 7. Whata Story is here! Prayask him a
fair and a fhort Queftion, if he can remember
what was faid at his Houfe? We are got quite to
the Cuftom-houfe and the Coffee-houfe agatn, and
I know not where.

My, Freke. What Difcourfe was there at your
Table, Sir, the immediate Monday after the Earl
of Effex’s Death, concerning a Razor thrown out
of a Window? |

Mr. Evans, My Lord, this, to the beft of my
Remembrance, 1s what 1 nave to fay, and remem-
ber of the thing, that a Gentleman being with
him —

L.C.7. Who?

My, Evans. Mr, Braddon,

My, Wallsp. Where was this?

Mr. Evans. In the Country.

My, Wallep. Where, in what Country ¢

Mr, Evans, In Effex.

Mr. Wallop. What was the Place’s Name?

My, Evans. At Wanfted, my Lord; and being
there, and he plucking out a Paper.

L.C.7F. He, who!
M. Evans. A Brother of mine, that that Gen-

tleman came down with to {ee me.

L. C. ¥. What is his Name?

Mr. Evans, His Name is My, Willian Hatfell,

L. C. ¥. With whom did.he come?

Mpr. Evans, With this Perfon,

L.C. ¥. With this Perfon, who is this Perfon

My, Evans, Mr. Braddon.

L.C. ¥. Why cap’ft thou not name him, with-
out this wire-drawing? Thou arta moft exact Cu-
ftom-houfe Officer, Il warrant thee, thou can’ft
not makea plain Anfwer toa plain Queftion.

M. Evaxs, My Lord, I beg your Pardon, I do
not know the Methods of the Court.

L. C. §. Prythee, 1 care not for thy Methods,
nor thy Matter; but deal plainly with us.

Mr. Evans. My Brother, Mr. Haifell, came
down along with Mr. Braddon to my Houfe at
Wanfted in Effex, on the Monday after my Lord
of Effex’s Death, and coming down, my Brother
Mr. Hafell pulled out the Coroner’s: Inquelt
upon Oath that was printed, and fhewing of it
to me, I read it; and as foon as ever I had
read ir, faid I, Mr. Edwards, that was at the
Cuftom-houfe that very Morning when the Larl
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cf Effex’s Throat was cut, did declare to me upon
the Cuftom-houfe £ey, That his Son did declare
that the Razor was thrown out of the Window,
which feems to contradict this Paper, that fays, it
was found lying by him,

Mr. Freke. Was this before My, Braddeir was
with Mr. Edwards ¢

M, Evans. Tcan’t tell that,

M. Frcke. Was it before Mr, Braddon and Mr,
Edwards came to you to the Coffee-hcufe ?

N, Evans, Yes, 1 believe it was,

M. At Gen. You fay Mr. Bradden came with
Mr. Hatfell to your Houle at Wanfter ¢

Nr. Evans, Yes,

Mr, A, Gen, Who was thie Perfon that told
this Story ¢

Mr. Ewans. He brought down the printed Pa-
per with him, and upon plucking out that Paper,
and reading of it, the Story was told.

M. A, Gen. Prav, whowas the Perfon that told
him it was {o reported at the Cuftom-houfe ?

Mr. Evaps, T made that Anfwer my felf, im-
mediately upon reading the Paper; for I obferv-
ed what the Coroner’s Inqueft had returned, and
upon that I made this Obfervation, That it feem-
ed to contradict what w3 declared at the Cultom-
houfe that Morning my Lord of Zffex cut his
‘Throat,

My, A1, Gen. Pray, who declared there that the
Razor was thrown out of the Window?

M. Evans. It was Mr, Edwards told me.

L. C. F. Why confider with your felf now, You
fay firlt of all Edwards and Braddon came to me
to the Coffee-houle,

M. Evans. That was at ancther Day.

L.C. 7. Iam fure you {wore fo at hrft,

My, Evans. With your Lordfhip’s Favour —

L. C. 7. And with your Favour too, Sir, Pray
will you hear me? I have heard you a great while
I am fure to no purpole, But confider with
your {cif, and pray be pleafed to reconcile what
you fay now with what you fard at firft, if you
can. You fay fisitt of Il Edwards and Braddon came
to me to the Cuftem-houfe, and found me out
at the Coffee-houfe, and that Edwards fhould fay,
Somebody had been with his Son, 1n order to
examine him about a Razor that was thirown out
of my Lord of Effex’s Window, and that you im-
mediately cried out, Have a care of that, for
that contradits the Inquifitton that I have feen
in Print, which declares as though the Razor was
found in the Room. And after that you fay, it
was that you fiuw the Inquifition when [Hatfell came
down from Braddon, and you told him of the Re-
port at the Caftom-houfe. How came you, if yon
had not feen the Inguifition *till then, to give out
fuch Words at the Cuftom-houfe : Have a care of
meddling with that, becaule that contradicts the
Inquifition ?

My, Evans, My Lord, this was feveral Days
before that.

My, dtt. Gen. Yes, my Lord, this Difcourfe at
W anfted was before that at the Cuftom-houle,

M. Wallop. This that he now fpeaks cf is an
Anfwer to Mz. Braddi’'s Queftion, which was
about a Difcourfe that has paffed before this other
at the Cuftom-houfe. This that he {peaks of, the
Difcourfe at a Coftec-houfe, was afterward, but
indeed he firfl fpake of it but thefe were two di-
{in@ Matters at feveral Times, This laft of the
Cuftom-houfe was, when he had made the Exa-
mination of the Boy, as that Witaels fays.
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L.C. . Therefore I think it was fit to explain
it, for 1t looked very inconfiftent before, what thou
faidlt at firft, and what thou fay’ft now; but if
thou telleft me thy Zffex-matter was before thy
Coffee-hoofe-matter it is well, otherwife the Mat-
ter, I affure you, looked very ill.

Mr. Evans, This 1s the Trath, my Lord, and
I can tell no more,

M, A, Gen, Take the Times, my Lord, and
you will fee he does fpeak very notably. The 13th
of Fuly my Lord of Effex murder’d himfelf, the
14th of Fuly the Inquifition was taken before the
Coroner; pray, what was the Day that Hatfe/ and
this Gentleman came down to you to Effex?

M. Evans. 1 can’c tell that, Sir, truly s but it
was oeiore this Matter of the Examination of the
Boy.

L. C. 7. But pray et me ask you one Queftion,
if your Matrer about the Inquifition in the Coun-
try was before the Matter of your cautious Dif-
courfe at the Cultom-houfe, how came you to tell
them, I heird this Report of a Razor thrown out
of the Window that Morning the Farl of Effx
cut his own Throat ?

Mr. Evans, Mr. Edwards reported this fame
Thing that very fame Morning to me and feveral
others at the Cuftom-houfe Key.

L. C. 7. Whydid you not tell us this before ?

Mr. Ewans, 1beg your Pardon, my Lord, Ido
not underftand the Methods of the Court.

My, Wallop. Mr. Hatfel gave the Occalion by
pulling out the Inquifition.

L. C. f. Pray, Sir, make your Obfervations
anoq, let the King’s Counfel go on with their
Evidence.

Mr, Atz Gen. What Difcourfe had Mr, Braddss:
with you then at that Time, when Hatfe/ came
down with him to your Houfe you fay, and pul-
ling out the Inquilition you read it, and made An-
fwer, you heard at the Cuftom-houfe Key fuch
n Report that very Morning the Earl murdered
himfelf,

My, Evans. Mr. Braddem was walking up and
down the Room, Idid not fpeak it to him, but
I fpake it to Mr. Haifel, but 1 believe Braddom
over-heard and took notice of it,

Mr. Faft. Withins, Did he concern himfelf a-
bout 1t ¢

M. Ewvans. No, not much, I did not hear him
fay any thing, but he walked up and down the
Room,

L.C. 7. Now after all this Difcourfe of the Mat-
ter, for aught I can underftand, the Matter is but
this: He fays, Edwards before the Meetings ei-
ther at his Houfe 1n Effex, or at the Coffee-houfe
by the Cuftom-houfe, reported to him, as though
the Earl of Effex had not murdered himfelf, but.
fomebody elfe had done it for him. And this was
reported at the Cuftom-houfe that Morning the
Larl of £ffex cut his own Throat, and he hearing
this Report at the Cuftoem-houfe at that Time, af-
terwards comes Braddon and Hatfel to his Houfe
into Zfféx, and after Hatfel had fhew’d him the
Paper of the Inquifition in Print, hefaid, I heard
fome Difcourfe from Mr. Edwards at the Cuftom-
houie of a nuite other Nature; and then he fays,:
Braddon and Edwards came to the Coffee-houfe,
and there 1t was he defired them not to talk of
that Macter, for, faid he, that contradi@s the In-
quifition | faw before,  This is the Subftance of
what he faid.

Mr. At Gen.
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Mr. Ait. Gen. And hereby itdoes appear, that
Rraddon, and Evaus, and Edwards, and Hatfel,
are all of a Gang,

L. C. %. Have you the Informatton he gave 1n
to the Secretary, Mr. Attorney-General, that that
was given before the Council ?

Mr. Ait. Gen. Yes, tis much the fame with

what he hath faid now,

My, Evans. Yes, my Lord, *ts verbatim as I

have declared now.

Mr. At Gen. Only this other part of Hatfel and
the Meeting in E/ffex was fpoken of fince, ihat was
not declared before.

M. Evans. No, my Lord, that I did not
{peak of, becaufe I was not examined about
it

My, Ait. Gen. That was part of the Secret,

M. Evans, No, it was common Difcourfe
with me. And Idid not think any thing of i,
what Mr. Edwards faid at the Cuftom-houfe,
was fpoken to a great many others as well as
me, and the Pcople feemed to be furprized with
an account of the thing at the firlt News of my
Lord of Effex’s Death.  And if 1 had thought
it material, I could have brought a great many
that were by then; but ».r Edwards is here
brought himfelf, | fuppofe ke will not deny
It,

M. Sol. Gen. Look you, Sir, you fay that very
Morning my Lord of Effex killed himfelf, Mr,
Ediwards difcourfed, and made tiis Report to you
at the Cuftom-houle, pray tell what the Difcourle
was; what he faid to you ; and then tell us what
time of Day 1t waus.

My, Evans. To the beft of my Remembrance
it was about Eleven o’ Clock ; there were feveral
Perfons ftanding together, among the reft Captain
Guoodland, and fome of the Searchers, and Mr. Ed-
wwards was there, and faid be, T am inforimed from
Home, That my Boy has been at Home, and
oiven an Account to my Wife, that being in the
Tower, he faw a Hand throw a Razor out of a
Windew, and he named my Lord of Zffex’s Win-
dow 3 and this Mr. Edwards did not only tell me,
but to a whole Coffee-houfe of People, this Matter
of Fact.

Mz, Fufp, Holloway. Did not Mr. Edwards tell
you, T hat fome body hd been examining his Boy
about that Report?

M. Evans. 'That was the fecond time, when
Mr. Bradden and Mr. Edwards came together.

Adr., Fuft. Holleway., Who was it had been exa-
mining his Boy did he fay ?

My, Evans. Mr. Bradden, he faid, had been to
examine his Son.

M, Fuft. Holloway, That was after the Difcourfe
at E/jex that Bradaen camero examine his Son con-
cerning the Razor.

Mz Wallop. Yes, it was after the Dilcourfe at
Lffex, where Hazfel plucking out the Paper, Evaus
told Mr. Brasden firft of this Razor.

L. C.7 Well, make your Defence by and
by, Mr. #allop: Do not make your Remarks

now,

Mr. At Gen. Come, Mr. Edwards., Crier
fwear him. [Whichwas done. ]

L.C.¥. Whatdo you ask hum, Mr. Artor-
ney ¢

My, Att, Gen. Mr. Edwards, Pray will you
aive the Court an Account of this Bulinels ;
tor I don’t know whether you heard what that

Gentleman that went out laft faid, he fays, you
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raifed this Story, Pray givean Account what yoi
know of it.

M. Sol. Gen. Pray tell whatyou know of Mr.
Bradden’s coming to your Son, and what Dif-
courfe he or you had about the Murder of the barl
of Effex.

Mr, Edwards, 'The Report that Mr. Braddos
came to enquire after, was with us fome threé
Days before ; 1t was in our Family three Days be-
fore, and upon the 17th of Fuly

L. C. 7. What was the Report, Mr. Edwards,
before Mr, Braddon came to you ?- |

Mr. Edwards. 'The Report 1 have already de-
clared before the Council.

L.C. 7. But you muft tell us too what 1t
was,

Mr. Eawards. The Report of the Boy the
13th of Fuly about 10 o Clock, as I was in-
formed by my Family, and by the Boy after-
wards by Word of Mouth, was this, He-comes
in abour ten o’ Clock, fays he, I have been at the
Tower (to one of his Sifters,) and have feen His
Majefty and the Duke of 2ork, and the Eail of
Effex has cut his Throat, and I fee an Hand
throw a Razor out of the Window, and one came
out of the Houfe, a Maid, or a Woman 1n a
White Hood and a Swuff Coat, and took it up,
and went in again, and then ! heard a Noife as
of Murder cried out, This was the Boy’s Re-
port, and more than as his Report 1 cannot fpeak
to 1it.

L.C. }. This was your Son, was it fiot ?

Mr. Edwards. Yes, the younger of thém. The
two Boys were that Morning going to Merchani-
Taylor’s School together as they ufed to do, and
by the way hearing the King wasin the Zower,
this younger Boy that was well acquainted with
the Tower, gave his clder Brother the {lip and
went into the Tower, and rambléd about from
Place to Place. | |

Mr. Att. Gen. Did not you examine him ?

Mr. Edwards. Ay, 1 did examine him.

Mr. At Gen, Did not you find that he denied
1t again ?

My, Edwards. No, I did examine him, and I
found no denial of any thing at all that he
had reported till Mr. Braddon came to makeé
Enguirg, Affoon as he came to make the En-
quiry, and 1 underftood what Mr. Bradden’s Bu-
finels was, 1 begeed of him that he would not
infift upon it by no medns, Ibegged of him as if
I had begged for my Life, but he was fo zealous
in the Bufinefs, that nothing wouid fatisfy him,
And after I had told Mr, Bradden that which
I could not deny, which was the Boy’s Report,
1 left him and went down to the Cuftom-houfe,
and fome of my Family difcourfed the Boy
at that rate, that he began to deny 1, and in
lefs than half an Hour’s time recolletted himfelf
and began to own it again, and fo the Boy was
off and on till the time he was before the Coun-
cil; and to this Day he feems to ftand in the
Denial, whether he will do it now or no I can’t
tell. '

M. Ait. Gen. Did you acquaint Mr. Braddon,
That you had found this Boy to be 2 lying Boy,
and detected him in Lies feveral times ¢

Mr. Edwards. May it pleafe you, Sir, I ac-
quainted him with thus much: Said I, Mr.
Braddm, As I have dealt ngenuoufly with you,
to let you know what the Boy’s Report as,
fo 1 muft likewile tell you; that I cannot nor

- will
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will undertake to affert the truth of it, and pre-
fently upon that my Daughters told me, the Boy
had many times excufed his playing Truant by
falfe Stories,

Mr. At Gen, Did you acquaint Mr. Braddon,
that your Boy was a lying Boy at that time ?

Mr. Edwards. 1 think 1 did not at that inftant
of time.

L.C.7. How old is tnis Boy you talk of ?

Mr. Edwards, About 13 Years of Age, my
Lord.

Mr. Att. Gen. What do you know of Mr. Biad-
don’s forcing your Boy to fign any thing that he
had prepared after this?

M. Sol, Gen. When you told him your Boy
had deny’d it, what did he fay? Was he pleated
and fatisfied ?

Mr. Edwards, He was not told it by me, but
fome of my Family.

My. Sol. Gen. How did he behave himfelf ?

Mr. Edwards. At the fame time they told him
he denied it, at the fame time they told him he
owned it again,

Mr. Sol, Gen, How did Mr, Braddon Dbehave
himfelf ?

M. Edwards. Like a civil Gentleman, I faw
nothing elfe by him, but that he was very zealous
in the Bufinefs, that 1s the truth of it, nothing
could perfuade him to defift.

Mr. Fuft. Holloway, Pray did you ask Mr. Braddon,
or did he tell you, what was the reafon that he was
fo inguifitive about this Razor, and the Report of
tlie Boy ?

Mr. Edwards, As to that he told me, he would
let me know the reafon of it, which was, out of
Confcience.

My. Jones. Did not Mr. Bradden carry your
Son before feveral Juftices of Peace?

Mpr. Edwards. Before none as 1 know of, not
one truly to my knowledge.

Myr. Att, Gen. Did you underftand he had taken
your Boy from your Houfe in a Coach?

Mp. Edwards. Never till he carried him Into
His Majefty’s Prelence before the Council, and 1
knew not that till the Boy came Home.

My. Thempfon. Mr. Attorney, Have you done
with him ? May I ask him a Queftion?

My, Ait. Gen, Ay, ask him what you will.

Mr. Thompfon. 1f I underftand you right, Sir,
this Report of the Boy’s was that Morning that
the Barl of Effex was murdered

L.C. 7. Was murdered, murdered himfelf,
Man.

Mr. Thompfon. My Lord, I mean the Day of
his Death, Now I would ask you, Sir, when that
was ¢

Mr. Edwards. The Boy’s Report was this,
Sir,

Myr. Thompfon. T ask you not what his Report
was, but when ? What Day it was? )

My, Edwaras. The 13th of July. Thatr Day
the Earl of Effex cut his Throat.

Mr. Thompfon. How many Days after that was
it when Mr. Braddon came to you ?

Mr. Edwards. It was not till the 1yth of Fuly.

Myr. Thompfon. Had you difcourfed of the Re-
port of your Boy at the Cuftom-houfe, or any
where elfe, that fame Day he came to you ?

Myr. Edwards. I cannot fay that,

Mr, Thompfon. Had you difcourfed it before
Mr. Braddex fpake to you, upon your Oath ?

Mr. Edwards, Yes, I believe I had.

My, Sol. Gen. Had you difcourfed 1t before your
Boy told you?

Mr. Edwards. 1 fhould then indeed have been
the Contriver of the Story.

Mr. Ait.Gen. So it is like enough you were.

M. Sol. Gen. Had you difcourfed it to any bo-
dy before you went home to your own Houfe, up-
on your QOath, Sir?

Mr. Edwards. Upon my Qath then I difcourfed
nothing of that Nature, not a Tittle of it, nor
knew nothing of it, till [ had it from my own
Family,

Ar, Sol. Gen. Did you not difcourfe of it before
you went home?

- Mr. Edwards., No, when T came Home they
told me of it

L.C. 7. Lask you again, Sir, Did not you tell
1t before you came Home,

M. Edwards. About 10 o Clock, I having
heard the news of the Earl of Effex’s cutting hus
Throat, at the Cultom-houfe, 1 ftepped Home,

asing very near to my own Houfe, and as feon
as 1 came in at the Door, the Family began to
aive me an Account what News the Boy brought
in.

L.C. 7. That was the firft time you heard of
>

IL!
Mr. Edwards. Yes, that was the firlt time I
heard of i,

L.C. 7. And did you not difcourfe of it till
after that ¢

Mr. Edwards. No.,

1 L. C. . Call Mr. Evans, let him come in again
then.

Mr. A, Gen. Let Mr. Evans come in again,

L. C.7. Mr. Evans, I would ask you this Que-
ftion, There were three times that you fay, 1 think,
that you had Difcourfe with Ediwwards about the
Matter, as you call it, once at Effex, and twice at
the Cuftom-houfe ?

Mpr. Sol. Gen. No, not in Effex; it was Hatfel
and Braddon, my Lord, that came to him there,
Edwards was not there,

L.C.F. When you firlt had a Difcourfe with
Edwards about this Matter, what was it that £d-
wards did fay to you?

Mr. Evans. Being upon Cuftom-houfe Key, and
Captain Goodland and feveral others ftanding upon
the Key, that very Morning my Lord of Effex’s
Throat was cut, about 11 o* Clock Mr, Edwards
came to us, being ftanding upon the Key, and
told us, That he was informed his Boy had been
at the Zower, and came Home and told his Mo-
ther, he faw 2 Hand throw a Razor out of a
Window, and that he went to take it up, and 2
Maid or 2 Woman came and took it up, and went
In again,

L.C.}. Ewans, Did he tell you this as if he
had been at Home?

My, Evans. No, 1 think 1t was that he had it
from Home by fome Hand or other.

M. Edwards. 1 was at Home,

My, Evans. My Lord, At two o’ Clock in the
Afternoon, when he came again to the Cuftom-
houfe, he did tell us, he had been at Home, and
his Boy did tell him the fame Story.

- L.C. . But when he had told you before he
had dined, did he fay, he had been at Home?

Mr. Edwards. My Family can teftify I wasat
Home between 10 and 11 o* Clock.

Myr. Evans, To the beft of my remembrance
be told me he heard fo from Home,

= LCY.
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L.C. . Before he: went Home, you fay, he
told you of this, and' that was 100’ Clock in
the Morning, and about two o’ Clock in'the Af-
ternoon, he faid, he had been at Home, and: it was
true.

Myr. Evans. Yes, my Lord.

Mr. Edwards. My Lord, T was at Home,

L. C. ¥. Mr. Edwards, Did you tell him fo,
or did you not? | 1 |

Mr. Edwards. It is like T might fay fo about
16 o' Clock, but not before I had received the

Report at Home. _
Mr. Evans. 1 underftood it fo, my Lord, That

'he had heard from Home.

L.C. ¥ Iask you this upon your Oath, mind
the Queftion,” and anfwer me plainly, Did you
fpeak to him, that you had fuch a Report from
IHome, or did younot?

M. Edwodrds. When 1 told 1t him, T had it
from Home, for I brought it from Home.

L.C.¥. Nay, Did you tell him you had fuch a
Report from Home at 10 0’ Clock, orno ?

M. Edwards. 1 told him that 1 had met with

fuch a Report.

L. C.%. From whom?

Mr. Edwards, From my Family at Home, for
the Boy camie not to me to tell it.

L.C.%. Then did you fee Mr. Lvans about two
¢’ Clock that Afternoon ?

Mr. Edwards. *T1s probable I did.

L. C. #. Dd you, or did you not ?

My, Edwards. Yes, 1 believe I might, 1 be-

feech your Lordthip give me leave to {peak.

Mr. Evans and I am converfant Forenoon and
Afternoon every Day, we have Bufinels toge-
ther. *
Mr. Evans. We have Bufinels, my Lord, about
fhipping of Goods.

AMr. Edwards. But, my Lord, if you pleafe, I
will tell you, that is the Occalion of our being to-
gether.

L. C. ¥ Anfwer me my Queltion, Did you, or
did you not tell him fo?

My, Edwards 1did not acquaint him with it
before 1 had been at Home, and received it from
my own Family.

L. C. ¥. Look you, Sir, Don’t you go about
to evade the Quettion, to trifle with the Court,
you muft anfwer me my Queftion directly, and
upon your Oath, Did you tell him you had Notice
from Home of fuch a Report, or no?

Mr. Edwards, T did not receive Notice from
Home, butI brought it from Home.

L.C.}. Did you tell him you had 1t from
IHome.

Mr. Edwards. T told him I had it from my
Family, who told me the Boy had made fuch a
Report.

L.C. 7 Did you tell him you had it from
your Boy, or received Notice from Home about
iy

Mr. Edwards. 1did not tell him any thing be-
fore I had been at Home.

L. C. 7. Well, then, anfier me this Queftion,
Did youtell himin the Afternoon artwo o’ Clock s
Now I have-been at Home and examined my
Boy, and find it fo as I told you?

Mr. Edwards. T examined my Boy at Dinner,
and I found the Boy agreed with the Report of
my Daughter, and confirmed it.

L.C. ¥ T ask you what you told Mr. Evans,
not what your Boy or your Daughter told you?
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Mr. Edwards. Ic is probable I' might tell Mr.
Evans the fame Story-after Dinner at two o’ Clock,
that I did before.

L.C.7. Now tell us the Paffuge again, Mr.,
Evans, as you heard it.

Mr. Evans. To the beft of my remembrance,
it two o’ Clock in the Afternoon, Mr, -Edwards
came and told us, he had examined the Boy, and
fays he, the Boy has confirmed all that I. told

ou.
! L. C. 7. But before that in the Morning what
did he fay 2

Mr. Evans. 1 cannot fay exaétly the Time, but

I think 1t was about ten o* Clock. There were

tour or five more befides mylelf, {tanding at Cuf-

tom-houfe Key, and Mr. Edwards came to us, and
told us, fays he, I am informed from Home, as
I underftood 1t, not that he had been ar Home,
but that he heard it from Home, that his Boy had
been at the Tower, had feen an Hand throw a
Razor out of a Window.

L. C.¥. What fuid he at two of the Clock ?

My, Evans. He faid he had examined his Boy,
and he faid the fame thing, that he rold us he had
heard in the Morning,. .

Mr. Ast. Gen. My Lord, we are now but upon
the Entrance of our Evidence, to fhew upon what
flender Grounds, how flight a Foundation there
was for this Gentleman to undertake this Profe-
cution, |

Mr. Sol. Gen. Mr. Edwards, Pray let me ask
you a Queftion, Did Mr. Bradden tender any Pa-
per to your Son to fign ?

Mr. Edwards. I was informed he did do it af-
terwards, but I faw him not do any {uchThing.

M. Sal, Gen. Did you never fay that Mr. Brad-
don had rendered a Paper to your Son to fign ?

Mr. Edwards, 1 do not believe I ever did fay
fo, I do not remember any fuch Thing,.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Pray recollet your Memory,
and tell us whether you did, or did not.

My. Edwards. T thank God, Sir, that he has
oiven me my Memory and my Underftanding, [
blefs him for 1t.

Mr. Ait. Gen. But it were well if thou hadft
any Honefty too.

Myr. Edwards. And Honefty too, -Sir: I have
not lived theie 39 Years at the Cultom-houfe with-
out Honefty, I never had my Honefty queftioned
to this Day, Iam fure no bedy can tax me with
Dithonefty.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Pray Mr., Edwards let your An-
ger alone for a while, and anfwer the Queltion
that I fhall ask you: Did your Son refufe to fign
that Paper ¢

My, Edwards. He did fign it at Iaft.

M. Sol. Gen. Did he refufe to fign it ?

My, Edwards. 1 do not know whether he re-

fufed it or no.

My Fuft. Withins. Did you hear that your Son
refufed 1t?

My, Edwards, 1 did hear that he had figned
It,

Mr. Fuft. Withins. But did you hear that he re-
fufed to fign 1t ? -

Mr. Edwards. The Boy did not tell me he had
vefufed to fignit. 1 did not hear him refufe it.

L. C.¥. Thou doft prevaricate very ftrangely,
I mutt tell thee that, notwithftanding thy Repu-
tation of 39 Yearsof Honefty : Prithee, anfwer
plainly, Did you hear at any time, that your Son

had refufed to fignit? .
ilr.
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My. Edwards. No, my Lord, I did not, to

the beft of my remembrance,
" L.C.%. That is a plain Anfwer, Man, but

thou doft fo fhuffle up and down, one can’t tell
what to make of what thou fayeft.

Mr. Thompfon. Sir, 1 defire to ask you one
Queftion, Whether ever Mr. Braddon and you had
any former Acquaintance £ _

“Mr. Sol. Gen. Pray, ftay, Sir, and if you pleafe,
fpare your Queftion a little, for we have not yet
done with Mr. Edwards. Mr, Edwards, pray
anfiver me, Did Mr. Bradden ever tell you, that
he had other Informations to confirin this Report

of your Son from others ?
Mr. Edwards. Truly, I do not remember he

faid any fuch Thing.

M. Sol. Gen. Did you ever fay he told you {o?
Confider of it, and remember your former Exa-
minatton.

My, Edwards. *Tis like fince he may have faid

{o, but not at his firft coming.
M. Sol. Gen. At his firft coming did your Son

fign his Paper then ? ‘ |
" Mr. Edwards. No, he did not, as I am inform-

ed, 1 faw 1t not. |

Mr. Sol. Gen. But afterwards you fay, Mr.
Braddon did tell you, he had other Evidence to
confirm it.

Mr. Edwards.- It may be he might, I can’t fay
it pofitively. '

My, Ait. Gen. You fay he did not {ign the Pa-
per at his firft coming ¢

Myr. Edwards. No, I am informed he did not.

M. Sol, Gen. How do you know he did fign it

at laft?
My, Edwards. My Wife and Daughters Infor-

mation,
L. C. 7. But how then can you fay, Thatyou

never heard he did refufe it ?

M. Edwards. My Lord, he did not tender a
Paper to him to fign, till he had been two or
three times there, as I have heard, it was not
tender’d the firft time he came.

L.C. ¥. 1 wonder how thou halt efcaped 29
Years with fuch a Reputatton.

Mpr. Edwards. My Lord, I never was thought
otherwife, rior I hope never gave any Occafion for

fuch a Thought.
L.C. ¥. 1 affure thee, 1 do not, nor can take

thee for one.

Mr. Edwards. 1hope 1 have done nothing to
make your Lordfhip think the contrary. _

L. C. F. Yes, thou hatt. Thou didit nothing
but fhuitle up and down, thou art to confider thou
art upon thy Oath, and muft anfwer Queftions
plainly.

Mr. Edwards. My Lord, I do anfweras truly

as I can. N
M. Ait. Gen, Heark you then, Mr. Edwards,

an{wer me, -
L.C. . Speak the Truth, and nothing but the

Truth, that is all that is required of thee; no
Court of Juftice ought to be afraid to hear Truth,
Let Truth come out of God's Name.
My. Ait. Gen. Did Mr. Braddon ever tell you,
That he had other Evidence befides your Son ?
Mr. Edwards. 1 do not remember he faid any
fuch thing at his firflt coming.
L.C.5¥. How thou doft fhuffle again, An-

fwer plainly. |
Mr. Ait. Ges. 1ask you, Whether ever he did

fay ic?
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Mr. Edwards. Yes, hedid fay fo afterwards.

Mr. Sol. Gen. 1 muft ask you one Queftion
more, (for I fee *tis very difficult to get it out of
you) Pray did he tell you that he had other Evi-
dence befides your Son, before he figned the Pa-

per, or after ?

Mr. Edwards, 1t was before, as I takeit. I
fpeak to the beft of my Knowledge, my Lord, I
can fay no more.

L. C. 7. If thou haft a mind to continue the
Reputation thou haft got, as thou fayeft, the way
is to anfwer Queftions, and fpeak the Truth plain-
ly, let it concern whom it will.

Mr. Edwards, T labour to do it, my Lord, to
the beft of my Underftanding and Capacity.

L.C.%. I would not have thee fay a Tittle
more than the Truth, but let the Truth come out.

Mr. Freke. Now, Sir, I would ask you, if they
have done with you, Did you ever know Mr. Brad-
don before the 17th of Fuly? Or did you ever
fee him before ?

Mi. Edwards. No, T never had any Knowledge
of him, nor ever heard 2 Word of him.

My, Wallop. Mr. Edwards, the Queftion was
asked of you, Whether Mr. Braddon did fay,
There was other Evidence befides your Son ; Pray
when was that ?

Mr. Edwards. He did not at the firft time, but
afterwards he did.

Mr. Wallop, That was a good while after, he
had been with the Boy firft.

L. C. 7. Make your Obfervations by and by,
Mr. Wallsp. Thisis nota Time for them,

Mr. Ait, Gen. Then where 18 Edwards, the
Boy ? [WWho was brought forthwith into Court.]

Mr. Edwards, I charge you in the Prefence of
Almighty God, fpeak Truth, Child.

M. Sol. Gen. And fo thould you too.

Mr. Edwards. Be fure to fay nothing but the
Truth. :

L.C. 7. And Child, turnabout, and fay, Fa-
ther, be fure you fay nothing but the Truth,

My, Ait, Gen. My Lord, This is the Boy, heis
very littie and very young, will your Lordfhip
have him fworn ? What Age are you of ?

William Edwards. 1 am 13, my Lord.

Mr. Att. Gen. Do you know what an Oath is?

William Edwards. No.

L. C. . Suppofe you fhould tell 2 Lye, do you
lknow who is the Father of Liars?

William Edwards. Yes.

L.C. 7. Whoisit?

William Edwards. 'The Devil,

L.C.¥. And if you fhould tell a Lye, do you
know what will become of you ?

William Edwards. Yes.

L.C, . What if you fhould fwear toa Lye ?
If you thould call God to witnefs to a Lye, what
wouid become of you then ¢

Wiliam Edwards. 1 fhould go to Hell-fire.

L. C.%. That 1s a terrible Thing, And
therefore, Child, if you take an Oath, be fure
you fay nothing but what is Trath, for no Par-
ty, nor Side, nor any thing in the World ; for
that God that you fay will call you to an Ac-
count, and caft you into Hell-fire, 1f you tell
a Lye, and witnefs to a Falfhood, knows and
fees all you do, therefore have a care, the
Truth you muft fay, and nothing bur the
Truth.

Crier. Pull off your Glove, and hearken to your
Oath. [Thei be svas fivorn.]

| Mr.
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Mr. Sol. Gen. And now remember you call
God to witnefs to the Truth of what you fay,
. M. Ait, Gen. Young Man, look upon that
Paper, is that your Hand ?

William Edwards. Yes.
- Mr. At Gen. Did you fign that ?

William Edwards. Yes.
M. At Gen, Prithee tell the Court, how thou
cameft to fign it ?

L.C. 7. Ay, Child, be not afrid. Tell the
. Truth, for if thou telleft the Truth, thou need-
eft not be afraid, but 1f thou telleft a Lye, thon
haft need to be afraid ; let no body, whatever
has been faid to thee, affright chee from telling
the Truth, |

My, Sol, Gen, Don’t be afraid of thy Father,
or any body, but tell plainly what thou know-
eft, and {peak ouly the Truth.

Mr. Att. Gen, How came you to fign that Pa-

er ¢
P William Edwards. Mr. Braddon bid me fign it
when he had writ it,
- L.C. ¥ Heark thee, Child, Did he take it
from thee what he writ, or did he write it from
himfelf; Come hither, Child, be not afraid, no

body here will do thee any hurt.

Thei the Boy was lifted up upon the Table
before the Fudges.

. L.C. % look ileOI] that Paper, didft thou

put thy Nume to that Paper, Child?

Will:axs Edwards - Yes. '

L.C. ¥. Whofe Hand-writing 15 that Paper,
befides thy Name ? -

William Edwards., Mr. Braddon's.

L.C. ¥ Did hebring it ready written ?

Wilivn Edwards. He writ it 1n our Parlour.,

L.C. ¥ How came he to write it ?

Wilham Edwards. He taid it was for the Earl
of Effex, to give to hus Wile,

L....%. And what did he ask thee before he
writ that?

William Edward;. He asked me, whether I faw
any thing at the Tower, and fo 1 told him, ves.

L C.F. Ay, tell us what you told him, and
be not afraid, Child, but tell the Truth.

William Edwards. 1 told him, 1 was in the Zoto-
er, and faw a Razor thrown out of a Window.

L. C.¥. You told him fo, and then whar faid
he to you?

William Edwards. He bid me {peak the Truth.,

L.C.¥. Was that all the Words you had 2

William bdwards. | afterwards went with my
Brother into the Tower, and I fhewed my Bro-
ther the Place, and then afterwards Mr. Braddoi
writ this, and he faid it'was to give to the Coun-
tefs of Ljfex.

M. Fuft, Holloway, Did he read 1t to you af-
ter he had writae?

William Edwards. Yes.

M. Fufp, Holloway, And did he ask thee, whe-
ther 1t were true ?

Hilliaim Edwards. Yes,

L. C. 7. And dudft thou tell him it was true ?

William Edwards. Yes.

L. C. #. And did{t thou tell him all that was
in that Paper was true ? | '

Williom Edwards. Yes,

L.C. % Dud you tell him all that was writ
in that Paper before he writ it down,

You. Il
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- William Edwards, Yes, '

L. C. 7. Prithee mind the Queftion, and fpeak
Truth, Didft thou tell him all that was in that
Paper before he writ it doivn ?

William Edwards, Yes, I told him, and fo he
writ it down, _

Mr. Juft. Holleway. You heard it all read to
you, you fay. |

William Edwards. Yes.

L. C. . Then [ ask you again, Did vou tell
him all chae was in that Paper was read to you,
before he writ it down ? '

William Edwards, Yes,

- L.C. 7. And after you had told him, he writ
it down? .
- William Egwards. 1 told him as he writ it down.

L.C. 7. And after fuch time as he had wric
it down, did he read it to you ?

William Edwards. Yes,

L.C. 7. And then you put your Name to it ?

Williom E'wards, Yes,

My, A't, Gen. | pray, my Lord, he may be ask-
ed this Queftion, Whether or no, when he firft
brought it in, the Boy did not deny to fign it 2

L.C.¥. Did he bring the Paper thither be-
fore thou fignedlt it 2

William Edwards. 1t was upon the Table,

L.C. 7. Dudft not thou refufe to put thy
Name to 1t ?

William Edwards, Yes.

L.c..F. Why?

Williain Edwards. 1 was afraid,

L.C.F. Why?

Willian Edwards. For fear of coming into
Danger.

L. C. ¥. Why, what Danger could there be ?
There was no Danger if it was Truth,

William Edwards. That was not the Truth.

L. C. ¥. Which was not the Truth? “Was not
the Paper that'he had written Truth ? )

William Edwards. No,

- L C J How fo, Child? Was not that thon
toldeft him the Truth ?

/1 illiam Edwards, No,

L. C. 7. Tell the Truth now then.

Willicin Edwards. So | do.

Mr. Sol.Gen. ‘Then he oflered it firft to you,
and bid you fign it, and you denied to put your
Hand o it, becaufe it was not true? ’

Willian Edwards, Yes,

L.C. F. And how long after did he offer it to
you agan 2

illiam Edwards, A little while after,

L. C. 7. But did you tell Mr, Braddon it was
not true, when you refufed to fign 1c?

Williain Edwards. No, 1did not,

L.C 7. Why didft thou refufe to fign it then ?

M illiain Edwards. 1 was afraid, becaufe it was
not true. -

L. C. 7. Didft not thou tell Mr. Bradden it
was not true ? *
 William Edwards. 1 did not tell Mr. Braddos
1t was not true,

L. C. ¥. Why then, waft thou afraid to fign
it becaufe 1t was not true at one time, and yer
didft ign 1t, though it was not true at another
fime?

Az, Sol. Gen. Child, Didft thou give Mr. Brad-
don any Realon, why thou didft not fign it at thac
rme ¢

William Edwards, No, Sir,

59 M.
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M. Sol. Gen. How didft thou come to fign it ?
Did any body {peak to thee between that firfk
Time thou refufedt to fign it, and the fecond
Time thou didft fign it?

William Edwards., He would fain have got my
Aunt to have figned 1it.

L. C. 7. Thou fayeft, thou didft firlt refufe it,
becaufe it was not true ¢

William Edwards. Yes.

L.C. . And then afterwards thou didft fign it ?

William Edwards, Yes.

L. C. # Then I ask thee, who perfuaded
thee to fign it after that time that thou ftill re-

fufedft it ?
William Edwards. My Mother was afraid to

have me fign it.

L. C. 7. Who perfuaded you to fign it ?

William Edwards. Mr. Braddoe fald there was
no Harm mnit, fo I did it.

L.C.7. Did Mr. Braddon then perfuade you
to fign 1t?

Willian Edwards. He faid there was no Harm
in it, that was all.

L. C. . Did you do it at his Defire ?

William Edwards. Yes.

L.C. . And you refufed 1t at firlt when he
defired 1t ?

William Edwards. Yes.

L.C. ¥ What, becaufe 1t was falfe ?

HWilliam Edwards. Yes.

L. C. . Why then wouldft thou fign it after-
wards, 1f fome body did not perfuade thee to it ?

Williain Edwards. He told me there was no-
thing of Harm 1n 1t.

My, Att. Gen. Hadlt thou any Money offered
thee by Mr. Bradaoi ¢

Williaws Edwards. No,

My, Art, Gen, Hadlt thou any Money promifed

thee?

Williows Edwards. No. g

Mr. At Gen. Hadlt thou any thing cle offer-
ed or promifed thee?

William Edwai. 5. No, nothing at all.

L. C. . You have heard what he has faid,
Gentlemen ?

Fury. No, my Lord, we have not heard a Word.,

L.C. F. ThenI will tell you what he has faid
exactly. He fays, that Mr. Biaddon writ it from
him s that he writ it 1n the Room while he was
there ; that after fuch time as he had writ it,
Mr. Braddon read 1t to him: He fays, that he had
carried his Brother to thew him the Place where
he afligned that the Razor was found in the Tow-
er; he fays, that after fuch time as the Writing
was finifhed, Mr. Braddon offered it him to fign,
and he refufed to fign 1t, and [ asked him the
Reafon why, and he fays, becaufe it was falfe s
he fays, fome Iho‘rt time afterwards Mr. Braddsi
came to lum again.

William Edwards, No, Sir, 1t was the fame time.,

L.C. 7 Well, the fame time Braddon was at
him again, and told him there was no Harm in i,
and therefore defired him to fign 1t, and becaufe
e would not, he would have had his Aunt to
have figned it; and he fays, that Braddon telling
him there was no Harm in it, he did fign it

Mr. Sol. Gen. But withal he fays, that it s
falfe.

L. C. 7. Ay, he{wears now *tis all falfe,

M. Freke, Did youtell Mr. Braddon it was falfe 2

L. C. 7. No, he fays he did not.

e, Freke. Did your Sifter at all difcourfe with
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you after you had dictated to Mr, Bradden? Pray
what Difcourfe had you with her after Mr, Brad-
don writ that Paper, before you refufed to fign
it ?

L. C. 7. Do not ask‘any leading Queftion, Sir,
but propofe a fair plain Quettion.

Mr. Freke, Did you difcourfe with your Sifter
at all, after Mr. Braddor had been at your
Houfe ?

Williaus Edwards. Yes, I had been at School,
and when I came home, they faid that a Gen-
tleman that came from the Earl of Efes’s Bro-
ther, had been to inquire of the Truch of the
Report I had raifed.

Mr. Freke, What did your Sifter fay to you ?

William Edwards. That was all.

Mr. §al, Gen, Did fhe name the Gentleman,
and did you fee him afterwards ?

HWilliam Edwards, Yes.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Who was it ?

, William Edwards., That Gentleman, Mr. Brad-
on,

Fury, My Lord, We don’t hear 2 Word he
fays.

yL. C. 7. He fays, he had been at School, and
when he came Home, they told him a Gentle-
man came from the Earl’s Brother, to inguire
of the Truth ot what he had reported: It was
asked him who the Gentleman was, and he fays,
1t was that Gentleman, Mr. Braddon.

M. Thowmpfon. Betore {uch time as Mr. Braddos
came to you, what did you tell your Father about
this Razor, and when ?

William Edwards. Sir, 1 told him the King
and Duke of 2v7% were at the Zower, and <while
I was there, I faid, I faw a Hand caft out a
bloody Razor, and a Maid come out and take
it up, and go In again.

Mr. Thompfon. Did you fee any fuch thing as
a bloody Razor caft out?

William Edwards. No.

L. C.}. Whata Duft has fuch a trivial Report
made i the World ! Admit the Boy had faid
any fuch thing, what an Age do we live in,
that the Report of every Child fhall blow us up
after this rate # It would make a body tremble
to think what fort of People we live among :
'T'o what an Heat does Zeal tranfport fome Peo-
ple, beyond all Reafon and Sobriety ? If {uch a
little Boy had faid fo, ’tis not an Half-penny
matter, but prefently all the Government is to
be libelled for a Boy, which, whether he {peaks
true or falle, 1s of no great Weight, and he
fwears *tis all falfe.

Mr, §dl. Gen. My Lord, We fhall next call
Dr. Hawkins's Son of the Tower, Where is Tho-
mas Hawkins ? [ 7 hho was fwors.

M, At Gen, My Lord, Agreeable to what
the Boy has now faid, to fhew you that whar
Mr. Dreddon got him to fign was all falfe, here
i the young Man that truanted with him the
fume Morning, that was with him all the Time,
the whole Morning, that fays, there was no fuch
Thing, and he faw no fuch Thing; and how
could 1t enter into the Boy’s Head fuch a mali-
cious Lye, 1f 1t had not been diftated? Pray
Mr. Hawkins, will you acquaint my Lord, and
the Jury, whether you play’d Truant that Morn-
ing with this ocher Boy, and where you were,

L. C. 7. Ay, tell the Truth ir God’s Name,
young Van, be it one way or t'other, let the
Truth come out,
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Eawkins. In the Morning, Sir, I met with him
at the TJower; going round with the King, and
we walked round the Zower as long as the King
walked, and then the King going into the Con-
ftable’s Houfe, we and fome more Boys were
playinge—-—

L. C. F. Prithee fpeak out, as tho’ thou wert
at play at’Chuck-Farthing,

Hawkins, After we had been at play, I went
Home, and after I had been there a little while,
News was brought to my Father, that the Earl
of Effex had killed hinfelf. My Father went
down, and I followed him, and after I had been
there a little while, Aillicin Edwards came
Home, and there we ftood looking up at the
Window an Hour or two at leaft, and after we
had tarried there a great while, I went out of
the Tower Gate 2 little after Eleven,

Mr. Azt Gen. Was there no Razor thrown out
of the Window ¢

Hawkins, No, there was no Razor thrown out,

L.C. ¥. Didft not thou fee a Razor thrown
ont of the Window? and a Maid come and
take 1tup ¢

Hawkins, No, there was no fuch Thing.,

L. C. F. Were you there betore Edwards came ?

Hawkins. Yes.

L C.’}. And you went out with him ?

Hawkins, Yes.

L. C. 7. Did you and Edwards go away to-
gether ?

Hawkins, Yes,

Mr. Thompfon. Did he tell you of any fuch
Thing ¢

Hewkins, No.

My Sol. Gen. What time of the Day was it
that you went out of the Tower ¢

Hawkins. Almoft Eleven o’Clock.

Mr. #allop. The Boy does fay, he did tell his

Father and Mother, and all the Family of it. .

And ’tis plain by the Father, that it was known
in the Family by Ten of the Clock.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Was this young Man with you,
all the Time that you was there, Edwards?

Willham Edwards., Yes.

Mr. Att. Gen. Did not you tell your Father of

this Story when you came from the Zower 2

Williain Edwards. Yes. .

Mr. A, Gen. And that was the fame time you
came out of the Tower with Huwkins ?

William Edwards. Yes,

My, Att. Gen. And you Hawkins, was thisyoung
Man with you all the fime you were at my
Lord Effex’s Window ?

Hawkins, He came thither while I ftood there.

Mr. Ait. Gen. My Lord, this is but the begin-
ning of our Evidence, your Lordthip fees what
a fine Cale 1t 15, and how all this Noife and
Buftle has come to be made in the World. The
Rumour did firft arife in a Fanatick Family,
and was propagated by that Party.

Mr. Jones. Ay, tis eafily known whence it came.

L.C.J. Gentlemen, Pray will you go on
with your Evidence, and make no Defcants.

My, Freke. You, Hawkins, when you came
from your Father’s Houfe, did you find that Boy
in the Tower ?

Hawkins. Yes, Sir, a going round with the
King,

L. C. 7. That was before this Thing happened.

M. Freke. Were you with him all the while
he was in the Zower ?
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Hawkins. Juft before my Lord Effex cut his
Throat I went Home. .

Mr. Freke, Were you with him all the time
or no? And how long were you with him ?

Hawkins, 1 went with him round the Tomwer
with the King.  And after we were at play, and
then I went Flome, and then when 1| had been
at Home a lirtle time, the Rumour and Noife
came, that the Earl of Effex had killed himfelf,
fo I went with my Father, and {tood before  the
Window, and I tarried there a while before he
came Home, and [ ftayed with him looking at
the Window a great while, and we went out of
the Tower together.

Mr. Freke. You little Boy, Edwards, was this
Mr. Hawkins with you all the Time that you
were In the Tower 2 | .

William Edwards. Yes, butonly a lictle while
that 1 was at the Mills.

Mr. Ait, Gen, viy Lord, we had not laid fo
much Weight upon . r. Braddos for this Matter,
but that he could not be quiet, but muft inform
the King of it, and this Matter was all exami-
ned before the King, the Boy was fent for, and
before his Face the Boy declared it wasa Lye.
And after he knew this, and after the Boy had
twice in the Prefence of the King dented ir,
yet notwithitanding all this, then was the Pro-
ject between him and Speke.  We fhall firlt
prove the Examination of this Matter before the
Council, and how he was acquainted with ir.
Pray call Mr. Blathwaite and Mr. Monfrevens.

My, Blathwaite was Sworn,

M. Ast. Gen. Pray Mr. Blathwaite will you give
an Account whether you were prefent at the
Council, when Mr. Braddon brought this Infor-
mation, and how the Macter was Examined
there, and what was done.,

My, Blathwaite. My Lord, it wason the 20th
of Fuly, that Mr. Braddon came to Whiteball,
he may remember I was there, for he could not
but fee me attending on the King, This little
Boy was brought before his Majefty, and was
asked what Information he had given Mr, Brad-
don? And whether the matter of the Informa-

. tion was true? The Boy faid it was 2 Lye, and that

upon his Faith it was not true. Mr. Braddon
knew all this, for he was called in and informed

" ofit; and I believe Mr. Braddon will remember,
~that he heard the Boy deny it.

The whole

Examination could not but fhew that it was an
Invention of his, as he faid, it was to excufe
himfelf for having play’d Truant that Day, and
that becaufe he was afraid to go Home, he in-
vented that Lye. After this Mr, Bradden, as it
appears, did neverthelefs purfue this Bufinefs.
L.C. ¥. Pray only tell what you know of
your own Knowledge, both before, and after.
My, Blathwaste. 1 know, my Lord, that Mr.
Braddon (having been in the Country) came

. afterwards before the King, and was again Ex-

amined upon this matter, by which it appear’d,
that he did continue in_his Purfuit, though he
was always informed of the Denial the Boy
made, and that 1t was underftood to be a Lye
by the whole Family of the Edwards’s, as well
as from the Denial of the livde Boy 5 for they
did confefs, that the Boy ufed to tell Lies, and
one of the Sifters faid he had denied it at firft,
but afterwards was brought to fay it. And if I

58 2 remember
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to my Lord Sunderland, and he gave him that

-remember right, the Words of one of the Sifters
were, BRADDON COMPELLED THE BOY
TO SIGN IT. Thofe are the Words in the
Minutes that I took at the Examination, there-
fore I believe 1t was fo, that the Boy had denied
before to fign it. But this 1 only mention, as
what the Siiter faid.

L. C.¥. Have you any more Queftions to ask
Mr. Blathwaite, Gentlemen ?

M. North. Becaufe we will not trouble Mr.
Blatlrwaite to call him again, pray produce the
Letter.

Mr. 4. Gen. Pray, Sir, will you look upon
that Letter, and tell the Court what you know
of it, and whofe Hand it is.

Mr. Blatbwaite. My Lord, This 1s a Letter
that was produced before the King, when Mr.
Speke attended there. It was then put into my
Hands; and I do well remember, and likewife
I have written upon it, That Mr. Speke owned it
to be his Letter.

L. C. ¥. Did he own it to be his Letter, Sir?

My, Blathwaste. Yes, he did own it to be his
Letter.

Mr. Ait, Gen. That 15 all we have to trouble
you with at prefent, Sir: We will now call
Mr, Monfrevens.

[Who fanding up by the Crier was fworn. ]
And we call him to prove, That Mr. Braddon
had Notice the Boy had difowned this Matter,

Mpr. Sol. Gen, You hear the Quettion, Sir, pray
acquaint my Lord and the Jury, what you know
of this Boy’s Examination before the Council, and
this Gentleman’s having Notice the Boy dil-
owned the Thing,

Myr. Monfievens. My Lord, About 5or 6 Days
after my Lord of Effx had murdered himfelf
in the Tower, 1 faw Mr. Braddon at the Secre-
tary’s Lodgings, my Lord Sunderland’s Lodgings
at Whiteball, with a young Woman, and a Boy
about 12 or 13 Years old. The Boy was juft
now in Court, T faw him there. He came to
me, and told ine, he had earneft Bufinefs to
fpeak with my Lord Swrderland, That he came
from Sir Henry Capell, and he told me, he came
with an Information, that the Boy had given
relating to the Earl of Effex’s Death, (The In-
formation [ believe is in Court.) He gave me
the Information, and I read 1t, and I remem-
ber there was fomething in the Information of
a Razor thrown out of a Window, a bloody
Razor thrown out of my Lord Effex’s Window,
and after I had read the Information, I told
Mr. Bradden, 1 wonder Sir FHenry Capell had not
appeared himfelf in a matter of that Moment,
wherein the Reputation of his Family was fo
much concerned ; and 1 took the liberty to tell
him, That I believed 1f Sir Henry Capell had
thought that to be true, that was contained in
that Paper, he would doubtlels have come to
my Lord Sunderland himfelf. "Thereupon he told
me, That Sir Heury Capell had not been well,
and did not ftir abroad. Then [ told Mr. Brad-
don again, as I very well remember, ‘That I was
confident he had been abroad lately, and had
been to wait upon the King, fince the Death of
my Lord of Effex. Then, my Lord, he had
little or nothing to fay to that, but he faid,
what he did he was obliged to do in Confci-
ence, and out of the Daty he owed to the Me-
mory of my Lord of Effex. Upon that, my
Lord Sunderland came by, and I went with him

Paper, as I fuppofe, which Iread, and my Lord
Sunderland took the Information, and afterwards
Mr. Braddon was committed in Cuftody, and
then the thing was brought before the King,
and the Lords of the Council, which My, Blaté-
waite has given you an account of.

Mr. At Gen. My Lord, I pray rhat 2 Word
of the Information may be read, we will frft
prove the Information taken by him, and then
call Sir Henry Capell, who will prove that he
never had any Order from him, as he faid he
had, but it was only his own bufy Inclinations.

Cl. of Cr. Thisis fubfcribed, #illiam Edwards.

L.C. ¥. Call the Boy in again,

M. Braddon. May | ask Mr, Monflevens a Que-
ftion, my Lord ¢

L.C.}. Ay, ask him what you will.

My, Bradden. Sir, Did not [ come to you the
Thurfday BEvening, and waited at the Dutchefs
of Porifinonth’s Lodgings, before I brought the
Boy and the Girl to #biiehall ?

My, Monfievens, No, I did not fee you there.

Mr. Bradden. You are politive in that, Sir?

Mr. Monfevens. Yes, 1 will rake my Qath
again of it, if you will.

My, Braddon. Then 1 will prove 1 was, and
that I faw you at Ten of the Clock that Morn-
ng.

Mr, Monftevens. 1 remember, my Lord, very
well, That T was furprifed to fee him at the
Lodgings at Whitehall, 1 never faw him, to
th?_ beft of my Remembrance, but once in my
Lite.

M. Braddon, What time was it, pray, you
firft faw me?

Mr. Monftevens. It was in the Afternoon, as ]
remember,

L.C.¥. Hark you, young Man, do yon know
my l.ord Gerard?

William Edwards. Yes,

L.C. J. Which Lord Gerard do you know ?

William Edwards. My Lord Brandom Gerard,

L. C. . How came you to krow him ?

William Edwards, By fight I know him,

L. C. . Do you know where he lodged in the
Tower ?

William Edwaids. Yes.

L.C. ¥ Where!

IWilliass Edwards. At one Mr. Sans's.

L. C. J. Was you cver in his Lodging ?

William Edwards. No.

L. C. % Neveratall ?

William Edwards. No,

L.C. 5. Did you never tell any body you
were in my Lord Brandon Gerard's Lodgings ?

William Edwards. Never in my Life,

L.C. 7. Did you never tell Braddon, that you
went to fee fus Lodgings ?

Wiliam Edwards. 1ntothe Houfe I never went,

L.C.f. Did you never tell Braddon, That
you went to fee my Lord Brandon Gerard's
Lodgings? Never in your life ?

IWilliam Eawards, No, Sir,

L. C. . Now read i,

Cl. of Cr. [ Reads, ]~ The Information of
William Edwards, {econd Son to Thoinas Edecards,
of the Parnith of Al-hallowws Barkin, Loudon, tuk-
en the 18th Day of Fudy, in the 3sth Year of
the Reign of our Sovereign Lord King Charles
IL. Ao 1083, fays: That this Informant on Fii-
day toe 134 of this infrant July, as be was going
10

&
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10 School, with bis Brother Edward, be beard
that His Majefty, and His Royal Highnefs the.
Duke of York, were going to the Tower, Where-
upon this Informant left bis Brother, and went to
the Tower 2o fee His Majefly, and His Royal
Highnefs. And when this Informant bad feen His
Majefy and bis Royal Highnefs, this Inforiant
about nine of the Clock in the Moining of the fame
Day, went to fee wy Lord Brandon Gerard’s
Lodgings 5 and as this Informant was fandin g al-
molt over againft my Lord Gerard’s Lodgings, be-
rween the Lord Gerard’s and the late Lord of
Efiex’s Lodgings, this Informant faw a Hand caft
out a bloody Razor ont of the faid Earlof Effex’s
Lodgings.  And this Informant was going to take
up the faid Razor, which be faw on the Ground to
be bloody, but before this Informamt caime to the
Razor, theve came @ Maid rumning out of Captain
Hawley’s Hounfe, where the [aid Lord of Eflex
lodped, and took up the faid Razor, which fbe car-
ried into the faid Captain Hawley’s Houfe, And
this Informant believes that it was the faid Maid,
awho be firft beard cry ont Murder.  /nd this In-
formant further faith, That be beard the f[aid
Naid fay to fome which were about the Daor, after
the Murder was cry’d, That fbe did hear the faid
Lord of Eflex to groan three times that Morning.
The Father, three Sifers, and Brother will fwear,
That the faid Willam Edwards did declare the
Subftance of this Information to them on Friday
the 13th Inflant, and never i the leaft denied it
till Tuelday afier, when being chid and threat-
ned by the eldeft Sifter, be did deny it, but foou
after confffed it, and fizned it in the Prefence of
Jrve or fix Witnefjes.

Mr. Fuit. t-ithins, Thus you fee, he perfuad-
ded him to tell a fine Story of going o fee my
Lord Brandon Gerard’s Lodgings, but the Boy

never told any {uch thing,.

L. C 7. No, he never told hun a Word of

it, he fwears.
Mr, Att Gen. My Lord, Your Lordihip has

heard from Mr. Moenfrcvens, That this Gentle-
man Mr, Braddon made ule of the Name of an
honourable Perfon Sir Hemry Capell, and fo at
the Secretary’sand at Edwards’s Houfe, made ofe
of the Name of my Lady Effex. We fhall now
call Sir Henry Capell. [Who was fwoern)] Six
Henry Capell, Will you pleafe to give an ac-
count, whether ever you employed this Gen-
tleman Mr, Bradden abour any fuch Bufinefs as
he has here undertaken ?

Sir H. Capell 1hope you will give me as fhort
a Difpatch as you can, Sir, for *ts very uneafy for
me to be here 1n this Crowd.

Air, Sol. Gen. We give you fome trouble, Sir
Henry, but indeed us not we, but this Gentle-
man, that has been pleafed to ufe your Nume,
has neceflitated it.

M, Att, Gen, We ask you a fhort Queftion,
Whether you employed M:. Braddon 1o go to
Mr. - Edwards’s Houfe or to the Secretary’s, or
any where elfe to profecute this Matter of your
Brother’s Death ?

Sir H. Capell. My Lord, I know very little of
Mr. Braddon. He was to {peak with me twice.
‘The firft time he took me in very great Difor-
der, both as to the Circumftance of Time and
Place, which are {o tender with me, that truly [
cannot exprefs, nor do [ very well know what 1
did fay, or what he faid to me; but the fecond
ttme he came to me, I do very well remember
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what I did fay. And that which I did fay the
fecond time is the moft material Thing I "have
to fay in the matter., He came to me and
fpake of fuch a Bufines as the Court is well
apprized of already, (1 hope you will pardon
me if I do not repeat it,) I made Aniwer to
bim, Mr, Bradden, 1 am under great Grief and
under a great Burden of Bufinefs in my pri-
vate Family, whatfoever you have to fay in the
matter, 1 defire you would go to a Secretary
of State and acquaint him with it. This is
the moft material thing that was faid that T re-
member.,

#r. Ait. Gen, But you never employed him to
go about to profecute any fuch thing ? |

Mr. Fult. Withins. Siv Henry, Pray anfwer me,
Did you defire him to go 10 Edwards’s Houfe
and ask him any Queftions about it?

Sir H. Capell. 1 know nothing of Edwards,
nor his Houie at all.

Mr. Bradden. Siv Heiry Capell, Will you pleafe

to let me ask you one Queftion? Do you not

remember 1 came to Effex-Houfe on the Aouday
Night, and that I came and told you of fuch a
Report, and that I had not been with the Fa-
ther of the Boy as yet, but if you would then
fend one with me 1 would go, and in his Pre-
fence examine the Boy, and you, Sir, promi-
fed me that you would 3 and whether you did
not appoint me to tarry at fuch a Place, where
you promifed to fend one to goalong with me?

Sir H. Capell. My Lord, 1 have a grofs Idea
of that which he fpeaks of concerning his hav-
ing one to meet him, and chat I told him fuch
an one fhould meet him, and the Perfon did
defire to be excufed, and I did excufe him, and
fo he did not go; upon which this Gentleman
Mr. Bradden came to me the fecond time, which
was after Dinner, and [ direCted him to go 10 a
Secretary of State and acquaint him with what
he had to fay in the Bufinefs,

M. Bradden. Did not you promife, Sir, to
fend one to me to go with me, and defired me to

meet at fuch a Place?
Sir H. Capell, 1 remember no more but what I

have faid.

Mr. Braddon. Upon the Oath you have taken,
Siv Henry Capell, 1 defire you would recolleét
your Memory, whether you did not promife me
in the Morning to meer at fuch a Place, and
was not I twice with you that Day 2

Sir H. Capell. Sir, I know no more,

Mr. Juft. Withins, Do you think Sir Hesry
Capell would forfwear himfelt, Mr. Braddon ?

M. Braddsn. My Lord, I only defire him to
recollect his Memory. -

Sir H, Capell. Only I do farther remember, he
feemed to be very willing to go to the Secretary
of State,

Mr. A, Gen. And if he had acquiefced there
he had done very well, and there had been no
farther Trouble.

M. Fones. But that was not the Way he 1n-
tended, that would not do his Work.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Pray, Mr. Blathwaite, do you
sive my Lord and the Jury an account, whether
this Information was ever carried before any Jui-
tice of Peace in order to have 1t {worn before
him, and the Circumf{tance of 1t.

Mr. Blathwaite. My Lord, 1 do very well re-
member, when this information was before the
King, and was thew’d to Mr. Braddo, he there

confefs’d,
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confefs’d, That he had gone about to find fome
Juftice of Peace to take it upon Oath, He na-
med Sir Rebert Clayton, and Sir Fobn Lawrence,
And I do very well remember, and *tis upen
my Minutes, That he confefled that Sir Robers
Clayton, being asked by him to take the Infor-
mation in private, alone without Company, be-
ing by Sir Robert Clayton refuled to take it un-
lefs he might take it more publickly, and Sir
Robert Clayton refufing to take it alone, in pri-
vate, he would not let him take it at all, but
went away with it. I remember this for Sir
Robert Clayton, and 1t may be Mr. Braddon may
remember the fame of Sit Fobn Lawrence, but I
can’t tell that,

My, At, Gen. My ILord, now we are come
to the 2oth of Fwly, when this Bulinels was
heard before his Majefty, and the Boy decla-
red it was a Lye, and then he had full notice
it was a Lye. DBut after this Mr. Spekeand he
confult together, and he muft be fent as an
Emiffary into the Country to pick up Informa-
tions and Evidences, and with this, and {ome
other Informations in his Pocket, to poffe(s the
People, that the Government had murdered my
Lord of Effex. And ke muft be fent I know
not how far, as if the farther he went from
London the better Intelligence he was like to
have of a thing done at the Tower, The Juftice
of Peace that took him was {fummoned, but 1s
fince dead. But we will call the Perfons that were
prefent when he was taken, where is Mr, Beech ¢
[ He was ficorn.] Mr. Beech, Will you acquaint
the Court and the Jury with the manner of ap-
prehending this Gentleman, and what Papers
were found about him ?

Mr. Beech. My Lord, I was prefent when
Mr. Bradden was apprehended in #ilfhire, and
feveral Papers were found upon him, -and upon
Examination he was commitied to the County
Goal, and from thence removed by Habeas Cor-
pus hither up to London. T have Copies of all
the Papers thar were taken about him, which
I examined with the Originals, The one was
the Copy of a Letter fent by one Speke to Sir
Robert Adtkyns, and there were other Papers in
the nature of Informations; another was a Let-
ter to one Cumptenn, Polt-mafter at Frome. Mr.
Braddon upon his Examination faid, his Bufinefs
was to inquire after the Murder of the Earl of
Effex, and that one Mr. Busgis had fent him a
Letter to this purpofe, That it was reported at
Frome that very Day the Earl of Effex cut his
own Throat, that he had fo done, the News
of which could not fo {oon come down thi-
ther.

Mr. At. Gen, Pray fpeak out, Sir, Tell us
what his Bufinefs he faid, was, and as to the
Tetters he had about him, tell us whar he
faid.

Mr. Beech. He told me, that he had a Letter
from one Mr. Burgis of Marlborough, to go to
one Cumpten at Freme, who is Poft-mafter there,
to inquirc about a Report, that it was faid was
reported in Ffjﬁme, tl‘{t‘. 13th Day of Fuly, the
fame Day the Earl of Efex murdered himfelf,
that he was murdered. Mr., Bradden had that
Letter about him. I went afterwards to that
Cumpten at Frome, he faid, he never heard any
thing of it, or that there was any Noife of the
Earl of Effex’s Murder, until the Smiday follow-
ing, which was two or three Days after. From
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thence I went to my Lord Weymonth, a Perfon
of Quality that lives near Frome, and acquainted
his Lordthip with it, and he then faid that
he had an Account on the Sunday of my Lord
of Effex’s Murder, and he believed that was one
of the firft Letters of it that was in the Coup-
try.

M. Sol. Gen. Are thefe the Papers you found
about him, Sir ?

Mr. Beech. 1 examined thefe Copies with the
Originals, and they were true Copics.

Mr. At. Gen. Well, put them 1n,

Myr. Beech, Truly, Mr. Braddon gave a very

11l account of his Journey to thofe that did exa-
mine him.

Mr. At. Gen. Pray look upon
are the Originals.

Mr. Beech. One Colonel Airs was the Juftice
of_ Peace, before whom Mr, Braddm was exa-
mmed, and by whom he was committed, he
is ﬁqcc dead, but I do believe this was the
((?rigmal Letter chat was taken about My, Biad-
104, -

L. G, 7. Do you believe that was the Ori.
ginal ?

Mr. Beech. Tdo, I have a true Copy of i,

- Mr. 4. Gen, Befides, We will prove it other-
wile to be Mr. Speke’s Hand, Tt was proved
by Mr. Blathwaite that Mr., Speke upon his Exa-
mination cid own i, what fay you, Mr. Blath-
wajle ?

Mr. Blatbwaite. He did own it, and fid in
thele Words, as I remember, he believed it to he
his Hand, .

Mr. 4t, Gen. What, that Paper ?

Mr. blathwaite. Yes, and I have put my Hand
upon 1t, that it was owned by him.

é C. 7. Read 1t.

.of Cr. This is {ubfcribed by Hugh S$pe
and dated Lowudsn, Lincolns-Iun, /z"zi;rfyl 1%5:&, f%g ;,
Wednefday Night Ten o’clock, and directed, For
the Ever-Honouied Sir Robert Atkyns, Knight of
the Bath, at his Houfe at Netherfivell near Stow
oit the Old 7n Gloucefterfhire,

thofe Papers that

Honoured Sir,
HE Bearcr hereof is one My, Braddon, «

very boueft Gentleman, whofe Father bas at
leaft Eight Hundred per Ann. 1z Cornwall; It
Jeeins 1 is bis Fate 1o be the only Perfon that fal-
lews, and profecutes the Murder of the Earl of
Eflex, and be bas made a very confiderable Difeovery
already of 1t, notwithflanding the hard Streai be rows
agaift, as toings fand and are carried on at prefont.
But indeed I think it conld never have fallen on fo fir
a Man, for be bas been a very bard Student, and
is a Perfon of a very good Reputation, Life and
Converfation, and has a great deal of Prudence,
and bas as mnch Couraze as any one living wha-
Joever. He went away on a fudden bence Poff to-
wards Marlborough 10 make fame farther Difio-
very, and what be bas difeovered be will give you
a full Account, and of all the Tranfations hitherto
about it. I lent b my Man 1o go with him for

fear be fhould come to any Mifchicf, for mof bere

Jear be will either be flabbed or knockd on the bed,
if be do uot lake great care of bimfelf's feeing he
came inlo thefe Parts, I thought it ot amifs 1o po
and advife with you bow be bad beft to proceed i it,
and I did charge bim not 1o let any body koo wwhe
be was, that it might not be knowi that be bad beey
with you 5 for I would not for the whole Warld that

you



1682.B.R.  H.Speke, for 4 Mildemeancur.

yois fliould come to any Prejudice in the leaft for your
Kinduefs towards us. For we lobour under many
Difficulties as the Tide rins at prefent,

Pray call Mr. Braddon &y ¢be Naine of Johnfon

wnhen be is with you, I bave given bim the fanmie

Tiesn. We bope we cai bring on the Earl of Ellex’s

Murder on the Stage, before they can any of thofe in
she Tower to a Trial. He being in great bafte, 1

Lave not time to write more, but to affure that Mr.
Braddon is @ Perfon of that Iniegrity and Conrage
that 10 body needs fear to truft bfif:. Twas very wil-
ling that be fhould take your Aavice in tois Cafe
awhich is of fo gieat a Moiwent, feeing be came within
taenty or thirty Miles or thereabouts of your Houfe.
He will give you a full and clear Relation of every
thing in that Affair, and how hard they bave been
upon bim, Sir Henry Capell rold bim, thet it was
a thing toogrea! for bim, &c. All *wbzrf.? JW?‘.' Bm;l-
don (‘hat you are to call Johnlon whillt he is with
you at your Houfe) will give you a true Relation of.
My, Braddon hath been at a great Trouble and
Charge already about 1t I know few that would
bave ventured 1o bave undertaken this Affair befides
bimfelf, as Times go. Ireceived yours this Day, with
the great pains you took, aie the Letler to the Lady
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Mr. At. Gen. Did you fign it or mark it ? .
L. C. J. He may believe it to be without fign-
Ing,

Mr. Beech. 1 prefume Mr  Bradden will own it. .

Cl. of Cr. The Information of Mrs. Edwards,
Wite to Thomas Edwards, faith, That about 10 of
the Clock in the Morning on Friday the 131h of this
Lnftant July, this Informant’s yonugeft Son William
Edwards, aged about 13 Years, came trembling to
this Informant, and in great dazeinen: and Horrour

told this Informant, that the Lord Effex bad cuf
bis Throat in the Tovier, and further faid, That
be the faid William Edwards 71 the Morning about
niite of the Clock, did fee a Hand caft ont @ Rezor
ort of the foid Lord of Lflex’s Lodsing Window,
which Razor be faw on the Grownd to be bloody.
Apd the faid Willam Edwards was geing to take
up the faid Razor, but before be came to it, there
carite @ Maid rumning ot of Captain lawley’s Houfe,
where the faid Earl of Effex lodged, and ook up ihe
Razor which fhe the faid Maid forthrith carried
sitto the faid Captain Hawley’s Hovfe, and foen af-
ter be the fard William Edwards beard ber, as be
the feid Wilham Edwards did delicve, ey ont Muy-
der. And this Informant furher faith, That the Sub-

Rufiel, which finding unfealed, I fealed, <withont france of waich the fa:d Willam Edwards bath

looking into it, and carried it my felf : She returns
you ten thoxjand Thanks, and [ays, fhe knows not
what Return to make you for your moft extraordinary
Kinfs. I bave uot time to wrile any wore at
prefent by reafon that My, Braddon alias Johnfon,
frays only for this my Letter. 1 am, Sir,

Your moft obliged Friend
and moft humble Servant,

Hugh Speke,

T am writing @ Letter to fend 1o you by the
Carrier.

M. At. Gen, This Gentleman brings in Mr.
Speke to be the Author of all this Contrivance,
But we fhall prove to you, That at the fame
time this Letter was taken about him, this Gen-
slemman had others that were hkewife taken.
Thete Examinations, which I delire may be like-
wife read.

My, —— My Lord, 1 came iately from Sir
Robert Atkyns, Fle 1s an utter Stranger to all thie,

he is now in the Country and knows nothing of

1L,
L.C F. If they will ule his Name, I can’t
help I,

" My, —— My Lord, 1 would not have any
Reflexion upon him, for he knows nothing at all
of this matter.

Mr. Sol. Gen. The Letter was never recetved
by Sir Robert Atkyns, but taken before 1t came to
him,

Mr. At Gen. All the matter 1s, ’tis an un-
happy thing to be thought well of by fuch fort
of People. | _

L. C. ¥. I fee nothing of Sir Rebcrt Atkyns 1n
the Cafe, but only my Name 15 ufed, and notice
is taken of the great Obligations fome People
have to him, for his great Kindnefs to his
Triends.

Cl. of Cr. Here is an Information,

L. C.¥. Was this found about him too ?

Mr. Beech. Yes, 1 believe that 1s the very Pa-
per, I have no Copy of that Paper, but I well
- remember the Contents of 1t

Sworn i this Information, be the faid William

Edwards on Friday laft did declare to this Informnant
and ber whole Family, feveral times attefiing it to be
true, and feveral times fisce.

Cl. of Cr. Heres the Information of Williawm
Edwards tecond Son of Thomas Edwards,

Mr. Ar, Gen. That is the fame with what was
read already.

L.C.¥. Ay, that is the Boy’s Information.

C/. of G, Here is another, *us dated Auzuff the
8thy 1683. The Information of Jawe Lodeman,
aged about 13 Years, did in the Prefence of
thefe, whofe Names are here underwritten, de-
clare as followeth, That the faid Jane Lodeman
was in the Tower on Iriday Morning, the 13th of
July laff, end flanding alimgft over-agaiuft the late
Farl of Effex’s Lodging Window, fbe faw & Hand
caft out a Razor out of my Lord’s Window, and im-
ediately upon that fbe beard Shricks, aud that there
was a Soldier by my Loid’s Doory which cried out
1o thafe within the Houfe, that fanebody fhould come
and take up a Razor which was thrown out of the
Window, wher:upon there came a Maid with a white
Hirod out of the Houfe, but <who took up the Razor

Jhe can’t tell.

This is fubfcribed
John Boom, and
William Smith,

Cl. of Cr. Here 1s another Paper Auguft the
8thy 83. Mr. William Glasbrooke does declare,
That one Fane Lodenan, aged abouc 13 Years
inhabiting in the fame Houfe where he the faid
William Glasbrooke lodged, did on Friday the
19th of Fuly lalt paft, between the Hours of
10 and 11 in the Morning, in the Prefence and
Hearing of him the faid 7Zdliam Glasbrooke de-
clare to her Aunt, That the Eail of Effex had
cut his Throat, upsn which ber Aunt was very
angry with ber, wherenpon [z the faid Girl did
declare, that fhe was fure of ity for fhe fazo him
throw the Razor out of the Wdow, and that
the Razor was bisody, ond that fhe heard 1wo
Groaus or Shricks (which of the two Words [he
ufed, be the foid Wiilam Glasbrooke 75 mot cer-

las ;)
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tain ;) of this he the faid William Glasbrooke 7s
ready to make Qath.
"This is fublicribed
William Glasbrooke,
Margaret Swmith.

Mr. At. Gen, He carried his Stuff about him,
it feems, wherever he went.

L. C. 7. °Tis Swff indeed. Good God, what
an Agedo we livein!

Mr. At Gen. It 15 not taken upon Oath before
any Magiltrate, but cooked up to amufe the
Country, as if they were formal Informations.
Here is another Letter, Mr. Beech, was this Let-
ter found about him ?

Mr. Beech., Yes, this Letter was found about
him,

Mr. db. Gen. Itis from one Burgis, a Man of

the fame Kidney.

CY. of Cr. This 1s dire&ted for Mr. Cumpen at the
Dolphin at Frome, and °us fubfcribed Feremial
Burgis, and dated Marlb, O, 21.

Mr. Cumpen,

Y kind Love toyon. Thefe are to defire you
to call to mind, that T was in Frome the
6:h of July, being Friday, where I heard the Re-
port that the Earlof Eflex had cut bis own Thioat
L would defire you to inquire in'o ity fo know who

Sirft veported ity and give this Gentleman the truth of

(¢, And in fo doing you will oblize e, who am

oy Iriend,
Jeremiah Burgis.

My, Beech, Under favour, my Lord, This Let-
ter talks of a Report that was the 13th Day,
the very Day the Earl of Zffex murdered him-
felf, 1 went diredly to Frome and fpake with
this Curzpen, and he told me, he did not {peak
with Burgss nor fee him, nor was there any
fuch Report before the Swiday Morning., From
thence I went to my Lord WWsymeuth’s, as I told

ou.
’ Mr. At Gen. My Lord, We have gone through
our Evidence for the prefent, to {hew how this
Man has endeavour’d to fpread this Matter to
the Scandal of the Government. We fhall end
here at prefent to fee how he has improved his
Confidence, by what Defence he will make to
all this Proof. Afterwards, 1f there be Occa-
fion, We fhall give an Account of the Earl’s
Peath, how he murdered himfelf. And for
that we have a Cloud of Witnefles, though this
Gentleman has taken upon him fo much Confi-
dence as to contefl it.

L.C. ¥. That would be very fit, Mr. Attor-
ney, becaufe they have raifed 2 Doubt in fome
People’s Mind about 1.

Mr. At Gen. 1 thought it beft to referve i
till after I {fee what Defence he will make.

L. C. ¥ Take your time.

My, Wallop. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury, I am of Counfel
for Mr. Bradden and Mr, Speke, the Defendants
here. You fec what the Iflue 1s before you, Mr.
Speke and Mr. Braddon, they are in the In-
formation charged, Thart they did Confpire toge-
ther to make the People believe, ‘That whereas the
Earl of Effex murdered himfelf, and fo it was
found by the Inquifition, yet they would have

the People believe, that that Inquifition was taken
unduly, and that they did Conlpire to procure
falfe Witnefles to make thefe Things out, Now,
Gentlemen, the only Point that you are to in-
quire of, 1s this, Whether thefe two Gentlemen
did malicioufly, factioufly, and feditioufly fet thefe
Things on Foot, ‘This Report that the Earl
was murdered, or whether there were fuch Ip-
timations offcred to them accidentally and ca-
fually, withour Officioufnefs, or any of their
own feeking, that might induce a2 good Man,
or a wile Man to follow the Bulinefs upon
fuch Information given. For our Parts that are
for the Defendants, we fay this for our Clients,
we are not fo much to make any Men guilty of
this Murder, that is not our Bufineis, bur to
prove our own lnnocency and fair dealing in
this matter. Now, Gentlemen, if thefe rwo
Perlons had no Inducement to lead them on to
this, but did of their own heads, that is Crimi-
nal in thems buc if they had that which might
induce a wile and good Man, though they were
much miflaken, yet they are not to be found
Guilty of this Oljence that is charged on them.
I fhall leave it, Gentlemen, to you, who I que-
ftion not have obferved the Evidence that has
been given, and whole proper Work it is to
make your Judgment upon it. But in our De-
fcnce, the Steps we go are thefe, and we defire
you would pleafe to obferve them. Firft, we
fay, That the Report of this Murder was the
Day before, two or three Days before, and that
very Day, fo many Miles diftant from London,
that hearing of fuch a Report, we might very
calily be induced to make fome Inquiry after it}
and of this four Inftances we fhall give in the
Courie of our Evidence, that this wus a great
many Miles off Londsn talked of at the Day, and
immediately after the Day, before the News
could reach thofe Places, after the Fagt commit-
ted. Then we fhall proceed to thofe Paffiges con-
cerning the Boy, and produce Evidence to fet
forth the true State of that macter, That this Boy,
as he fays himfelf, did tell the Family this Story,
that very Day that my Lord murdered him-
felf, immediately upon his coming home. Now
this Original Story Is impoffible to be contrived
by Mr. Braddon, be it true or be it falfe. Then
Mr. Bradion coming into Effex, to Mr. Foans's
Houle at 77oxfieed, there what was faid by the
Boy was fpoken of. Then Mr. Bradden finding
this Information of the Boy, which he had given
merely of himfelf, and which contradicted the In-
quificion, and put him upon this Inquiry. Now
how far this Intimation has weight, “and may
bean Inducement to a good and a wife Man, as
I fay, that we muft leave to you. Bur befides
that, there is a Girl, a Stranger to the Boy, that
at the fame time, upon the maiter, and to this
fame Lffeét and Subftance, delivered fuch an
Kvidence, as might very well ferve to confirm
us in our Inquiry, and this is the Courfe of our
Ewvidence, in the Subftance of it. And we fhall
apply our felves to your Lordfhip and the Jury
atter the Ividence given, and make our Obfer-
vations upon 1t, and fubmit it to you, Gentle-
men,

Mr. Wiltiams. Will your Lordfhip pleafe to
{parc me one Word that is an Objeétion thar we
would make from the Record it felf, The In-
formation_ that does recite, That the Farl of
Effex was impirifoned in the Tower, and durilng

s
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his Imprifonment there, cut his own Throat,
and became Felo de fe.  And that there was an
Inquifition taken before fuch an one, before
Edward Farnbam Coroner of the Liberty of the
Jower: My Lord, I was not here when the In-
quifition was read, if I had I fhould have made
the Objection then, but this is that I fay, if we
can falfify that part of the Record, if there be
2 Miftake there, thatis, if Farnbam was not Co-
roner, then they tail m their Proof, and we muft
be found Not Guilty, for fo it 1s 1n the Informa-
tion.

L, C. 7. Itis fad to be before him as Coroner
of the Liberty.

Mr. Williams. Yes, my Lord, They recite that
he is Coroner, and that the Inquifinon was taken
before him as Coroner, and Mr. Biaddon know-
Ing; of it, did thus, and thus.

L. C.¥. Why, Is he not Coroner 2

Liv. Iiilliams. My Lord, 1 defire the Inquifi-
tion may be looked into, I cannot go to contradict
the Inquifition, but my Inftructions only are that
he is Deputy-Coroner, and 1f 1t be {o they are
miltaken m their Information.

CLof Gr. 1tis Corain Eduvorde Farakain Corona-
fore, -

M illiems. Then we can’t help it, But
there are thele Things that we fay to it, One
Part of the Information s, That we fhould go
about to perluade the People, that this Inquifi-
tion was not duly taken; another Part 1s, That
we did procure falle Witnefles to prove ir; now
what Proof is offered as to the Matter of per-
fuading the People, I muft fubmit to you, whe-
ther it be fuch as comes up to the Charge in the
Information, ‘There 1s fome kind of Proof, but
what it 15, youfee. Then for the other Matter,
which is the procuring of falle Witnefes, that,
under favour, I think I may affirm, That there
is no Froof at all of, That Mr, Braddon or Mr.
Speke didt procure falfe Witnefles.  Genclemen,
we [hall endeavour to acquit ourfelves of all, if
we cannot of all, yet of Part, elpecially that
Part which feems to be the moft Criminal, And
I mult needs fay, I have not heard any Proof of
procuring falfe Witneffes, by either of the De-
fendants. Then there 15 2 Third Thing charged,
and indeed m the Evidence there is fomething
that looks towards 1t, That he thould go about
by Papers, and otherwife to publith ir, That he
was a Perfon employed to profecute the Murder
of the Earl of Ijfiex. Now as to this Matter, all
I thall fay for wir. Bredden is this, It he have
done fomething more, it may be by a Tranfport
~of Zeal, than became him, that muft be fub-
mitted Low far it is Criminal, If he did what
did not become a mighty wife and difcreet Man
yet if he did what became a rational Man of
ordinary Capacity to do, if he had this Infor-
mation, and fo many other Informations, and
he did fearch innocently a little into it, if he
did not do it Seditioufly and Factioufly with an
il Mind, we hope there is no fuch great Harm
done. And indeed, Gentlemen, his Mind is to
be try’d in this matter, And ’tis an hard mat-
ter to try a Man’s Mind, guo ainmoe, a Man did
fuch an Acton; that he did it, there is fome
Sort of Evidence, but if he did 1t not out of an
il Principle, and with an evil Intention, then,
under Favour, we take it he 18 Not Guilty of
this Information. And we fhall endeavour to
make it out thus, This Gentleman hearing of

You. IIL
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this Report of the Boy, makes his Application
firlt to Sir Henry Capell, who was a Perfon well
known, to be nearly related to this unfortunate
Lord, the Earl of Effex, and he tells him what
Information he had received. Sir Henry Capell
puts him into an excellent Courfe, and defires
him to go and inform the Secretary of State,
and he did fo, and if he had gone only this way,
all that he had done had been innocent. Then
the matter i1s only this; He has gone a little
out of the way, and has taken fome Informati-
ons and Examinations in Writing : Why, though
he has gone a Step or two awry, yet if it was
with a Defign to prepare the Matrer the better
for the Secrerary, by laying thefe Papers before
him, we hope there 1z no Crime; it we did it
not Seditioufly, but only with an Intention,
That Ir. Sccretary might receive 2 more clear
and full Informadon s I hope the Jury will ac-
quit us.

L. C. J. You fay well. Come, prove your
Maiter,

Mr. Thompfon. Call Mr, Fielder, and Mors.
Mewx, and Mr, Lewes,

Lewes appeared.

Crier. Lay your Hand on the Book.,

Lewies, My Lord, I defire my Charges may be
paid, before I Swear.

L. C. J. Pr’ythee, what have I to do with thy
Charges? I won’t make Bargains between you.
If you have any Evidence to give, and will give
it, do; if not, ler it alone,

Lewes. My Lord, I fhall not give any Evi-
dence *tll I have my Charges.

L. C. . Mr. Braddon, If you will have your
Witnefles - fwear, you muft pay them their
Charges.

Mr. Braddon. My Lord, I am ready to pay it,
I never refufed it; but what fhall I give him ?

L. C.F. Nay, Iam notto make Bargains be-
tween you, agree as you can.

Mz, Thompfon. My Lord, we are willing to do
what is reafonable, You, Lewes, What do you
demand?

Leawes. He can’t give me lefs than Six Shillings
a Day.

L. C. 7. Why, where doft thou live?

Lewes. At Marlborough.

L. C. 7. Why, cantt thou earn Six Shillings a
Day by thy own Labour at Marboreugh ?

Lewes. My Lord, I am at Forty Shillings or
Three Pound a Week Charge with my Family
and Servants.

L. C. 7. What Trade art thou?

Lewes. A Stapler.

L.C. ¥ And does your Trade ftand ftill while
you are here In Town?

Lewes. Yes, to be fure 1t can’t go well on.

L.C. 7. Well, 1 fay that for you, you value
your Labour high enough, I know not what your
Evidence may be; but, Mr. Braddon, you muft
pay your Witnefs, 1t you will have him,

M. Bradden. 1 will, my Lord, very readily.
What will you have? I have paid you fomething
already.

Lewes. Give me Twenty Shillings more then.
You can't give me lefs,

qhen M. Braddon paid bim Twenty Shillings, and
he was Swori. |
5T

LCY.
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L.C. 7. Well, what do you ask him, Mr. Thausp-
Jon? | |

M. Thompfon. We ask him, What Report he
héard of the Earl of Effes’s Death, and when 2

L. C. 7. What is your Nameé, Friend?

Lewes, Lewes.

L.C. ¥. Well, whatis it you fay ?

Lewes, My Lord, as I was riding up Husband,
within three or four Miles of Audover ——

Mr. Wallsp. How many Miles is that off of
London ?

Lzwes. Fifty-two.

Mr. Wallop. Well, go on.

Lewes. Between the Hours of Three and Five,
but it is fo long ago that I cannot exactly tell the
certaln time 3 a Man asked me what News 1 heard
in the Country, I told him, I heard none.  Says
he, I hear the Earl of £/fex has cut his Throat:
It was upon a Fiiaay in the Summer, 1 forget the
Day of the Month, I can’t tell whar Month 1t was
certainly.

Myr. Thointfoy, What Day of the Week was
it ?

Lewes. 1 remember 1t was upon a Fiuday.

Mr. Thempfzn, Can’t you rtell what Menth it
was’?

Lewes, 1 can’t tell what Month it was, 1t was
in the Summer [ krow,

My, Bradion, My Lord, 1 defire to ask him a
Queltion.

L.C. % Do, if youwll: Ask him what you
will. .

M. Braddri. Did not you go to Merlbereugh
on the Saturaay ? |

Lewes, 1 did go to Marlberongh the next Day,
which was Saturday.

My. Bradiden, 1 defire to know of him, whe-
ther he did meet with the News of it there
then ?

Lewes. My Lord, as to that, when I came
Home, my Ncighbours asked me if I had heard
any News? [ told them, fays I, T hear the Farl
of £ffex hatn ¢ his Throat, Why when did
vou hear it, fay they ? I heard it Yelterday, faid
I Sad they, lt was done but Yelterday, how
could you hear 1t {o foon?  Thar isall I have to
fay, my Lord.

Mr. Wiliiass. By the beit Conje@ure you can
make, was 1t that very Day the Earl of E/féx cut
his Throat ?

Lewes, Tdo not know that ever any fuch Man
cut his Throat, but this I heard, and T tell you
the Timeas well as1 can,

Mr. Williains. Then, pray, let us have our Mo-
ney agan.

L. C. 7. Thou art well pud, I will fay that for
thee,

My, Williams. Where 1s Mr, Fielder ¢ Swear
him, [ Which was done. ] Pray, Sir, what
did you hear, and when, of the Earl of Effex’s
Death? _

Mr. Fielder. The Wednefday and the Thurfiay
of the fame Week that the Earl of £Jfex cut his
Throat, 1t was reported 1n our Town of Andsver,
that he had fo dome. The Women, as tiey came
in and out of the Town, talkéd of it one to ano-
gher.

L.C. 7 What was talked of that /educflay
and Thurfday ?

My, Fielder, That my Lord of Effes cut his
Throat in the Tewer.

My, Fuft. Withins, What, before he had cut
his Throat?

M. Fieldir, Yes,

Mr. Fuft, Withins, That is very ftrange in
deed.

L. C. §. Lord, what a Story is here!

Mr. Williams. My Lord, if you pleafe, 1 will
tell you what Ule we would make of it, ~—

L. C % Iknow what Ule you would make of
it, the Ute is juft the fame, as you make ufe of all
forts of ridiculous and fhamming Stories, to fet
us together by the Ears, and rake into all the
Dunghils that can be, to pick up Matter to put
us into Confufion,

My, Williams, Bat, my Lord, if there was fuch
a Report fo long before s

L. C. F. Mr. Williams, you were here in Town
at that time, I am fure,

Mr. Williams. My Lord, | heard it at Eleven
o’clock that Day, that is the fooneft I heard
1T,

L.C. 7. What an Age do we live in! What
Stuff is here picked np, on purpofe to kindle the
Fire, and fet us all tnto a Flame!

Alr. Att. Gen. What Day of the Month was it,
Fielder, upon your Oath ?

My, Fielder. 1 did not mind the Day of the
Month, I can’t tell that,

Mr. Sol. Gen. How do you know it was that
Week ?

My, Fielder. Becaule on the Saturday Night that
Week, we had the certain News of it,

Mz, Sol. Gen. You fay fomebody told you then
of it on Saturday ¢

My, Fielder. Yes, on Saturday we had certain
News of It

Mr. §ol. Gen. Who gave you the certain Intel-
ligence?

M. Fielder. Some Clothicrs,

My, Williams. Was Gadbery your Country-
man ?

L.C. F. Ay, prythee ask him that, whether
Ga:ibury told it him, or Erra Paier, 1f you will,

My, Ast. Gen. From what Market-People was
1t reported ?

Mr., Fielder, Some Women,

Mr. A, Gen, It was only Women’s Stories
then ?

Mr. Fielder, Yes, they talked of it among
themielves,

M. Azt Gen, Was it the Forcnoon or the Af-
ternoon f

Mr, Fielder. The Fednzfiday and Thurfday both,
ic was the common Talk of the Town all Day
long,

1%[?',. Jup. Withins, Name one that fpake it to
you

Mr. Att, Gen. Ay, name one of any Credit, if
you can.

ir, Fielder. 1 cannot, it was the Women as
they came in and out of my Shop, and as they
went up and down the Town.
~ Mr. Wallop. My Lord, we leave it with your
Lordfhip and the Jury, He fwears he then heard
fuch a Reporrt,

Mr. Juff. Withins. Do you believe this, Mr.
Wallop, yourfelf? You are a Man of Ingenuity,
I appeal to you,

Ar. Wallop, 1 believe that Mr, Bradden in his
Proiecution of this Matter, went upon the ground
of this Report, for he had heard the like Evi-

dence
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dence was given In my Lord Stafford’s Trial,
about the News of Sir Edmundbury Godfrey’s be-
ing killed, before it was known here what was be-
come of him, and that perhaps mifled him, if he
be mifled.

Mr. Fufp. Withins. Do you believe that this
Man can fpeak Truth, when he fays it was report-
ed all about their Town, for two Days before it
was done, and yet can’t name one [erfon that
ipake 1t?

Mr. Fielder. 1 keep a publick Shop, and don’t
take notice of every one that comes in and out,
to remember particularly.

Mr. Fuft. Withins. You heard it up and down
the Town you fay, furely you might remember
fomebody.

Mr. Wallop, He might hear it, and not take
notice of one, but it was the common Ifame at
Andover,

Mr. Williams. Letitgoasitwill, Your Lord-
thip and the Jury hear what he fays ——

L.C.7. Bur, under Favour, Mr Williams, it
ought not to pafs fo ealily; 'tisa Contrivance to
deceive the King’s Subjetts, and fhews a Defign
to pick up Evidence to amufe the unwary, and fill
their Heads with Fears and Jealoufies of I know
not what.

Mr. Wallop. My Lord, I would excufe my Cli-
ent from Malice as well as ever I can, and there-
fore we produce thefe Witneffes, to thew what
grounds he had for what he did.

M. Williams, We will next call fome Women
that live near the Zower, that might give him
fome occafion for his concerning himfelf in this
Buofinefs, Fane Lodeman, and Margaret Smith.
This Voice and Rumour in the Country, made
him to go into the Country, but it fhews he was
no Contriver of the Report.

M. Att, Gen. 1 would fain know of Fielder,
when he told Mr. Braddon of this,

Mr. Braddon. My Lord, 1 defire the Family of
the Edwards’s may be called.

L.C. 7. Name them, Who are they? How
can we tell who your Witneffes are ¢

Mr. Braddon. Crier call them, Mrs. Edwards,
and her Daughter. 'Will your Lordfhip give me
leave to make my own Defence ?

L.C.J. Ay, if youwill, but then take notice
your Counfel are difcharged from making any De-
tence for you.

My, Braddon. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury, Thefe were the In-
ducements following, that put me upon engaging
in this Matter.

Mr. Ait, Gen. Call your Witnefles firft, and then
fpeak,

My, Braddon, NMr. Edwards, and Mrs. FEdwards.

[#Who came iizto Court,

Mr. Juft. Withins. Pray, Mr. Braddon, anfiver
me this one Queltion. 'What was the Matter that
encouraged you to proceed after you knew the Boy
had denied 1t, and faid it was all a Lye?

Mi. Braddon. 1 was bound to anfwer to an In-
formation after I had been examined at the Coun-
cil; I had not otherwife ftirred in it again.

L.C.}. Well, What do youask Edwards?

M. Bragdon. What Day was the firft Day I faw
you, and had Difcourfe with you, and what was
the Difcourfe I had with you?

Mr. Edwards. It was the Seventeenth of Fuly.

Mpr. Braddon. What did you tell me then that
your Boy reported?

Vou, Il
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M. Edwards. 1 told you what 1 acquainted the
Court withal before, that the Boy had brought
Home {uch a Report. '

Mer. Braddon. Had the Boy ever denied it before
I faw you?

Mr, Edwards. That Day you came to {peak
with me aboutit, as I was informed by my Wife
and my Daughter, the Boy did deny i,

Mr. Braddon. Was it before I came, or after [
came that he denied it ?

My, Edwards. 1t was after you came,

Mpr. Braddon. What were the Inducements that
made him to deny 1t ?

L. C. 7. He tells you himfelf, becaufe it was
falfe

M, Braddon. 1 defire the elder Sifter Sarak
Edwards may be called.

Mp. Wallop. 1t 1s apparent the Boy did affirm
It ———

L.C. %' 1 thought Mr, Bradden would have
made his Defence himielf, Mr, Wallsp, but you
will be breaking in upon him with your Remarks.
Make your Remarks by and by, this is 2 T'ime
for Evidence.

Mr. Wallop. My Lord, I only fay this, *Tis
apparent the Boy did firlt affirm it, and we fhall
{hew how he came to deny it

L. C. F. *Tis not proper for you to make Re-
marks, when you are examining your Witneffes ;
but when you {fum up, You may take what Notes
you will, and referve them *ull that time, but do
not break in upon the Evidence,

Cricr. Here 1s Sarab Edwards now,

[P o was fwors.

My, Att, Gen. This 1s not the Sifter, this is the
Mother of the Boy.

L. C.#. Well, what do you ask her?

My, Braddes. What Difcourfe had you with
your Boy about Ten of the Clock that Fridey

Morning 1 met you?
Mrs, Edwards. 1 had no Difcourfe, but what

my Child told me.

Mr. Bradden. What did your Child tell you?

Mprs. Edwards. I gave an Account to my Lord-
Keeper, he had it in Writing, I gave himan Ac-
count in Writing.

My, Braddon. But you are now called upon your
Oath, and are to fpeak the Truth, and muft give
an Account to his Lordfhip and the Jury upon
your Oath, what it was the Boy told you.

Mprs. Edwards. What was 1t, Sir, he came and
told me? Why, the Boy told me, Mothet, fays
he, 1 have been at the Tower, and feen the King’s
Majefty, and his Royal Highnefs, and, fays he, the
Earl of Ejfex has cut his Throat; and Lord, Mo-
ther, fays he, and wept. Lord, Child, faid I, I
am afraid you are going to make fome Excule to
me, that 1 fhould not beat you, being you have
play*d Truant; no, Mother, fays he, I did not,
He continued in this for a little while, and then

afterwards did deny it

My, Bradden. What did he deny ¢

Mrs. Edwards. What he had fud to me.

M. Bradden. Did he deny that he had been
at the Zower? Or that the Earl of Effex had cut

his Throat?
Mrs. Edwards., No, he denied what he faid he

faw.
My Bradden, “What was that?
Mrs. Edwards. He faid, He faw an Hand out

of a Window, and a Razor fell down, and he
went to take it up, and there came out 2 Wo-
5T 2 man,
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man, or 2 Maid, a fhort fat Woman came out,
and took it up, and went in again.
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My, Sol. Geir. She fays, the Daughter did tell
the Son that he muft {peak the Truth, and not tell

Mr. Wallop. And he faid this crying and a Lye to fave his Breech, for there had been 2

weeping you fay?

]lgr.r.g gdwargx. Yes, he did fo.

My, Braddon. Did he deny it before fuch time
as I had been there?

Mprs. Edwards. No, you was once at my Houfe
before, and {pake to my Husband, and then you
came the fame Day again,

Mr. Braddoen. Pray, what was the Dilcourfe
your eldeft Daughter had with the Boy between
the time of my firft coming, and the time of my
fecond coming ?

L. C. 7. *Tis imgoffible for her to anfwer any
fuch Queftion, what Difcourfe two other People

had.
Myr. Att, Gen. Bring the Daughter herfelf, and

let her tell,

L. C. 7. Hark you, Mrs. Edwards, before you
go, The Boydened it, it feems, ntwo or three
Days after he had given out fuch a Report ¢

Alrs. Edwards, Yes, my Lord, he did,

L. C. #. How came he to deny it ?

Mis. Edwards. 1 will tell you how, When
this Gentleman came and acquainted my Hus-
band with his Bufinefs, 1t put us all into a great
Damp; and my Husband faid, Now both my
Boys were gone to School, and fays he, after
the Gentleman was gone, to my Daughter §a-
rab, Don’t you {fay any thing to your Brother
when he comes in, but let him alone, and we
will talk to him. So with that fhe was fo
orievoufly affrighted, and fo amazed, that as foon
as he came 1n, the faid, prythee, Billy, deal truly,
and don’t you tell any Lye to fave your Breech,
for here has been a Gentleman to inquire fome-
thing about what you faid ; why, Sitler, fays he,
will any thing of Harm come? Truly, Child,
fays fhe, I don’t know, and upon that he did
deny it.

L. C. 7 Did you tell Mr. Braddon he had de-
nied 1t ¢

Mrs. Edwards. He was told he had dented it.

L. C. ¥. Dud you tell Mr. Braddon, before the
Paper was {igned, that he did deny 1t?

Mrs. Edzards. Yes, my Lord, he knew that
before the Paper was figned.

M. Bradden. Mrs. Edwards, Did not the Boy
come to you, and cry out, he thould be hang’d,
and then did deny it 2

Myrs. Edwaids. Yes, that he did.

M. Braddon, From whence did he come, that
he was 1n {uch a Fright ?

Mrs, Edwards, 1 can’t tell that, Sir.

Mpr. Braddon. Did not your eldeft Daughter
chide him and threaten him ?

Mrs, Edwards, Yes, fhe did bid him fpeak
the Truth.

M. Att. Gen, And then he denied it ?

Mrs., Edwards. Yes.

L.C. 7. Ay, fays fhe to him, Billy, do not, to
fave thy Breech, tella Lye, but fpeak the Truth;
why then, fays he, the Truth of 1t 1s, there was
no fuch Thing.

My. Braddon. My Lord, fhe fays it was after
his Sifter had chid and threatned him,

M. Sol. Gen. You are a little too fierce upon the
Woman, Mr, Braddom, you do not obferve what

fhe fays.
L. C. F. Yes, he is wonderful zealous, flourifh-

ing his Hands, s—————

Gentleman to Inquire about it; Why, fays the
Boy, will there come any harm of it? 1 don’t
know, fays his Sifter; Why then, fays he, I tell
you the Truth, there was no fuch thing.

L.C. 7. Ay, when fhe engaced him to tell the
Truth, and not Tell a Lye to fave his Breech, then
the Truth comes out.

Mr. Braddon. Pray call Sarab Edwards the
Daughter. My Lord, they told me in the Houfe
that the had frighted him into a Denial.

L. C. 7. Pray, good Sir, how came you to be
a Juftice of Peace, and to turn Examiner? You
live in the Zemple, or belong to the Temple, howr
come you to take Examinations here in Loudon,
but that fome People are [0 very zealous and offi-
cious in Matters that concern them not, on pur-

pole to ratfe a Duft ?

Tioen Sarah Edwards tbe Zounger was frworn,

Ar. Braddon. Did not your Brother deny what
he had fad by your means ?

L. C. . Pray, ask a fair Queftion.

Mr. Braddon. Mittrels, Pray tell yopr Know-
ledge ot what the Boy declared?

L.C. 7. Ay, ay, Tell what you know, what
your Brother faid concerning his feeing a Razor,
and his denying of it afterwards. Tell all from
the Beginning to the End, and tell Truth in God’s
Name, and nothing but the Truth. We defire
the Truth may come ous, let it be of which Side
it will,

Sarah Edwards. My Brother came home and
faid he had been at the Tower, and that he had
feen His Muajelty and His Royal Highnefs, and
the Earl of Ejffex had cut his Throat, and that he
faw an Hand fling a Razor out of a Window, and
that 2 Maid, ora Woman, came out and took it
up, and went in again, and prefently after he heard
a Noife of Murder cried; {o I knowing he was
very apt to tell Lies, 1 did not believe it,

My, Braddon. Pray, Miftrefs, Did you prevail
with him to deny it afterwards ?

L. C.}. You are fo wonderful full of Zeal and
Heat i this Matter, you cannot ler your own
Witnelles tell their own Story, but you muft in-
terrupt them.  You have been bred to the Law,
and you have been before here prefent, [{uppofe,
at many Trials, and what Pretence can you have
to be more Indulged in an extraordinary way of
Proceeding than others? *Tis not for the Integri-
ty of your Converfation, I am fure, that you
ought to have it, but only becaufe you have more
Impudence.

M, Braddsn. My Lord, I have nothing of Con-
fidence, but what is grounded upon Innocence.

L. C. 7. 1 tell you, you are too confident, and
pray kaow where you are, and behave yourfelf as
you ought,

_ i{’ldfr. Braddon. My Lord, I hope I do no other-
wile.

L. C. 7. We muft give fuch Liberty and Tole-
ration becaufe of the Extravagance of his Conf-
dence, as to let him break in upon all Rules and
Methods. When you behave yourfelf as you oucht
to do, the Court will indulge you, and give you
all juft Liberty ; but don’t expect for your Zeal

fake, _and the flinging of your Hands, w0 do what
you Iift, Go on, Miftrefs,
Sarak
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Sarab Edwards. So, Sir, this Mr. Breddon came
on Tuefday following, about one or two of the
Clock, and asked for my Father, and coming,
my Sifter Maiy went to the Door, and called my
Father out to him. When my Father came to
hiim, he told my Father he came trom Sir Henry
Capell, and the Countels of Effex, to know the
Truth of my Brother’s Report. So my Father
told him the Boy had reported fuch 2 thing, but
he would not affert the I'ruth of it, for he had
been informed by us that the Boy was apt to
tell Lies to excufe his playing Truant; fo the
Child was gone to School when Mr. Braddon
cune, and when he came home from School
they went to the Child, fard I, By, will you
be fure to tell me the Truth of this Report,
why Sifter, faid he, will any Harm come of it?
Nay, faid I, I donot know, for there has been
a Gentleman to enquire about tt. So then the Child

dented 1t.
L. C. ¥ Did he knew this before he made the

Boy fign the Paper ¢

Sarab Edwards. Yes. This was on the Tuefday
after Mr. Braddoir had been firlt there. And [
{fpake to him, faid I, Billy, fay nothing but the
Truth be jure, and don’t tell a Lye, co fave
your Breech,  So, Sir, as foon as ever the Child
denied it Mr. Braddon came in again the fame
Day, and coming in found us, my Mother and
all of us, daunted hearing the Boy deny it ;
but he asked the Child and.bid him fpeak the
Trath, and told bim it was a dreadful thing to
be a Liar, and bid him read the j5th of the

&5, telling him he would find there two were
ftruck dead for telling of a Lye, and feveral
other fuch Expreflions that 1 cannot remember.
Upon Weanefday, abour Noon, he comes again,
and then my Brother did own it again, and he
writ down what the Boy owned, and went
away, faying he would go to Sir Henry Capeil
and the Countels of Effex. And on Thurfday,
he comes again and brings a Paper written over
again, not the fame he writ at our Houfe, and
then the Child fet his Hand to it. The Child
was {omething unwiiling, fo fays he to him, It
will be no harm to you, if any Danger does
come of i, it will come to me and not to
you.

L.C. 7 The-Child was unwilling to fign it
you fay, but by his Perfuafion ?

Sarab Edwards. Yes, Mr. Braddon told him it
would be no harm to him, all the harm would
come to himfelf.

Mr. Braddon. When the Child had owned to
me what he firft faid, and upon your faying that
he dented it, I asked him the reafon why he de-
nied it; pray will you tell what Anfiver he made
to tnat Queftion. Pray tell the Truth, and no-
thing but the Truth.

sarab Eawards, Upon my Word, Sir, I can’t
recollect that.

Mr. Braadon. Pray Miftrefs, what Anfwer did
he make?

Sarab Edwards. 1 have told you what I know,
0 the beft of my remembrance.

M. Braddon. Did not you hear your Brother
lgn; t0 his Mother, and cry out 1 fhall be hang-
ed ¢

Sarah Edwards. Yes.

. <47, Braddon, What was the reafon of his cry-
ine out fo?
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Sarab Edwards. Why, the Child had that Fear
and Dread upon his Spirits, knowing it was Lye,
I fuppofe, he told.

Mr. Bradden. What was the reafon of his
Fear ?

L.C.7. She tells you, it was the Falthood of
the Story.

Mr. Wallop. Miftrefs, Did not you tell him,
that his Father would be in danger of lofing his
Place?

Sarab Edwards. Yes, Sir, we did.

Mr. Wallop. Did you tell him, the King will
nang your Father if you do not deny it ?

L. C. 7. Why, you have 2 mind to have it be-
lieved that it was true then, Mr. Wallop.

Mr. Wallop. My Lord, the Boy beft knows that.

L.C. 7. Butdo you believe that if it had been
trae, that the King would hang his Father, or
turn him out of his Place if he did not deny it
as tho’ the King would force People to deny the
‘Truth ?

Mr. Wallop. My Lord, I do not fay nor believe
any fuch thing.

; L. C. §. But your Queltion feems to carry it
0

Mr. Wallep, My Lord, I ask the Queftion of
her, whether f(he did not fay fo to him, I ask
Queltions according to my Inftru@ions.

L.C. 7. Nay, Mr. Wallop, be as angry as you
will, you fhan’c hector the Court out of their Un-
derltandings.  We fee plainly enough whither
that Queftion tends. You that are Gentlemen of
the Robe, (hould carry your felves with greater
Refpect to the Governmente, and while you do fo,
the Court will carry themfelves as becomes them
to you.

My, Wallop, I refer myfelf to all that hear me,
if T attempted any fuch thing as to heor the
Court.

L.C. 7. Refer yourfelf to all that hear you, re-
fer yourfelf to the Court ; *tis a Refletion upon
the Government, I tell you your Q eftion is, and
you fhan’t do any fuch thing while 1 fit here, by
the Grace of God, if I can help it.

Mr. Wallgp. 1 am forry for that, I never ine
tended any fuch thing, my Lord.

L.C. 7. Pray behave yourfelf as you ought,
Mr. Wallyp, you muft not think to huff and fivac-
ger here, 7

Mr. Juft, Withins. Mr, Braddm, You hear
what the reafon was of his crying out fo. She
failc} he was afraid, becanfe he knew he had told
a Lye.

Mr. Wallop. Pray, Miftrefs, who told him the
Family would be ruined by it ?

Mr. Jult, Withins. Mr. Wallop, 1 asked this
Gentlewoman, whether fhe did fay it, and fhe faid
fhe could not te]l.

Sarab Edwards. Indeed I cannot tell, my Lord,

Mrs. Edwards. She did indeed fay fo, my
Lord.

Mr. Waligp. Pray let it go, my Lord, as it is,
what was it fhe faid ¢ Did fhe fpeak about turning
her Father out of his Place ? |

Mrs. Edwards, 1 cannot fay that, but fhe faid,
when the Boy asked whether there would be any
harm by it, fhe could nor tell, but it may be her
Father and Family might be ruined. .

L.C. 7. And is not this a2 Refle€tion upon the
Government, to fay the King would ruin any one
if they did not tell a Lye?

M,
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My. Wallep. My Lord, for a falfe Report he
might be ruined, but it ieems upon this Saying
he did deny it.

Mr. Fuft. Hithins, Was there a Word faid of
his being wrned out of his Place ¢ -

Mrs. Edwards. 1 cannot fay there was,

L.C.7¥. No, not a Word, but only Mr. ?Vallop
is fo impetuous in the worft of Caufes.

Mr. Wallsp. 1am in the Judgmentof the Court,
whether I do any thing but what becomes an
Advocate for his Client, according to my Inftruc-
£100s,

L.C.F Yes, youareio, and fhall know that
you are under the Corretion of the Court
100,

Mr. Wallop. My Lord, I know where I am.

L.C.F. Ay, you know well enough, but you
would do well to carry yourfelf as you fhould
do.

Mr. WWallep. With humble Submiffion, my
Tord, I appeal to all that hear me.

L.C. 7. Appeal to whom you will, I know
the Bufinefs of the Bar 15 to appeal to the
Court.

M. Fuft. Withins, What 1s the matter with
Mr. Valisp, that makes him fo carneft in this
Caufe?

L.C.F. There 1s fuch an Heat i this Caufe,
I wonder whence it thould come, I am fure ’tis not
from the Honefty of it.

AMr. Braddon. Young Mrs. Edwards, It 1 {uffer
any thing by reafon of the falfity of your Tefti-
mony, 1t will retarn upon you.

Sarabh Edwards. Sir, | do tell you all T know.

My, Braddon. Then I defire you to anfiver me
this Queftion, Whether or no when the Boy did
own what he firft fud, and I asked him the rea-
fon of his Denial whether the Falfity of the thing,
or Fear caufed him to deny 1t, did not he fay 1t
was Fear through your Difcouragements and
Threatnings ¢

Sarab Ed=zcrds, No, he did not fay it, did
he, Mother ?

L.C.7. Why, weare got into a way of ap-
pealing and appedling, here is appealing to the
People, and appealing to the Witnefs; pray keep
to tne Bufinels, and within the Bounds of Dzcen-
cy. Before fuch time as the Boy denied it, did
you defire him to fpeak Truth?

Sarab Edwards, Yes, 1 did.,

Mz, Thompfon. And when Mr. Braddoir exami-
ned him, did he defire him to fpeak Truth?

Sarab Edwards. Yes, he did.

L. C. % But he knew before he examined him
that he had denied it, did not he?

Sarah Edwards. Yes, the fecond time before he
came into the Houle.

Myr. Bradden. 1 defire the old Gentleman may
be asked this Queftion.

My, Thompfon. Call Mr, Edwards again,

L.C.}. The Spirit of the Client was got intc
the Counfel I think juft now, and now ’tis got into
the Client again, *Tis an hard matter to lay it, I
perceive.

Mr. Wallsp. My Lord, I am here of Counfel
for Mr. Braddes, and I only ask Queftions as they
are in my Breviate,

" L.C. 7. But, Sir, if you have any thing in
your Breviate that refleéts upon the Government,
you ought not to vent it, nor fhan’t be permitted
10 vent itas long as it here,

M. WWallep. My Lord, with Submiffion, I hope
I never did, nor never fhall let any fuch thing
come from me.

L. C. 7. Nay, be as angry, or as pleafed as
you will, ’tis all one to me, you fhall not
have liberty to broach your feditious Tenets
here.

Mr. Braddon. Mr. Ldwards, Pray will you an-
fiver this Queftion ? Did not your Son, when he
was asked why he denied 1t, fay that it was
Fear and Dilcouragement, through his Sifter’s
Threats, was the Cawfe? Pray fpeak the
Truth,

Myr. Edwards. 1 cannot tell whether the Child
did fay fo, fomething of that Nature he did
fay.
Mr. Thompfon, Call Aune Buyt.

L.C. 7. We have got fuch ftrange kind of
Notions now-a-cdays, that forfooth Men think
they may fay any thing becaufe they are Coun-
fel. I tell you, Mr. 2V allop, your Queftions did
refle€t upon the Government, as tho’ the King
had 2 mind to turn a Man out of his Employ-
ment, if he did not {wear a Fallity. What can
be a greater RefleCtion than that?  But all the
matter 1s, what has been done muft be avouched
and juftified, though 1t be never fo 1l. But we
plainly fee through all. This was the Defign
irom the beginning, the King and the Duke of
York were in the Tower at that time, and it
muft be thought and believed that they had de-
figned this Matter, and fo then all People muft
be rumed in cafe they would not fay the Earl
murdered himfelf, tho’ indeed others had done
It,

Mr. Wallop. Mr, Ldwards did not delicht to
have fuch a Report, as might create . rouble, firft
come out of his Houle,

Mz, Bradden. My Lord, As to the making
fuch an Inference, or any Refleftion as your
Lordihip mentions, I am as far from 1t asany
body here.

L.C. Y. We muft give a wonderful deal of
Countenance to {fuch barbarous and horrid Prac-
tices, and [ warrant you mutt fuffer the Govern-
ment to be refle¢ted upon at the Will and Pleafure
of every Man, No, let us hear the Trach, but
not in the face of a Court permit Men to afperfe
the Government as they pleale, by asking fuch
Quetions.

AMr. At Gen. And the Witnefles fay nothing
to it neither,

L. C. ¥ No, nothing at all like it, but ’us
Afperfion for Afperfion fake, And we muft fit
ftill and hear 1.

Mr. Wallep. My Lord, 1 think *us for the
Honour of the Government to have all things fair-
ly inquired into.

L. C. 7. And ’us for the Honour of all Courts
of Jiftice not to fuffer Refleftions upon the
Government, let them be by whom they will.
And in Gentlemen of the Bar *us worfe than
others,

Mr. Fuft. Withins, Truly, I do not fee where
there 1s any countenance for asking fuch a Que-
ftion.

L. C. 7. No, but fome People are fo wonderful
zealous

Mr. Wallop. My Lord, Zeal for the Truth is
a good Zeal,

L.C.%. Itis fo, but Zeal for Faction and Se-
dition, 1 am fure, 1s a bad Zeal. 1T fee nothing
in
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in all this Caufe but Villany and Bafenefs. And
I believe no Man that has heard 1t, but will readi-
ly acknowledge that 1t appears to be an untoward
malicious ugly thing, as bad as ever | heard fince
I was born, on purpofe to caft an Indignity upon
the King and Government, and fet us all in a

Flame.

Then Anne Burt appeared, and was fworn.

M. Bradden., Mrs, Burt, 1 delire to know
what Difcourfe you had with Mis, Edwards, and
that Famuly ?

Mr At Gen. T beg your Pardon for that,
here Mrs, Edwards 13 herfelt to tell what fhe
has {ad.

AMr. Braddon. 1 defire to know what Difcourfe
{he had with any of the Familv ?

Mrs. Bart. 1 went to makic a Vifit toMrs Ed-
ewards, and I had not buen there halt an Hour
but in comes this Gertleman ; now I had asked
no Q efiions about the Bufinefs, but in he comes
and defired to fpeak with irs. Kdwards 3 Mr, Ed-
swards was called, and when he came in with
Mr. Edwcards, the Gentleman {ac down in the
Room, and told My, Ldwwerds he had heard a
Report of fomething his Son had fpoken, bat
he delired to have 1t from ks Son’s own Mouth,
and the Boy was called 1, (this 1s a real Trath,
Sir, for 1 do not know whether I may ftir from
this r face where I am alive or no;) And when
the Boy came mn, the Gentleman fud to him,
if it be true that you have reported, own it;
if not, do not own 1t; for, faid he, it is a dread-
ful thing to be found in a Lye, I would have
you read the sth Chapter of the 4&s, where a
Man and a Woman were ftruck dead for telling
a Lye. Sir, fard the Boy, ’tis true, and what
I fard T will fpeak it before any Juftice of Peace
in the World, And then he asked him what he
had reported, and the Boy made a Repetition of
what he had {=en and faid before, that he went in-
to the Zower and came to the firft Row of Houfes
that goes along,  And ai the firft Houfe he faw
no body look out ar the Window, nor at the
fecond Ioufe, but he looked upat the third Houfe,
and he took his Hand and fhewed thus, faid he,
I faw a Man’s Hand he did not fay, butan Hand
thirow a Razor out, of ths fathion, and he imi-
tated 1t with his HHand. Sad the Gentleman,
was 1t not the wrong Window, or the wropg
Houle? 1 will not take the thing upon this Cre-
dit, take your other Brother down, that was a
bigger Boy than this, and, fays ke, go down to
the Houfe, and fhew your Brother the Window
where you faw this.  The two Boys went down,
and he thewd his Brother the Place where he Gaw
the Hand - |

L. C. 7. Were you prefent at his thewing ?

Mrs. Brrt. Will your Lordfhip pleafe to give
me leave~—— -

L.C. ¥ And pray give me leave too, I ask
you, Were you prefent? For you tell it as if you
knew it yourfelf.

i Ays. Burt, Both the Boys came up and faid
0.

L.C.%¥. You fhould have faid fo then, that
they told you it, for you are upon your Quth,
and muft affirm nothing but your own Know-
ledgg.

Airs, Burt. If [ do mifplace my Words I can-
not hc]p BP0} Ry
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L. C. . You mifplace your Evidence, Woman,
you muft not fwear that to be true that you don’t
know to be true.

Mrs. Burt. My Lord, I heard what I fay with
my own kars.

L.C.¥. But you talk of a thing you did not
fec with your own Eyes, asif yon had feen it.

Myrs. Burt. | beg your Pardon, my Lord, I can’t
tell how to place my Words {o exaltly.

L. C. F.1 care not how thou placeft thy Words,
tell thy own Knowledge,

Mprs. Burt. 1 tell what is Truth, what I heard
and faw ; for, faid Mr. Bradder, 1 believe 1t was
not the right Window, when the Boy came up
and faid he had fhewed the Window, And this
Gentleman, I cannot hit his Name right, (he 1s
a Stranger to me) he and Mr, Edwaids went
down with the Boy, to fee whether it were
the right Window of the Houfe where my
Lerd died (which where it is T cannot tell any
otherwife than has been reported, or whethet
there be one Room or two of a Floor I don’t
know ;) and when he came up again he called
for a Sheet of Paper, that he might write from
the Boy’s Mouth, and that he might not difier
one Word from what the Boy had faid him-
fit  And when | faw Mr. Bradden begin to
write | went away, for | thought it may be
the Gentleman might expeét I fhould fet my
Hand to it as 2 Watnefs, and [ did not defire
any Trouble.

Afr. Braddsis. 1 defire this Queftion may be
asked her, my Lord, Do notyou remember it was
fard the Boy denied it ? -

Aars. Burt, Yes, it was faid, the Boy did deny
1t,

Mr, Bradden. What did his Sifter {ay was the
reafen of hisdenying it?

Mr. Thompfon. Ay, what did you hear the Sif-
ter fay ?

L.C.%.1told you before, that was no Evidence
what another body did fay. -

My, Hallsp. Miftrels, The Boy dented 1t, for
what Reafon ?

2dis. Burt. Becaufe his Sifter, as his Mother told
me, had been talking to him.

L.C.¥. As his Mother told you, prithee,
Woman, fpeak your own Knowledge, and not
what another bedy told thee.

Mrs. Burt. Pray, give me leave, my Lord —

L.C. % Ttell thee, T will not give thee leave
to fay what thou fhould’t not fay.

Virs. Burt. 1 heard his Sifter fay——

L. C ¥ It is not Evidence if thou didft hear

never {o many People fay 1t.
Mirs, Burt. My Lord, 1{peak nothing but the

Truth.
L.C. ¥ Shall we allow that in this Cafe for

Fvidence that we allow in no other Cafe, for what
Reafon, pray? | donot fee it defervesany fuch ex-
traordinary Favour.,

My, Fuft. Withins. Mr. IFallsp, we mutt not
hear what another faid, that is no Party to this
Caule. You know itis no Evidence, therefore

do not preis it. |

Mrs. Bupt. My Lord, 1 have done, if that
will fatisty you.

L. C. 7. Prithee, fatisfy thy felf, good Woman.

Mrs. Burt. My Lord, I lave. done, 1 come
here to fpeak the Truth, and fo ] do.

L. C.f. Nay, prithee be not fo full of Tattle,

{o full of Clack.
Then
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Then a lLittle Girl came inte Court.

L. C.¥. What Age is this Girl of 2 How old
art thou, Child?

Girl, 1 was 13 latt Saturday.

L C. ¥. Do you know the Danger of telling a
Lye?

Girl, Yes.

L.C. 7. Why, what will become: of you if
you tell 2 Lye?

Girl. The Devil will have me.

L.C.¥. Give her her Oath. What is thy
Name, Child?

Girl. Fane Lodeman.

Then fhe was fworn.

L.C. ¥ Child, do not beafraid of any thing
in the World, but only of telling any thing but
what is true; be fure you do not tell a .ye, for
if, as you fay, you fhall be in danger of H.ll-fire
by telling a Lye, much more will you be mn dan-
aer if you fivear toa Lye. Now wiat do you ask
her?

M. Braddsn. What did you fee in the Tower
that Morning the Earl of £ffzx dted 7

Lodenan. { faw a Hand our of a Window, but
I cannot tell what Window 1t was, but it was a
Hand throw out a Ruzor.

M. Braddeir. And what did yon hear after that?

Lodeman, 1 can’t well remember, bur 1t was
either two Shrieks or two Groans that | heard
prefently after.

L. C. ¥. What time of the Day was it, Child ?

Lodeinan. It was between nine and tea of the
Ciock. .

L.C. 5. Who was with you befides yourlelf
there ?

Lcdenan. There were more befides me, but
they went away.

L. C. ¥ Who were they, Child ?

Ledcmen, A great many that { did not know.

L.C 7. And ..ow came you to take notice of
1t ?

Lodeinan, And there was a Coach flood juft at
the Door.

L. C. ¥.Tell us fome of them, Child, that were
there befides thy felt; fpeak tie Truth, be not
afraid. Thou fay’ft a great many People were
there, and all the People muft neceffarily fee 1t.

Lodeian. They were People 1 did not know.

L. C. . But they all faw it as well as you ¢

Lodeman. So | fappofe they did.

L. C. . And you heard a Shrick or two, you
fay?

Lodeman. Two Shrieks or two Groans, I can’t
well remember which.

L. C. ¥. How high was the Window ?

Lodeman. Not above one pair of Stairs high.

L.C. . How high from the Ground might it
be:

Lodeman. Not above one Story.

M. Thompfon. Where-abouts in the Tower was
it ?

Lodeman,

Mount. -
My, Wallss. Whofe Lodging do you think It

was ?
Lodeman. T did not know whole it was, but

Folks faid it was the Earl of Effex’s.
L. C. 7 Who did you tell this to?

Sir, it was as you go upon the
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Lodeman, 1 told no body till I came to my

Aunt, and I told her,

L. C.¥. What is her Name ?

Lodeman. Margaret Smith.

L. C. 7. Did you ever tell this to that Man ?

Lodenan, Yes, afterwards 1 did.

L. C.¥. How came he to enquire of you
about 1t¢

Lodeman. Fle came and asked me, and I could
not deny it.

L. C. 7. Ay, but how came he to ask you?

Lodeman. There was a Gentlewoman that was
at our Houfe, and fhe heard of it, and fpake of
it at a Gentlewoman’s at Dinner, and fo he came
to our Houfe to inquire about 1t.

L C ¥ Who is that Gentlewoman? What is
her Name?

Lodenian. Sufan Gibbons.

L C.¥. Let me fee the Information of this
Girl, that Mr. Bradden had taken,

Cl. of CGr. Yes, my Lord, there it1s.

L.C.77 Do you know my Lord of Effex’s
Lodgings ?

Lodeinan, They faid it was his.

L. C.#. Did you know 1t of your own Know-
ledge ¢

Ledeman No, Sir, I did not.

My. Thempfon. Pray what became of the Ra-
zor that was thrown out of the Window, aftzr it
was thrown out?

Lodeman 1 faw 2 Woman in a white Hood
come out, but | did not fee her take it up.

pir Sol. Ger  Girl, you fay, that when you
were at this Place in the Zower, and faw this Mat-
ter, there were a great many People there befides
yourfelf.

Lodeman. Yes, Sir.

Mr.Sol. Gen. Did the Razor fall among the
People that ftood there, or did it fall out in the
Streer, or how ?

[ odeinan. Sir, 1t fell within the Pales,

My, Sal. Gen. And was the Paffage ealy 1mnto
the Pales ?

Lodeman. Yes.

Mr. Sol. Gen. What, they muft climb over, muft
they ? ‘

I}:adfﬂmn. No, you need not climb over, there
isa Door to go i, And when People went in
the Soldier opened the Door.

Ay, Sol, Gen. Who went in with the Soldier ?
Did you fee any body go m?

Lodeman. There was a Man went in, but [
know not who he was,

Mr. Sol, Gen. Did the Soldier ftand at the
Door when this Razor was thrown out ?

Lodeman. 1 cannot tell that, a Soldier ufed to
be at the Door.,

Mr. Sol, Gen. The 'Woman came out of the
Lodging, did fhe not ¢

Lodeinan  Yes.

My, Sol. Gen. Did fhe go in again ?

Lodeman. Idid not fee her go in again.

AMr. Sol. Gen. Did fhe go into the Pale ?

Lodeman 1 did not fee her go into the Pales,

My, Sol Gen. Did you fee the Razor after 1t
fell upon the Ground ?

Lodeman. No.

M. Sol. Gen. Was it bloody ?

Lodeman, Yes,

Mr Sol. Gen. Very Bloody ?

Lodeman, Yes.

Mr. Sol. Gen, Did you fee no body take itup ?

Lodeman.
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Lsdeman, No, I did not,

My, Sol. Gen, Come hither, Child; Are you
fure it was a Razor, ora Knife?

Lodeman. I am fure 1t was a Razor.,

Mr. Sol. Gen. Wag 1t open, or fhut ?

Lodeman. Tt was open.

M. Sol. Gen. What Colour was the Handle.

Lodeman. Sir, I can’t tell, 1 fee it but as it
flew out,

Mr. Sol. Gen. Was 1t all over bloody ?

Lodeman. No.

Mr, Sol. Gen, All but a little Speck ?

Lodeinan, 1t was very bloody.

L. C. 7. Blefled God, What an Age do we
livein! Girl, you fay, you did not know it to be
my Lord of Effex’s Window.

. Lodernan, No, but as they told me.

L.. C. 7. Nor you did not fee any body take up
the Razor ?

Lodeman. No.

L. C. . But you are fure you did not?

Lodeman, 1 am {ure I did not.

L. C. 7. But, Child, recolleét thyfelf, fure thou
didit fee fomebody takeitup?

Lodeinan, No, Idid not,

L. C. ¥ 1ask thee again, Didft not thou know
it to be my Lord of Effex’s Window?

Lodeman, No, but as they told me,

L.C.7. Did you hear no body fpeak to the
Maid that came out ?

Lodeman. No body at all,

L. C.}. No, priythee is that thy Hand, Child?
Shew her the Paper, the uppermoft Part of it,

Lodeman, Sir, 1 can’t write.

L. C. J. Who put thy Name to 1t?

Ledesnan. Sir, 1 don’t know, ne more than the
Pope of Rome.

L.C. 7. Whofe Hand-writing is that ?

Lodeman. T cannot tell, I never could write in
my Life.

My, Braddon. Thofe are the Names of {uch as
heard her fay it.

Mr. Att, Gen, Yes, you have cooked it up
bravely.

L.C. f. You fhall fee what a brave Managery
yeu have made of this poor Child, Read the In-
formation,

Cl. of Cr. Reads. The Eightb of Auguft,
1683, Jane Lodeman, Azed abont 13 Zears, did
i the Prefence of thefe whofe Names are under-
written, declare as follows, That the faid Jane Lode-
man was i1 the Tower on Friday Morning, the 135
of July laft, and flanding almoft over-ageinft the late
Learl of E(Iex’s Lodging-Window, fhe fow a Hand
caft ot a Razor eut of my Lord’s Window, and im-
sediately upon that fhe beard Shricks; and that there
was a Soldier by my Lord’s Door, which cried out
10 thofe within the Houfe, that fomebody fhonld come
and lake up a Razor, which was thrown out of the
Findow, wwhereupon there came a Maid with a white
Hood out of the Houfe, but who took up the Razor
fhe cannot tell,

L. C.%}. Here’us faid the Soldier cried out, but
now fhe fays, the Soldier fhe does not know was
there, and fhe heard no body fpeak to the Maid.

My Braddon. With Submuffion, my Lord, I
defire to ask her this Queftion.

L. C. J. Pr'ythee ask her what thou wilt, We
hear what the fays.

M, Braddon. Did you hear the Soldier cry out,
or did you not ?

Lodeinan, No, Idid not,
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Mr. Braddes, Did not you fay, you heard him
cry out?

Mr. Sol. Gen. My Lord, we cannot admit
Mr. Braddeu fhould ask fuch Queftions, they are
leading Queftions. Ask her a general Queftion,
and you fhall have an Anfwer, but you fhall not
gtve her Words to Swear to. '

L. C. 7. No, upon my Word, you have given
her too many Words to Swear to already.

Mr. Bradden, My Lord, I only writ what fhe
declared,

Mr. 8ol. Gen. Were you carried by Mr. Brad-
don before any Magiftrate, or any Juftice of

Peace?

Lodeinan. No.

Mr. Sdl. Gen. Did he take the Examination
himfelf ?

Lodeinan. Yes.

M. Att. Gen. Did not he defire you to go befoie
a Juftice of Peace to be Sworn?

Lodeinan. No, Sir.

Mz. Sol. Ges, Did he write it himfelf?

Mr, At Gen. Ay, he writit, and took it, and
this Woman that is coming here, isa Witnefs to it,

L. C. ¥. What 1s this Woman’s Name ?

Mpr. Braddon, ‘This is the Aunt, Margaret Sinith.

[ ho was Swois.

L. C.¥. Well, what fay you to her?

Mr. Braddonn. 1 defire to know, what this Girl
fud to you, when fhe returned from the Tower the
13th of Fuly?

Mirs. Siith,

{peaks now.
M, Bradden, What was that? Tell the Court,

Mrs, Smith, 1 chid her, becaufe fhe had been
playing: That isall I can fay.

Mr. Fuf. Withins, Did the tell you, the Soldier
cried out for fomebody to come and take up the
Razor?

Mzs, Smith, 1 cannot fay that.

Mr. Fuft, Withins, Did {he fay, the fawa Razor
thrown out of my Lord of £ffex’s Window ?

Mrs. Smith. She faid, fhe faw a Razor thrown
out of a Windows I can’t tell whether fhe faid
out of my Lord of Effex’s Window.

My Frele. Did you {er your Hand to that Paper?

L.C. F. Were you a Witnefs to that Paper ?

Nirs, Smith. There were others heard what the
Girl faid, as well as 1.

L.C. #. Who defired you to fign 1t?

M. Freke, Who writ that Paper, Miftrefs?

Mys, Smith. Pray excufe me, Sir, I do not
know.

My. Freke, Did you fee it writ ¢

Mrs. Smith. No.

L.C. 7. No: It was one got ready drawn by
M, Braddon.

Mr. Fuft. Holloway. Pray let the Boy’s Infor-
mation be read again, for I obferve there 1s a
difference; the fays, the Razor fell within the
Pales; the Boy fays, it fell without,

L.C. ¥. Ay, ay, the one fays it was the In-
{ide ; the other, the Qutfide of the Pales.

She faid to that effeé that fhe

Then the Information was read.

L.C. %. Goon now, and ask your Queftions,

My, Bradden. Did the Girl fay, That after the
Razor was thrown out, the Soldier cried to {ome-
body to take 1t up.

Mis. Smith, Sir, I can fay no more than what
1 have faid.

5 U My, Bradden,
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Myr. Braddon. Did fhe, or did fhe not?

Mrs. Smith, Pray, Sir, excule me; 1 have {po-
ken what I know. |

My, Att. Gen. You may fee how he has managed
this Matter, my Lord, by his urging the Wit-
nefles with Queftions they know nothing of. -

L. C. ¥ Yes, yes, we fee he jwould fam put
Words into their Mouths.

Mz, Att. Gen. Miftrefs, Did you fend to M.
Braddon, to inform him of what the Girl had
faid? Or did he come to you?

Mis. Smith, Sir, I never faw him before in my
Days.

Mr., Ait. Gen, He came firft to you then?

Mrs. Smith, Yes: He hearing of 1t, cameasa
Stranger to me.

Myr. Bradden. Did 1, directly or indireétly, of-
fer you, or your Neice, any Thing?

Mprs. Smith, No, never in this World.

My, Braddon. Did 1 ever defire her, or you, to
fay any thing but what was true?

Mrs, Smith. No, Sir: You ever encouraged
the Girl to fpeak Truth; and bid her {peak nothing
but what was Truth,

My, Ait. Geir, You need not pay dear for a Lye;
you are like to pay dear enough betore you have
done.

M. Braddon, My Lord, as to Perfonal Know-
ledge, I am as much a Stranger to this Matter, as
any body here; and in all my Concern in it, |
have done nothing but what was very fair,

L. C. ¥. Mind your Defence, Mr. Bradasy, and
leave commending yourfelf; or if you will, rather
commend yourlelf by your Aétions, than your
Expreffions: One good Adtion 15 worth Twenty
oood Expreflions.

- Mr. Braddon. Swear William Glasbrooke,
[ 7V bich wwas done.

L.C. 7. Well, what do you ask him?

Mr. Freke, My Lord, we defire to know of
him, whether he was by on the 13th of Fuly,
when the Girl ¢ we this Report ?

My, Glasbrocke, I was up two pair of Stairs
when fhe came in.

L.C. 7. What 1s your Name, Sir?

Mr. Glasbrooke, William Glasbroske.

Cl. of Cr. Ay, here is his Information, among
thofe that were taken abeut Bradden.

My, Glasbroske, She came in to her Aunt, that
went out juft now before me, and I heard her very
Joud with her Aunt, faying, the Earl of Effex had
cut his Throat in the Zower. Her Aunt chid her
upon it ; and her Aunt chiding her, (he faid, fhe
was fure it was troe; for fhe faw a bloody Ra-
zor, with a bloody Hand, thrown out of the
‘Window.,

Mr. Freke. Was this the Day of my Lord of
Effex’s Death ?

Mr. Glasbrooke, It was the Day the King was in
the Tower, and, as was reported, the Day he was
killed.

Mpr. Bradden. Were you prefent when [ firft
difcourfed the Girl ?

Mr. Glasbrooke. Yes.
Mr. Braddon, Had you ever feen me before, or

noe
Mr. Glasbrooke., No.

L.C. % Did he fay, my Lord of Effex cut his
Throat at that Time?

Mr. Glasbrooke, Yes.

L.C. . Areyoua Witnefs to this Paper? Did

you fet your Hand to this Paper ?
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My, Glashrooke. To the Paper Mr. Braddon writ,
Idid: Lam a Witnefs to that,

L.C. F. Then read his Information.

CL of Cr. Reads, —— Ay, William Glasbrooke
does declare, That one Jane Lodeman, aged about
Thirteen Years, inhabiting in the fame Houfe where
be, the faid William Glasbrooke, lodged, did on
Friday, the 13th of July laft pafi, between Ten and
Eleven in the Morning, in the Prefence and Hearing
of bim, the faid William Glasbrooke, declare to ber
Aunt, That the Earl of Eflex bad cut bis Throat
upon which ber At was very angry with ber
whereupon fhe, the faid Girl, did declare, That fbe
was fure of it; for fhe faw bim thyow the Razor out
of the Window 5 and that the Razor was bloody 5 and
that fbe beard two Groaus or Shrieks (which of the
two Words fhe ufed, bey the [aid Willlam Glas-
brooke, is not cevtain.: ) Of this, be, the faid Wil-
liam Gilasbrocke, 75 ready to make Oath,

L.C. 7. Now my Lord of £ffex cut hisown
Throat, and after threw the Razor out of the
Window.

A7, Glasbrooke, *Tis what the Girl did declare,

Mr. A, Gen. Does not this Girl ufually tell
Lies?

Mr. Glasbrooke. I have before that time taken
her in a Lye.

M. Ait. Ger. Did you acquaint Mr. Braddor
with that?

Mr. Glasbrooke, T cannot tell that I did.

My. dit. Gen. Do you remember that you told
Nir. Braduon, That fhe was a Girl that told
T'ruch ¢

My, Glasbroske. No, I never did thats for I was
always of another Perfuafion about her.

Mr. §:1. Gen. He never was of that Temper, to
praile hery Le wasalways of a contrary Perfualion,

L.C. j. Pl affure him, that 1 am of his Opi-
nion too: I do believe the 1s a lying Girl, and
hath told us a company of Lies now.

Mr. Braddsn. ‘Thefe two Children told me,

they never faw one another ’ull they were examin.
ed at the Council,

L.C. 7. Well, well: Go on with your Wit-
nefles.

M. Braddon. Where is William Smith ?

[Who agpeared, and was forn.
I defire to know of you, Mr. Smith, what you
heard the Girl fay, when I was there ?

Mr. Smith, 1 heard the Girl tell us, That the
faw a Hand caft outr a Razor, and either the Hand
was bloody, or the Razor, I can’t tell which s but
fhe faid 1t was out of the Window, where the faid
the Earl of Effex lodged.

L.C. 7. Did the fay the Earl of Efex did it
himfelf ?

My, §mith, She faid, fhe faw an Hand caft out
a Razor.

L.C. 7. D fhe tell you, it was the Ear} of
Effs’s Lodging Window ?

vir, Smith. She faid it was that Lodging,

L.C 7. Ay, but fhe fays now, the does not
know it to be his Lodging,

Mr. Braadon. My Lord, fhe fays the was told
it was fus Lodging.
L.C. J. But you have made her to fay pofi-

tively, 1t was his Lodging, and that he threw out
the Razor.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Pray, Sir, where did yon firft
hear this Report of this Gul ?

Mr, Smuth. There, at the Houfe, where fhe

was,
My, Sol, Gen.
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Mr. Sol. Gen. Were you alone when you went
to the Girl the firft time? :

Mr. Smith, No, I went with Mr. Braddes.

M. Sol. Gen. Did you hear any thing of it be-
fore? What did induce you to go along with
Mr. Braddon 2 'What were the Arguments that

revailed with you to go with him?2

Mr. Smith. 1did not know where he was go-
ing; Mr. Braddon called me at the Shop, as I
ftood at the Door, and asked me if 1 was bufy,
or would go with him? So [ went with him to
the Tavern.

Mr. Sol. Gen. You never heard one Word be-
fore of the Girl’s Report ?

My. Smith, No, 1 did not.

L.C. 7. Whatelfe did the Girl tell you ?

M. Smith, 1 can’t fay what eliefhe faid.  This
I remember, that I have told you.

L.C. 7. Did fhe name the Farl of Effex’s
Lodgings ?

My, Smith. T am fure fhe faid the Lodging
where the Earl of Effex lay,

L.C. 7. Did fhe name the Earl of Lffex 2

My, Smith, She did name the Earl of Effex's
Lodgings.

L.C. 7. Did fhe in {fo many Words fay, That
it was the Earl of Zffex’s Lodgings ?

Mpr. A, Gen. Your Lordfhip fees, they give
one Evidence, and fhe znother.

My, Smith, 1 cannot fay whether fhe did in {o
many Words fuy fo, or no; but fhe faid, That
fhe {aw a Hand tofs out a Razor, and either the
H.nd was bloady, or the Razor, and it was where
my Lord of Lfex’s iLodgings was.

1. C. 7. Bat did the name my Lord of Effex’s
Lodgings?

Jir. Swith. Yes, fhe did.

L C ¥ Well, what clfe did the fay ? Tell us
all fhe faid,

Mr. Simith. She faid, There was a Man ftood
below, and {he heard two Shricks, and the Man
did fay, Here i1s 2 Razor;and a Woman came out,
or one in Woman’s Clothes, with white IHead-
clothes. Mr. Braddsir asked if fhe fee any body
take it up, and thefaid, no; but fhe heard a Man
fay, here 15 the Razor, and fhe faw 2 Woman
come OUt.

L.C.7. You are fure that is all you heard
her fay?

My, Smith, 1 think fo.

L.C.7. Recollect yourfelf, pray good Mr.
Smth.

Mr. Smith. 1 do not know that I heard any
thing elfe.

L. C.}. Pray read his Information.

(J. of Cr. Heres J/tlliam Sinith {ubicribed.

My, Smith., Mr. Braddon writ down what the
Girl faid, and we did read i1t over all, and then
fer our Hands to 1t.

1 L.C.7f. Well, Sir, Read the Information
then.

Cl. of G, Reads the Information as before——

L. C. F. You hear what you have afirmed in
this Paper, that the Girl faid; you have forgor
in your Lvidence now this long Bufinefs about the
Soldier.

My, Smith, My Lord, 1™ have told all I did
remember,

L. C. }. Why, you have fet your Hand to it.

My, Smith. 1 did read 1t over, and it was no-
thing but what the Girl faid, I am fure,

L. C. 7. Where do you live ?
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Myr. Smith. In Throgmorton-fireet,

L. C.f. What Trade?
- Mr. Smith. A Barber. -
- L.C. #. A notable Shaver, upon my Word!
a Ipecial Fellow, I’ll warrant him!

My, Braddon. Call Mrs. Mews.

[Who appeared and was fworn.]

Pray what Day was it you went from Leadon to
Berkfbire? -

Mrs, Mewx. The Day before my Lord Ruffel
was tried. :

M. Braddon. What Expreffion did you hear
from a Gentleman in the Coach ?

L.C. ¥. We mult not fuffer fuch a Queftion
to be asked, that is not Evidence.

M. Braddon. My Lord, I ask the Queftion 1n
ceneral Terms, what fhe heard fucha Day ?

L. C. . Does the know any Thing of her own

Knowledge ?
M. Braddon. She can tell what fhe heard, my

Lord.
L. C. #. *T1s no Evidence.
My. Braddon. Will your Lordlhip pleafe to

hear what fhe fays.
L. C.%#. No, I will not hear what1 {hould not

hear; let her fpeak what the knows.

My, Braddon. She knows this, that 2 Woman
told her

L.C. ¥ Ask your Counfel, whether that be
Evidence. If you will not be fatisfied with what
I fay, ask them,

Mr. Wallsp. She proves a Report.

L. C. #. Task it of you, Mr. #Wallsp 3 Iswhat
another faid to her, Evidence in this Cafe ¢

Mr. Wallpp. My Lord, if really there was
fuch a Report——m- .

L. C. F. Is that Evidence ?

Mr. Wallop. *Tis Evidence there was fuch a
Talk, and that 1s Evidence of the Probability of
the Thing,.

L.C.#. Tl leave it to yourfelf, if youas a
Lawyer fay it is Evidence, we will hear 1t, be- -
caufe you fay fo; but [ believe you, nor no body
elfe will offer to fay any fuch thing,

My. Wallop. My Lord, we lay it before the
Court, as part of the Ground upon which we
went, in our being concerfied in this Bufinefs.

L. C. ¥. Is that a Juttification of Mr. Draddon ?

My, Wallop. Upon thefe Probabilities he enga-
oed 1n this Marter, and to prove this Report,
he brings this Gentlewoman to tell what fhe
heard.

L.C.¥. Why, is what the Woman told her,
Evidence ; She reported a Report to me, can that
be Evidence?

M. Wallsp. My Lord, with Submiflion, we
think it jultifies Mr, Braddon, that he wént upon
thefe grounds.

L.C.%¥. Where is the Woman that told her?
Why is not fhe brought ? |

M. Wallop. They fay, the is fo big with Child
fhe can’t come.

L. C. ¥. Why, if that Woman were here her
felf, if fhe did fay it, and would not Swear 1t,
we could not hear her; how then can her fay-
ing be an Evidence before us? 1 wonder to hear
any Man that wears 2 Gown, to make a doubt

of 1t.
Mr. Bradden, 1 defire Feremy Burgis may be

called. [Who appeared and was Sworn.]
Mr. Wallop. What can you fay about the Re-

port in the Country ?
5U 2 Mr.
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Mr. Burgis. 1 was at Frome about my Bufinels
on a Friday | -

L. C. 7. Why, Gentlemen, what are we do-
ing all this time ? Do you think we fit here for
nothing # Is not this the firft ume that a Report
“was given as Evidence in W efiminfter-ball ?

My, Freke. My Lord, We are neceffitated to
afe this Sort of Ewvidence.

L. C. ¥ Itell you, Sir, It is no Evidence, be
neceflitated what you will.

Mpr. Freke. My Lord, They have produced
this Man's Letter that- was taken about Mr. Brad-
don, that is produced in Evidence againft him:
Now this Man comes to give an Account how he
came to write that Letter.

L.C. 7. But he fhall not give an Account by
a Report in the Country.

My, Burgis. 1t was written to the Landiord of
the Houfe where I quartered, that he might
oive notice to Mr, Bradaon of a Difcourfe that
paffed in his Houfe that Friday, of a Report
that was there concerning the Earl of ZEffex's
murdering himfelf.

Mr. A, Gen. Had the Mafter of the Houfe
told you any fuch thing ?

Mr. Burgis. No, he had not told me fo; but
I heard it in the Houle,

L. ¢.¥. Of whom did you hear it? 'Who told
you fo?

Mr. Burgis. Sir, I was a Stranger there.

L. C.%¥. They can never tell any of them, who
it was firlt reported it, nor particularly who told
it them; but it was reported by fome body, we
don’t know who.

Mpr. Beech, Under Favour, my Lord, I rode
diretly to the Poftmafter at Frome, whither this
Letter was direted, and by the way, there s
a Remark in the Letter of an Alteration of
the Figure, ’tis interlined the 13th; it was not
{o before, to hit the Day exaltly of the Murder
of the Earl of Effex; and when I came thither,
the Poftmafter to!ld me, There was no fuch Re-
port in his Houfe, nor in the whole Town at that
Time.

L. C.%. Idefire to know, upon your Oath,who
told you that Report?

Mpr. Beech: Sir, I do not know; I was a
Stranger there.

L.C. ¥. Was ita Man or 2 Woman?

M. Burgis. He did not tell his Difcourfe to me.

L. C. 7. But thou could’{t guefs by the Habut,
whether it was a Man or a Woman.

Mpr. Burgis. It wasa Man,

L.C. 7. Whodidhetell it to ?

Mr. Burgis. The Company in the Houfe.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Pray, let him tell how Mr. brad-
don came to {peak to him about it,

L.C.5. Shew him that Letter. Look upon
it, [riend; Is that your Hand ¢

M. Burgis. Yes, 1t1s.

L. C. ¥. When did you put that Figure of 13
in? There was another Figure before, and that
is blotted out.

Mr. Burgis, It was a Miftake in me, I mif-
took the Day, and I corrected 1t.

L.C.¥. When did you correct it? How foon
did you correlt it ?

Mr. Burgis. Prefently.

L. C. ¥. What Day had you put in firft ?

My, Burgis, 'The 6th Day.

L.C. ¥ Ay, but that was not the nght Day,

Man.
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Mpr. Burgis. It was a great while after, and I
did not expect to be brought in queftion for any
fuch thing,.

L.C.7. How long after?

M. Burgis. Six Weeks,

. L.C. ¥. How cameft thou to recolle@, to make
it from the 6th to the 13th, fix Weeks after?

Mr. Burgis, Mr. Braddon was there when I had
writ 1t, ‘ .

L.C. 7. And he correfted it, did he?

Mr. Burgis. He faid, thac that was not the
Day of my Lord’s Death.

L. C. 7. You had written it the 6th, and he put
you 1n mind of the 13th.

Mr, Burgis. Yes,

Mr. Ait. Gen, And he was to be the Meflenger
that carried the Letter himfelf ?

Mr. Burgis. Yes, he was,

Mr. Sol. Gen, That 1s very well. 1 fuppofe,
Gentlemen, you hear what he fays, He fays, Mr.
gmddm was there, and told him that was not the

ay.

L. C. 7. Ay, Mr. Braddon faid, You have mif-
takin the time, that will not do 1t, it mult be the
13th.

Mr. Att. Gen. Pray let me know one thing,
Who recommended Bradden to you ?

Mpr. Burgss. Indeed I can’t tell.

L. C. j. Who did hefay hecame to you from?
Tell the Truth, upon your Oath,

Mr. Burgss. Sir, I was at work at my Bufinefs,
and knew nothing of his Coming,

L.C.. What Trade art thou?

Mr. Burgis. A Pinmaker,

L.C.7. Wheredo you live?

Mr. Burgis. At Marlborough.

L.C. 7. How came Mr. Braddor and you ac-
quatnted ?

Mr. Burgis.  Siry, I will tell you; T was at
work at my Trade, and there came down a
Gentleman that lives in our Town to me, and ask-
ed me——

L C. J. What s that Gentleman’s Name ?

Mr. Burgis. Mr. Butcher,

L. C. 7. What is that Butcher,

Mr. Burgis. A Gentleman that lives in Afarl-
brough, a Grafier by Trade. He came and told

me, There was a Gentleman came from London,
about the Bufinefs ncw in Difpute——ru

L.C.#. Prithee, what was {poke of?

Mr. Burgis. It was concerning the Earl of
Effex’s Death.  And he defired me to fpeak what
I heard at {uch a time,

L.C 7. Who had you told what you heard
firft to? You mult have told it it to fome body ;
who did you tell it to firft ?

Mr. Burgis. Indeed 1 can’t directly fay who I
did tell it to.

L. C. 7. Had you told that Gentleman of your
Town, Butcher, as you call him?

Mr. Burgis. No, not that I know of.

L. C.F. Well, when he came to you, what
then ?

Mr, Burgis. He defired me to go to Mr. Brad-
don to the JVhite-Hart.  And fo I went up to the
White-Hart ; and when 1 came to Mr. Braddon,

I told him what I had heard at Frome,

L.C. 7. And what then?

Mr. Burgis, Then Mr. Braddon asked me the
fame Night, Whether I would go down with
him to Frome, and I could not; fo then he de-

fired
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fired me to write a Letter to recommend him to
the Houfe where 1 had heard 1t,
M. Sol, Gen. And you did write that Letter ?
M. Burgis. Yes, 1did fo. |
Mr. Ait, Gen. Your Lordfhip obferves, this
Houfe was the Pofthoufe, to be fure to have it

fpread In Publick Places.

My, Sol, Gen. Did you tell Butcher of your
Knowledge, before he carried you to Braddon ?

M. Burgis. Yes, Sir, 1did.

My, Sol. Gen, When?

My, Burgis, Then, at that time.

Mr. 8ol Gen. Did he ask you of your Know-
ledge, or did you tell him voluntarily ?

Mr. Burgis, He asked me 1f I remember’d any
fuch thing as I had {poken.

M. Sol. Gen. Why, had you {poke of it before?

Mr. Burgis, Yes, I had.

Mr. 8ol Gen. Did he tell you upon whofe Re-
commendation he came to you?

My, Burgis. 1 do not know upon whofc Recom-
mendation he came.

L.C. 7 When you writ this Letter, did he
dictate it to you, or did you wrice it of yourfelf?

Mr. Burgis. 1 writ it of myfelf.

L. C. ¥. Did he tell you what you {hould write?

M. Buigis. I fhewed him what I had written.

L. C. ¥. And when you writit, of yourfelf you
put in the 6th Day.

Mr. Burgis. Yes, T did fo.

L. C. ¥ What did he fay then?

My, Burgis. Mr, Braddon faid, 1t was the 13th
Day.

z}lfffr. Sol. Gen. Why did you fhew Bradden your
Letter after you had written it ?

Mpr. Burgis. He came to my Houfe before I
had fealed 1.

L. C. ¥. But why did you fhew him the Letter ?

M, Burgis, He defired a Letter to recommend
him to that Man at whofe Houfe I heard it.

M. Sol. Gen. What was he to be recommend-
cd to him for?

M. Burgis. It was to delire him to inquire,
who brought the News firlt to Town.,

My, Sol. Gen. You fay, he defired a Letter of
Recommendation #

My, Burgis. Yes, it was to recominend him to
that Man.

My . Sol. Gein. 'That you may not be in a Mif-
take, pray.recollect yourfelf; for there is not
one Word of Recommendation in the Letter.
Tell the true Reafon, why you fhewed him the
Letter ?

Mr. Burgis. 1 can’t tell any other, but only he
came before I had fealed it.

M. Sol. Gen. Did he defire to fee it ?

M. Buigis. No, but the Letter lay writ upon
the Table,

Mr. Sol. Gen, Was the Mafter of the Poft-
houfe at Frome prefent, when that Report you talk
or was made?

Mir. Burgis, 1 cannot nightly fay, whether he
Was or no.

L.C. 7. Fow comeft thou to put it in thus?
This bears Date a pretty while ago, Marfborough,
Aug. 21. and that was a good diftance of Time
from that Report that thou talkeft of: How
comelt thou then to fay, Thefe are to defire you 1o
call to inind, That I <das at Frome fuch a time, and
veard fuch @ Report: If he was not there, why
thould he ¢4/l o mind 2 What didft thou mean by
that calling 10 mind ?
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- Mr. Burgis. 1 would have had him called to
mind my being at his Houfe at that time,

L. C. 7. But if he was not there, why didf:
thou ask him to call to mind that Report 2

Mr. Burgis. He might hear of it from fome
other at that time, tho’ he might not hear ir in
that Company where I was,

Mr, Sol. Gen, There is a Riddle in 1t, if we
could but folve it. -

L. C. }. No, no, Mr. Sollicitor, the Riddle is
unfolded; ’tis a plain Contrivance.

Mr, Ait, Gen. Pray, from whom did he tell
you he was recommended ?

My, Recorder. How came you to talk fo o 2
Stranger, Sir, whom you never fee before, about
fuch a Bufinefs?

M. Burgis. Fle was recommended to me by Mr.
Butcher, as 1 told you, who carried me to him.

My, Ait, Gen. But who, as Braddon, or Butcher
told you, did recommend him firft to come down
thither to you?

L. C. 7. Upon your Oath, Sir, Who did Brtc-
er tell you he came from?

Mr, Burgis. 1 have forgotten, Sir; I do not
remember.

Mr. Recorder. Was it not a Non-conformift Par-
fon, Sir, upon your Qath?

Mer. Burgis. Sir, I cannot remember,

. Mr. 4. Gen. Mr. Beech, Do you know any
particular Perfon that Bradden faid hie came re-
commended from ?

My, Beech. 1 can tell what Account Braddon gave
of his Journey himfelf: He faid, he had a Letter
that came particularly from this Man to Londen, 1o
bring him down into the 6# : Said I, when came
you out of London? 1 came or:Thurfday, faid he:
Where did you lodge a Zhurfday Night? At
Ockingbam ? Said I, That is not your way to
Marlborongh : Where did you lic the next Night 2
He told me, at one Venables; and the nexe Nighe
at Salisbury, I think.

L. C. 7. Did Braddon tell you he had a Letter
from that Man?

Mr. Beech. He faid a Letter from that Man
brought him down into the 778,

L. C. 7. Burgis, Did you fend him eer a Let-
ter ? -

Mr. Burgis, No, I did not.
Mr. Beech. He faid he came down purpofely

upon this Report.

Mr. dit. Gen. What faid the Poftinafter to
you, Mr. Beech ?

Mr. Beech If you pleafe to give me leave to
{peak, I’ll tell you: Idid defire, that Mr. Braddss
might have no Pen and Ink, and prefently I rid
away to Frome, to this Poftmafter’'s Houfe, and
fpake with the Poftmafter, and all his Family :
We then examined them all, and there was no
fuch Report in that Town *till the Sunday after.

Mr. Sol. Gen. He was perfuaded, fure, all Peo-
ple would fay juft as he would have them.,

Mr. Thompfon. Well, Mr. Braddon, Who do
you call next?

- Mr. Sol. Gen. Nay, I defire this Man may go
on; for methinks he mends every Step he goes.

Mr. Braddon. Mr. Burgis, Do you remember
how it was that you came to recollet yourfelf,
and to know it was the 13th, and not the 6th #

L. C. 7. He fays, you told him,

Mz, Bradden. Pray, Sir, remember yourfelf,
whether you did not fay yourfelf you remeni-

ber’d
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ber’d the true time; for you came from Frome to
Mailherongh on the Saturday Night, and then you
heard there the Earl of Effex had cut his Throat
the Day before; and when they told you fo, you
cried out, How can thacbe? It muft be done be-
fore; for Yefterday I heard it at Frome before Five
of the Clock. ,

My, Fuft. Withins. Did not Mr, Braddsn hims
felf tell you, you had miicaken the Day ¢

M. Bradden. Sir, It was from this, he told
this whole Story that I juft now repeated, that
the Salnrday Night he was told, that the Earl
had cut his Throat, and replied to them, that
he had heard at Frome, the Day before, that he

was murdered, and then 1 faid, that muft be the’

1 3th.

L. C. . How came you to tell that Man, you
had a Letter from Burgis?

M. Braddon. No, my Lord, [ did not tell him
any fuch Thing.

L.C. ¥ Mir. Beech, Did not he tell you he had
a Letter from B gis &

M. Beech, He told me he came down upon
the Information of this Burgis,

L. C.¥. And he fwears he never faw him before,
nor never writ to him.

M. Braddon. You ask me, whether 1 had re-
ceived any Letter from this Burgis. 1 told you, I
had a Letter of Recommendation to Mr, Buzcher,
thinking he had been the Perfon that had re-
ported ity and Mr. Butcher went to this Perfon
and brought him to me, and he told me what he
heard.

A, Beech. I never heard of the Name of
Batcher *till now he mentioned 1t.

A Breddon, -My Lord, I will call no more
Wirnefles, "

M. Ait. Ges. Your Lordihip and the Jury ob-
ferve, 1 fuppole, his confident Behaviour,

L.C. ¥. Ay, He 1s no more concerned at 1t
than 1f he had been doing the molt juftifiable thing
in the World.

Adr, Thempfen. My Lord, I have but one Word
to add on the Behalt of Nr, Speke, who is like-
wife joined 1n this Informacion. Truly, Mr. Speke,
s a young Gentleman of fome Quality, his Father
is of very geod Qulity, Mr. Breddon was of
his Acguaintance, and being his Acquaintance,
and thus concerned, as you have heard m the
Profecution of this Bufinels; he hearing of thele
Reports, and reiviving to go down into the
Country about it, defircd Mr, Spede to lend him
his Man and his Saddle, for he was going into
the Country. Mr, Speke nquires what his Bufi-
nefs was, whereupon he told him it was to inquire
about fome Perfons that had reported {omething
relating to the Earl of Efex’s Death,  And be-
ing to go 1to the Country wiere Mr. Speke,
who was that Country-man, had fome Acquain-
tance, upon this he defires hun to write him 2
Tetters to recommend him to fome Perfons of
Credir.  He did wrice that Letier, but was never
concerned in this Bufinefs, etther before or after
and this is the whole of the Cale, as to this
Mr. Speke.

Mr. Speke. My Lord, 1 deiire I may fpeak
one Word for mylelf. |

L.C. 7. Ay, lay what you will.

Mr. Speke. Wiy Lord, One Day, fome time af-
ter Mr. Bradden had concerned himfelf in this
Thing, I met him cafually and accidentally,
and he was telling me fomewhat of the Matter.

And after this, one Night as I was going to Bed,
between 10 and 11 at Night, fomebody knock-
ed hard at my Door. My Man went to the Door,
and opened the Door, and Mr, Braddon comes in,
and tells me, he deflired the Favour of me, that |
would lend him my Man, and lend him my Sad-
dle. He being my Acquaintance, and I knowing
him, I was willing to do him that Kindnefs ; and
asking him, whither he went? He told me he was
coing down to Marloerough, and he told me he
had heard that my Lord of Effex’s Death was dif-
courfed of there in the Country, that Day it was
done ; beflides other Things of a Boy and of a Girl,
that could prove fuch and fuch Things. Said I, This
is a Thing ot great Concernment, and I would
have you take good Advice in it, before you pro-
ceed, becaule otherwile it may be a Reflexion up-
on the Government; therefore, faid I, 1 would
not have you proceed to concern yourfelf further
in this Thing, but take the Advice and Judg-
ment of fome prudent and difereer Perfon or
other, that you may do noething but what is ac-
cording to Law. I was never at all concerned,
nor knew any thing of the Bufinefs but what I
heard from Mr. Breddon at firlt,  And before he
came into my Chamber, I knew nothing of his
coming; and I writ this Letter, becaufe he fhould
not concern himfelf without the Advice of fome
Perfon that I thought was able to advife him, that
he might do nething that might bring him with-
in the Danger of the Law, or reflect upon the Ge-
vernment,

My, Fufp. Hollszeay. And you advifed him to go
by the Name of Folwufon, not Braddou?

M. Speke, It was late at Night, and T had been
at the Tavern drinking a Bottle of Wine or two
with a Friend, and nught rot {o well confider
what [ did write.

L.C. 7. But, Mr. Speke, You hear what you
writ, /7¢ row againtt Stream, and we thank you
for the Countenance you have given to Us,  And
here 1s a worthy Gentleman, Mr, Bradic:, who
is a very proper Man lor the Delign he has in
hand, and none better than he, and when you are
with him, you may diicourfe freely; and he is a
true Man, and a ftoar Man, and fit to be trufted;
but he muft not go by the Name of Braddon, but
of Fobiufon.

Mr. Speke, My Lord, the Reafon was, becaufe
he was not perfonally known to Sir Redert Athyns;
and for him to go down diretly, and to have ir
reported, one of fuch a Name came to Sir Rober?
Atkyns, who was a Man that had retired himfelf
into the Country from all Publick Concern, 1
thought not fo well.

L. C. 7. Why did you trouble him, if he was
fo retired ?

M. Speke. T had particular Concerns of my
own, that Sir Robert Athyis was piealed to con-
cern himfelf for me, and I knew him a prodent
Man, that would advife htm nothing but accord-
ing to Law.

L. C. 7. You fhould not have difturbed him in’
his Privacies, Mr. Spete,

Mr. Speke. My Lord, 1 never was any other
way concerned, I knew nothing of the matter.

L.C.%F. You had done well if you had not
concerned yourfelf about 1t at all.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Moft bere do fear, you fay, that
be will be either flabbed or kuocked on the Head, and
therefore you lent him your Man to guard hinn,

I {uppole.
Mr. Speke,
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Mr. Speke. He delired me to lend him my
Man, becaufe he did not know the way fo well

himfelf. .
Mr. Sol. Gen, But why was there fuch Fear

about him ?

My. Speke. 1 know nothing at all of the Matter,
but what I had from Mr. Braddon.

L. C. 7. Ay, we live In fuch a flabbing Age,
that fuch an extraordinary Gentleman as Mr.
Braddon, that is fuch an extraordinary good Pro-
teftant, can’t walk the Streets for fear of being

murdered.
Mr. Speke, My Lord, I writ 1t at fuch a time

of the Night, after I had been at the Tavern,
that 1 knew not well what I writ.

Mr. Fuft, Withins, Mr. Speke, You {ee what a
Sort of a Man heis, upon the Evidence that hath
been given.

Mr. Speke, Truly, my Lord, I never knew
any thing, butwhat I had from him.

M. Sol. Gen. But to make the Country believe,
that there were fuch Endeavours here to flifle any
Thing that might give light into the Murder of
the arl of Effex, there mult be great Caution ufed
to conceal his Name.

L. C. ¥. Yes, being fuch a virtuous Man, as
Mr. Braddon, there was great need of all Circum-
{pection and Care to preferve him: Why did not
he get his Life-guard to keep him from the Dan-

er that was thought {o near him?

Myr. 8ol Gen. "They had not raifed them as yet,
bur he was contented at prefent with Mr. Speke’s
Man.

Mr. Speke, My Lord, I am wholly innocent
in all this Matter,

L.C. . Would to God you were Innocent. You
are 2 Man of Quality, Mr. Speke, I know; I
fhould be glad you were innocent with all my
Heart, Buat when Men forget their Studies and
their own Bufinefs, and take upon them the Po-
liticks withourt being called to it, That puts them
into Frenzies, and then they take all Opportunities
of fhewing themfielves Men of Zeal.

Mr.-Ait. Gen. We need but read the Letter
which Mr. §pefe has owned, and you will fay it is
ten times worfe than what Mr. Bradden has done.

L. C.7 Nay, I will not have Mr. Braddon
topped upon for all that, 1 aflure you.

My, Ait, Gen. My Lord, if you read it once
again, you will iind, that he therein owns it all,
and pins the Basket upon himfelf,

L.C.¥. Indeed, Mr, Attorirey, 1 will not have
fuch a Reflection put upon Mr. Braddon, That any
Man thould be a greater Aétor 1n the Bufinefs than
he.

My, Speke. My Lord, I wnit it at Night after
a Bottle of Wine, and other People may be mif-
taken as well as L |

L. C. ¥, If {fome of thefe Gentlemen, that now
and then think themfelves better-headed than o-
thers, and that are {o extraordinarily concerned to
preferve our Religion, but are generally much mif-
taken, were, and I obferve their Miitakes are al-
ways on the wrong Side; J wifh you could have
eone and recollected yourielf next Morning, Mr,
Speke, and then the Miftake had been more par-
donable,

M. Speke. 1 writ nothing as to matter of Fadt,
but what he told me, and I could hardly recolle¢t
1t next Morning, when he was gone away.

Mr. Recorder. My Lord, we fhall prove he has
bragged, that is, Mr, Bradden, That he was the

Zeal.
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only Inventor of the Proteftant Flails, an Inftru-
ment you have heard of, Gentlemen, and for what
Ufe defigned.

L. C..}. But, Brother Fenner, that is nothing
to the Purpofe now, what he was before this Bufi-
nefs, or what hewas after. You are, Gentlemen,
to Try him upon this Inditment only, and are not
to mind any other Thing at all.

Then Mr. Speke’s Letter was read again.

Mr. A, Gen. You fee, Gentlemen, in what
Strain 1t runs, e and e 3 he makes himfelf a
confiderable Party 1n the Defign.

L. C.7. Ay, #e thank you for your Kindnefs
towards Us, and A hope to bring on the T'rial of
the Earl of Effex, before they can any of thofe in
the Tower.

Afr. Speke. He told me, Sir Henry Capell faid it
was a Thing too great for him to meddle with.
And | knew nothing, but what I had from him.

L. C. 7. He was a Man of Integrity, and could
tell you nothing but what was true, Mr. Speke.

Mr. Wallop. My Lord, All I can fay for Mr,
Speke, is this, He did believe Mr, Braddon’sGrounds,
as he told him, were probable to go upon, but he
knew nothing himfelf, and concerned himfelf no
further. I hope the Jury will confider of it, that
there is no Contrivance proved againit him.,

L. C. 7. Nay, Mr. Wallop, though we inter-
rupted you in making Remarks upon every Wit-
nefs, yet now make what Remarks upon what
hath been faid that you will.

Mr. Wallop. Ny Lord, I fhall leave it to your
Lordfhip and the Jury, how far they think the
Defendant guilty of this Information.

My, Ait. Gen, My Lord, We have indeed given
as great an Evidence as ever was given [ think of
any Offence. But to clear up the Matter, that it
was impoffible for any Man, unlefs the moft mali-

cioufly and villainouflyinchned againft the Govern.

ment and Peace of the Kingdom, that can be, -
to imagine fuch a Thing, much lefs {pread fuch
a Report, we will call you two or three Wit
neffes to prove, that the Earl of Effex murdered
himfeif.

L.C. 7. ’Tis neceffary, Mr. Attorney, 1 think,
for you fo to do, to fatisfy the World, though to
a difcerning Eye there is enough given from the
Evidence this Day, to make it appear to be a moft
malictous and {candalous Contrivance, to hawk a-
bout for every idle Rumour, to pick up Children
of fuch tender Years, and make them Swear any
thing to ferve a Turn,

Myr. Ait. Gen. My Lord, we do not call thefe
Witnefles, as if there were any Doubt of it in
the World.

L. C. 7. But we live in an Age, when Truth
paffes for nothing in the World, and Swearing
and Forfwearing 1s taken for a Thing of Courfe.
Had his Zeal been half fo much for Truth as it
was for Falfhood, i1t had been a commendable
But when Men are {o zealous and fierce
for fuch vile Things as thefe are, *tis time of my

‘Word for the Government to interpofe.

My, Ats, Gen. *Tis not to fatisfy the Court nor

the Jury, who I believe are all of them already

fufficiently fatisfied, but ’tis to fatisfy the World,
that may have entertained .fome Prejudices from
this Confpiracy.  Call Mr. Bemeney in,

M;. Sol. Gen. Notas if there were any doubt,

whether Mr, Braddon were the malictous [nventor
of
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of this Report at the beginning, and went down
into the Country to fpread it. The Evidence has
been full, and by his own Management of his De-
fence, he has proved it himfelf, and feems by his
Confidence to juftify it. But we fhall, to give
the World {fome Satisfaction, call fome that wait-
ed upon the Earl in the Tower, and others that
faw him when dead, that will give a Confuration
to any thing that could be fuppoled, as if my Lord

of Effex had not murdered himfelf,

Therr Bomencey was Sworn,

L. C. % Did you wait upon this unfortunate
Gentleman, my Lord of Effex?

M. Boseney. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. 7. Well, what do you knowof his Death?

My. Bomeney. 1 went with him from 7 hiteball,
and [ ftayed with him all the while he was 1a the
Tower.

L. C.%¥. How came he by that unhappy End;
pray ?

Mr. Bomengy. When we were at his Lodging,
my Lord ufed to call for a Pen-knife to cut his
Nails of his Hands and Feet, and he then had long
Natils, and faid he to me, give me your Pen-knife
to cut my Nails; faid I, my Lord, [ have none,
I came in hafte, but I will fend to Morrow for
one; and therefore I fent our Footman, one #/ s/~
fiam Turnery, to whom I gave a little Note for
Provifions, and among other Thingswhich I wnt
Directions to the Steward to fend, there was a
lictle Line 3 Pray fend o Pen-knife for my Lord
He brought fome Provifions, but he did not bring
2 Pen-knife on the Thurfday, becaufe he faid he
had none, but he would fend one the Morrow af-
ter; I fent William Turner, the Morning after
very early, and gave him another hittle Note for
Provifions; and, among other Things, I writ in
the Note, Do not forget the Pen-knife for my Lord.
He went, and when he was in the way, my Lord
fent the Warder to me, to call me, 1 came to my
Lord, and my Lord asked, Is the Footman come?
Has he brought the Pen-knife? No, my Lord,
faid T, but I hope he will not ftay long, becaufe
I fent him early. Then I was turning to come
down from the Chamber, and I faw my Lord
walking in the Room, and picking of his Naus
with the Pen-knife

L. C. 7. How? With a Pen-knife ?

Mr. Bomeney. No, with the Razor that I gave
him. For 1 went to my Lord, and when my
Lord asked me if I had gotten him a Pen-knife,
I faid the Footman was not come, but 1 hoped
it would come mmediately, becaufe I fent him
early. And I was turning from the Chamber,
thinking I had done with my Lord, and my
Lord called me again, Hark you, Bomeney, faid
he, 1 can do it with one of your Razors. My
Yord, faid I, T will fetch one, fo I went into
my Clofet and fetched one. And I went to my
Lord, and when he had 1t, he did as if he picked
his Nails with it, and was walking in the Cham-
ber. 1 looked a litcle while upon him, and turn-
ing out of the Chamber into the Paffage, where
I talked with the Warder, Ru/fe/ his Name was,
and when I looked out of the Window, His Ma-
jefty was in the Tower, and there was 2 great
Buiftle in the Street ; and when I had talked 2
little while with the Warder, I went down into
my Clofet again, and at the fame time that I
was in my Clofet, there came the I'ootman,

and one with them that brought the Provifions,
and he gave me the Pen-knife, and gave me a
little Note, that he had brought with the Provi-
fions, which, he faid, Mr. Bilfingfly, that was
our Steward, bid me to fhew that to my Lord.
I took it, and went up to fhew it to my Lord ;
I found no body in my Lord’s Chamber, there
was a Clofer there, in which was a Clofe-ftool,
and that I found fhut, and thinking my Lord was
there, I would not difturb my Lord, but came
down again, and {tayed a little while, in fo
much as [ thought my Lord by that time might
have been comeout. I went up again, and found
no body in the Chamber, but the Clofet-Door
fhut ftill, I went againft the Door, and knocked
three times, and faid My Lord, my Lord, and
no body anfwered: Then I looked through the
Chink of the Door, between the Door and the
Wall, and I could fee Blood, and a little part
of the Razor, Then T called to the Warder, and
the People of the Houfe, and they came up and
found him there.

Mr. Att. Ges. Had you much ado to open the
Door, or could you open the Door eafily ?

My Boineney. No, the Door could not be opened
eafily, 1 know not how they opened the Door, but
I think Ruffel the Warder, when he came up, pufth-
ed at the Door, but could not open 1t very far,
becaule my Lord’s Foot was againft the Door, and
fo they had much ado to open the Door.

Mir. Att, Gen. Which way does the Door open,
out of the Room, or into the Room?

Nir Bomeney, Inward, into the Room.

L.C. 7 And {o his Feet being againft it, it
could not eafily be opened.

N At Gen. How big 1s the Clofet ?

Mr. Bomeney, A very litile Clofet, I believe no
wider than that; and the length of a Man, and a
Clofe-ftool at the upper end would fill it up.
My Lord lay all along on his Stde.

Mr Att.Gen. Did you obferve your Lord me-
lancholy, Mr. Bomeney?

Mr. Bomeney. Yes, he was melancholy. But
we took no notice of it, for he was ufed to be fo,
and we had no reafon to {ufpet any thing more
than ordnary.

Mr. At Gen. Did you find the Razor ?

Nr. Bowmeney. Yes, it lay by him,

My, Atr. Gen, What became of the Razor ?

Mr. Bomengy. The Coroner’s Jury had it.

L.C.} Was there any Window in that Room,
where the Clofe. ftool was ?

Mr. Bomeney, Yes, there wasa Window.

L. C. 7. Was there a Cafement to that Window ?

Mr. Bomeney. Yes, 1 think there might,

Mr. Jult. Withins. Which way does that Win-
dow look ?

ﬂéfr. Bomeney. I can’t very well remember, my
Lord.

Mz, Fuft, Withins. Which way do you think ?

Mr. Bomeney. 1 believe it is upon a Yard.

L. C.#. He fays he does not well know. But,
Mr. Bomeney, you faw Mr. Ruffe/ the Warder in
the fame Place, as you came vp again, that you
left him in when you went down ?

M. Bomeney, My Lord, I went down but 2
Iitile while.

Mir. Sol. Gen. Where did you find Ruffel the
Warder, when you came up again ?

Nir. Bomeney, Atthe Guard.

Mr. Sel. «en. Did you find him in the fame Po-
fture, when you went up again, that you left him
when you went down ¢ Mr.



168 3. B.R. H. Speke, ,ﬁ??" a Mifdemeahour.

My, Bomeney, Yes.

M. Sol. Gen, Did you hear of any body that
went up elfe?

M. Bomeney, No, my Lord.

My 8ol. Gen. Then we will call Mr. Ruffel the
Warder he fpeaks of. [ W ho was [uworn,

My, Ait. Gen. Pray will you give my Lord an
Account at that Time where you were, and what
was done.

Mr. Ruffel. 1 was in the Chamber, next oppo-
fite againft my Lord’s Chamber, there is but a
little ftep betwixt the Doors, the Stairs come
up betwixt the two Doors, no body could pafs
backwards or forwards, but I muft fee them; for
I was then Waiter at that time, and ftood uvpon
the Guard; and my Lord asked Mr. Bomeney,
Whether the Pen-knite was come; and he told
my Lord, No. Then fays he, lend me your
Razor, that will do it. And my Lord took the
Razor in his Hand, and the Door was open,
and he went two or three Turns 1n the Room,
with the Razor fo. This I faw, the Door being
open, as I ftood in the Paffage. My Lord,
by and by Mr, Bomeney goes down, and my
Lord fhut the Door to him, and Mr. Bomeney
{taid below a little while, and afterwards comes
up again. And my Lord was gone to the Clo-
{er to Stool, as he fuppofed, So away he comes
down again, and ftaid about a quarter of an Hour,
or thereabouts. And this I fee all my felf, my
1.ord

L.C. #. Had any Perfon been there, from the
time Bomeney went down, to the time he came
up again ?

NMr, Rufel. No, my Lord, there was no body
went up or down all the tme, but Bomeney, He
came up, and feeing my Lord was not come out
of his Clofer (this [ did {tand and hear) fo he
puts by the Hangirng, and looks in, and fees my
Lord in his Blood, lyi.g in the Clofet; and he
makes an Oration, 2 great Noife, with that I
ftepped two or three Steps, hearing him make fuch
an Oration, and 1 found the Key was on the out~
fide of tne Door, and I opened the Door, and
faw bim he in his Blood.

L. C. 7. Could you open the Door with eafe ?

Mr. Ruffel. Yes, Icould put it a little way open,
and there faw him,

L. C. . But you could not put it quite open ?

Mr. Raffel. No, for his Legs lay againft the
Door.

L.C. 7. Wasita narrow Clofet?

Mr. Ruffel. Yes, a very narrow Clofet.

L. C. 7. In what Pofture did my. Lord lie?

Mr. Ruflel, He lay all along on one Side.

L. C.} Where lay the Razor?

Mr, Raffel, By him, But I did not take fo
much notice of the Razor, for I was furprized
with the Sight,

Mr Fuft. Holloway, Was there any Window
in the Clofer?

Mr. Ruffel. Yes, that looks into Captain Haw-
ley’s Yard, And the Window is quite Northward.

L.C. 7. Which way does that Window look ?

Mr, Ruffel, Quite the other way, into the Back-
yard,

L.C. 7. Then there is no Way out, nor Light,
nor Cafement out into the Fore-yard ?

Mr Rrffel, No, my Lord, *tis backward, and
tis Paled in, only into the Houfe there is a Door.,

Mr. At Gen, Was there any Door out of the
Street, that way?
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Mr. Ruffel. No, there is one Door that goes
out from the Entry to go into the Yard.

L. C. J. Has any body elfe accefs to come to
the Yard, but what muft come through Hawley's
Houfe?

Mr. Ruffel. No, no body.

. Mr. Sol, Gen, We will call Captain Hawley
him{elf.

L. C. ¥. Warder, Do you remember there was
any Coach that ftood there?

Mr. Ruffel. No, there was no fuch thing.

L. G. 7. Lask you for this reafon, becaufe here
was a Girl that fpake of a Coach, that came
through the Houfe I fuppofe, and fo through the
Entry out of that Door into the Yard.

My, Aut. Gen, Where is Lloyd the Soldier ? For,
my Lord, asthere was 2 Warder above, {0 there
was a Soldier that ftood at the Door below. And
while he ftaid there, there could not any one come
in, nor near, but he muft obferve them.

Mr, Sol. Gen. Pray, my Lord, be pleafed to ask
Mr. Bomeney, how long he lived with my Lord.

L.C. }. How long had you lived with my
Lord of Effex ?

Mr. Bomeney, Six Years.

Mr. Fuft. Withins. You waited on him in his
Chamber, I fuppofe?

Mr. Bomeney. Yes, in the Nature of his Zalet
de Ghambre.

Then Lloyd was fuworn.

Mr, Recorder. Hark you, Lloyd, you were the
Sentinel.  Give an Account where you ftood that
Day that my Lord of Effex murdered himfelf?

Lioyd. At my Lord’s Door.

Mr. Att. Gen. Which Door?

Ligyd. At my Lord of Effex’s Door.

Mr. Att. Gen. Were you above Stairs, or below
at the Street Door ?

Lioyd. Below at the Street Daor,

Mr. Fuff. Withins. Did any body come into
the Houfe that Morning?

Lisyd, No body came n, all the while I ftood
there, that I knew of.

Mr. Fuft. Withins. Were you there at that time,
when my Lord killed himfelf ?

Ligyd. T was there when the Noife was made
of it above Srtairs, H

L. C. 7. Dd you éer {ee a Coach there?

Llsyd. Not to ftand at the Door at all.

L. C. 7. Dudft thou fee e’er a Coach in Captain
Hawley's Back-yard ?

Lioyd. No, no.

L.C.7. Why, could not the Coach go through
the Door and the Entry into the Yard?

Mr. Sol. Gen, Had you feen my Lord of Effex
that Morning ?

Lioyd. Yes, he fpake to me, and asked me
What o’ Cleck 1t was?

M. Sol. Gen, Where was he?

Lloyd. At the Cafement.

M. Sol. Gen. What did he fay to you ?

Lisyd. He faid, Centry, What o’ Clock is it?

Mr, Ait. Gen. Did you fee him when my Lord
Ruffel went by?

Lloyd. Yes, I faw him then.

M. At Gen. How long after was the Cry of
my Lord’s having killed himfelf?

Lloyd. I believe, not half an Hour after,

Mr, Att. Gen. Did any Maid go out of the
Houle

Lloyd., None at all.

5 X L.C. 7
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L. C. ¥. What, not in a white Hood?

Lioyd. No.

L. C. 7 Why didit not thou call to the
Maid to come and take up the Razor, thar was
thrown out of the Window of Captain Hawley's

Houfe?
Llgyd. There was no Razor at all thrown out,

that { faw.

L.C. 7. Did not you open the Pales for her
to oo in, and take up the Razor?

Lloyd, No.

L. <. F. Was there any other Soldier there
befides you?

Lisyd No.

L. <. F. Then you muft be he that cried out,
or no body?

Llyd, 1 fasy no Razor, nor did not cry out
to any body.

Mr. 8of. Gen. Could you open the Pales? Is
there a Door to the Street-fide, ott of the Pales
into the Yarar
Lloyd. *Tis no Yard, but there s a Door that
pafs through that come to the Houfe.

My, Sol. Gen. Whatelle did my Lord of Effex
fay to you?

Llyd, He only examined me, what o’ Clock
it was? That was all.

My Ait. Gen My Lord, We have here two
Woinen, who were the only Women that wers
in the Houfe, they will tell you what they faw,

L.C. }. Pray, Gentlemen, do not mifpend
your ‘Time unncceflznly, becaufe I am to {it this
Afternoon at Luadon.

Mr. At Gen. My Lord, We will then oniy call
Capuin Hawley. (777 6o wwas Sworn.

Mi. Sol, Gen. Pray, Captain, tell what you
know of this Matter?

Capt. Hawley. My Lord, All the Account I
can give, 1s, T hat about four or five o’ Clack in
the Morning, I went to open the Gates, that be-
ing the ufual Hour to open the Gates, And I was
at the Gawe then when a Warder came, and toid
me, my Lord of </fes had kilied himdelf, and
that was between nine and ten ot the Ciocx, When
I came tnto the Houfe, 1T went up Staws, and
faw no body in the Room, nor no Blood; faid I,
to the Warder, What do you makca Fool of me?
Here is nothing : Says one of the Warders, look
into the «.Jofets 1 went to the Clolet, and could
not open the Door above this widenefs, and I
looked 1, and faw the Razor all in Blood, and
my Lord lay on his Arm i this -afhion T could
not tell, whether he was dead or no, but { thought
it was not my Buliaefs to ftir him. Then my
Lord Conflable was ordered to come and Sccure,
and Examimne all the Servants,

L.C.F. Pray, Capwin Hawley, where does
the Calement look into?

Capt. Huzley, The Houle, ever fince T came
to it, is juft as it was; and the Houfe having
fercled, the Cafement won’t open above thus far:
And ’tis fo low, and the tales are nine or ten
Foot high, that ’tis impofiible for any one to
throw any thing out of the Window three Foot
hardly. Itis one of the horridelt Reports that
ever was heard of, and the unlikeliet Thing,
they cannot chrow any thing out of the Window
to be {cen.

My, Ait. Gen. My Lord, I think it 1s not ne-
ceflary o call any more Witnedles,

L. C. ¥. Have they any thing to fay further,
on the other Side?
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Mr. Speke. 1 defire, my Lord, to call my Man,

L. €. F. Call your Man, for what Purpofe?

Mr. Speke. My Lord, If your Lordfhip plea-
fes, I will call my Man to prove, that 1 knew
nothing of Mr. Braddon’s coming to me,

Their Mr. Speke’s Man was fworn.

L. C..7. Ask him what you will?

Mr. Speke. Did you ever fee Mr. Braddon with
me ?

Servant. Never but once, before that time he
came to my Mafter’s Chamber, which was the
Night before he went out of Town; and when
he came, after he had been there a lictle while,
my Mafter ordered me to get me ready to go into
the Country with him. And after I had been
with him-a little time, he got another to 20 with
him, and fent me Home again.

Mr. Speke. | was going to Bed, Was I not?

Scrvait, Yesy, you was,

L.C. ¥. Have you done of both Sides?

Mr. Speke. Was it not a Surprize to me, when
he came to me?

L. C. }. How does he know that?

Mr. Speke. | otell you, why, my Lord, T ask
it; Becaufe wien I go our of Town, I always
tell him to prepare himfelf.

Servart. It was a Surprize to me 3 I knew no-
thing of it,

L. C. ¥ Well, have you done now? Have
you a mind to fay any thing to the Jury you thas

are of Counfel for the Defendants;” or you,
Mr. Braddon ?

Mr. Braddo. No, I will fay nothing,
o

L.C. ¥ Have you, Mr. Speke?
r Mr, Spefe, My Lordy I have proved it here,
[hat 1 had no Hand in what I am accufed of,
it 15 put down in the Information, that | con{pi-
red, with Mr. Braddes, to endeavour to procure
falfe Witnefles. 1 have proved, I never had
any Hand at all n any Thing of it. It wasan
accidental Thing, his coming to me; and it was
a great Surprize to me, when he came; and [ ne-
ver concerned my felf in it more, than the Wri-
ting of that Letter: And I had no ill Intent in
it 5 bdid 1t not dehignedly, forT knew nothing of
his conung s and [ had not writ the Letter if ho
had not come to me. And ’us plin, it was 2
Surprize, for I always give my Man norice,
when I go out of Town, bifore-hand to i -
pare himiclf. I thought nothing at zll of il] in
the Lietrer: I wrir it late at Night, when I had
been with fome Company at the {avern.  And
he mace me believe thar to be trae, which wag
not; I hope the Gentlemen of the Jury wiil
confider that. I have nothingto fay of the T hing,
I did not concern my felf in it any further ar ali,
than writtng the Letter, which T did not well
know what I writ,

L. F. Well, have you-any more to fav,
Mr, Speke? "

Mr, Speke. No, my Lord.

L. C. }. Have you any more, Mr, Dreid i ?

Mr. Braddon. My Lord, i have only this o
fay {or my felf. It has not been pr‘m*c‘i Gl-
rectly, or indiretly, That 1 ufed any evil Ar-
guments, to perfuade thefe Witnelies to teflity
what was falfe; but I dealt with them with all
the Candor, that any Perfen in the World could
ufes and wled all the Caution that I could, to
hinder them from {peaking any thing thar is
falfe.  There has been nothing proved of evil

Pratice




1682.B. R,

Pradtice ufed by me; and I defire the Gentle-
men of the Jury to take no other notice of any
Thing that has been, or fhall be fpoken, but
what has been proved.

L. C. ¥. Gentlemen of the Jury, The Evi-
dence has Leen very long, that has been given
both for and againft the Perfons, again{t whom
this Information 1s exhibied. *Tis an Infor-
mation cxhibited by the King’s Atrorney-Gene-
ral, in Flis Majelty’s Name againit Lewreuce
Biradden and Huzh Speke,  And the Informution
docs fet forth, That the late Earl of Efex mur-
dered himfclf in the Tower, and that thereupon
there was an Inguifition taken before the Coro-
ner, that did find that he had fo murdered him-
felf, he being before that Time commucted for
High-Treafen, 1 Confpiring the Death of the
King, and levying War to dilturb the Govern-
ment.  And thele Perfons did render that Inqui-
fition, as tho’ it had been fraudulently and irre-
gularly obtained ; and alio to breed 1ii Blood, and
ipread falfe Rumours among the King’s Subjedts,
Dy endeavouring to perfuade them to believe,
That the Earl of Zffex was murdered by fome
other [Hand, and had not murdered himfelf, and
had procured falfe Witnefles to teftify fome fuch
Matter, in order to the fpreading about that
falfe Rumour. This 15 the Subftance of the In-
formation, To this Information they have both
pleaded, Not Guilty; and the Evidence, as I
wis telling you, has been fomewhat long ; but
according to the beft of my Memory, and for
the Affitance of yours, I will mind you of as
many Things, as occur to me, that have been
faid againft them, and what has been faid on
their Behaif, 1 mean fo much of it as is Fvi-
dence. For I muit tell you, all Hear-fays, and
comumon Difcourfes of other Perfons are not Evi-
dence, and 1 will give you that Reafon, that is
fufficient to fatsty any Man that is unbiafs’d,
That if 1n cafe the Perfon that fo told the Sto-
ry had been here, if he had not told it upon
Qath, you could not have believed that Perfon :
Therefore, iurely there is lefls Credit to be given
to him, that tells a Tale out of another body’s
Mouth, And I tell you this, becaufe there have
been grear Allowances given, and ought to be
when People are accuted of fuch grear and
weighty Crimes 3 for theie are monfirous Crimes
that thefe Gentlemen are accufed of 3 bur *us
you thatarc to try, whether they are Guilty
or not: Certainly there is fcarce in Nawre o
areater Crime that can ba commiteed, than this
that s now before you; for I think KRobbery
or any other fuch Felonies, are not fich mon-
{trous Crimes 1n their true real Weight, thongh
1 confideration of Law, in refpect of Punifh-
ment they are greater 3 yet in Point of Crime,
they are furely lefs, for to fpread faife Reports,
i order to rafe Sedition, Jl-will, Heart-burn-
mgs, and Jealoufies n the King’s Subjedls againtt
the Gevernment, and to {fuborn Witnefies to
that evil Purpofe, is furely a much greater
Crime than robbing on the High-way, Now,
Gentlemen, *tis not unknewn to moft of you,
what Lndeavours have been of late made, to
policis the Minds of the King’s Subjects, of
great Injuries defigned to be done them by the
King, or His Authority : And in order to foment
Difterences and Mifapprehenfions between the
King and his People, and among the People
between one and another, all Arts have been
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ufed, to profcribe People that they are minded
to expofe. Thofe, they bear 1fl-will to, mufl be
called Papifts, or Papifis in Mafquerade; bue
They and their Confederates are the Sober Par-
ty, the .true Proteltants, as if there were none
Sober or true Protelftants but fuch as are Fadti-
ous and Troublefome in the Government. But
by thefe Things they bring an Odium upon the
Name of a Proweftant, their Aim is by diftin-
suifning to divide us; whereas 1f they were
Proteftants in Truth, the Church of Eugland Pro-
teftants, they would have another Behaviour,
they would learn to obey, and fubmit to Autho-
rity, and not go buzzing from Houte to Houlft,
and ipreading talfe Reports, but fludy 10 be guiet,
aid do their owin Buftnefs. And though Mr. Biad-
aon made ufe of the 5th Chap. of the A5, to the
Child, he would have done well to have taken
notice of fome other Parts of Scripture, that are
as much Scripiure as that, That injoin Obedi-
ence and Submiffion to the Magiltrate; and,
being quiet and minding his own Bufinefs, it’s
odds, he had never come to that Trouble, he
15 now likely to meet with. But the Crime he
15 accufed of, carries all the Venom and Bafe-
nels, the greatell Inveteracy againft the Go-
vernment that ever any Cale did, that I have
met with.  For it’s infinuated, That becaufe the
King and the Duke were walking in the Towwer,
that Day, and near that Time, when this un-
fortunate Thing happened, now it muft be
whifpered, as though the King ard the Duke
had defigned this Murder, How Bafe? How
Devilith and Hellith a Defign 1s this? Bue yer,
this muft be {pread about, and endeavoured to
be diftilled into the Minds of the King’s Sub-
jefts.  DBut befides, Gentlemen, you are to con--
fider, as was opened by the King’s Counfel, to
what this Thing tended ; for in as much as
there was an horrid bloody Confpiracy, to take
away the Life of the King, and ol his dear
Brother, Idis Royal Highnels the Dake of 2%,
And forafmuch as feveral Perfons have been du-
ly executed for that Conipiracy, who were con-
cerned along with this unfortunate Lord 5, (L
cannot help tie naming of 1t, though I am
forry for his Nistortune, for the Sake of thas
Honourable Family) but rather than he would
abide his Trial, Ged knows what other Reajon
he had, but the probability of the Thing {peals
it, e being conicious, the great Guilt he had
contracied, in bemng concerned in fuch a Con-
{piracy, made him defiroy himlelf.  And ’us
cafy to imagine, how far that might prevail up-
on him, 1t being done immediately after my
Lord Raflel, who was onc of the Conlpirators
with him, was carried to his Tral. It cannot
be thought, but it was to prevent the Methods
of Juftice in his own partcular Cafe.  And,
Gentlemen, there was Digitus Dei in ity and it 1s
enough to fatisfy all the World of the Conipi-
racy 3 though we live in an Age, wherein Men
are apt to believe cnly on one Sidey they can
believe the areateft Lye, 1f 1¢ makes for the Ad-
vaniage ol their Party, but not the greatcdt
Truth, it 1t thwarts their Inieret,

But becaufe Mr, dioraey has produced  his
Proofs, to manifeit, thac this Lord murder. !
himfell, I will take notice a littde of 1t, buraie
it may have fome good edelt to undeceive {ome
thue have been impofed upon,  Not for my
own Satlsfaction, I thank God T am farified,

5 X 2 and
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and fo I believe are moft honelt Men: But that
filly People may-not be impofed upon by every
buly Fellow for the future, that takes the liberty
to run about and fpread falfe News, and that Men
may be aware of fuch Fellows, and may not be
decoyed any more by fuch falfe Pretences; it
was therefore fit that Evidence fhould be given
of the Truth of the Fa&, that that Gentleman
did murder himfelf. And the Evidence is this,

Befides the Inquifition, which was taken upon
the Qaths of feveral Perfons of Quality, (as
you hear upen the reading ther Names, feve-
ral of them were Efquires, and Men of Note)
’tis here alfo proved by the Tefumony of his
Servant that attended him, how he came to
this untimely £nd. And, Gentlemen, 1 would
obferve, ’tis Sworn by his Servants, one that had
lived fix Years with him, not an upftart, or a
wandring Fellow, but one whofe Integrity and
Fidelity to my Lord, was confirmed by fix
Years Experience of his Service. Then here
is the Warder that was at the Door, here’s the
Soldier, here’s the Mafter of the Houfe, who
are all the Perfons that probably can gtve any
Account of the Matter, and they tell you poli-
tively that no one did go up and down, but this
Frenchman, who was his Palet de Chanmidie. And
the Warder tells you, That he coming to the
Door, and knocking at the Door, and hearing
no one anfwer, did endeavour to open the Door,
but it was fo faft by my Lord’s Feet, that he
could open it but a httle, and looking in, dif-
cerned Blood, and that made him make Accla-
mations, as the Warder calls 1t, Orattons, which
brought all the People in the Houfe thither,
and they gave the fame Account that he does.

And *as likewife fit to be taken notice of, that
the Window of this Clofet looks into a private
Yard, where no Strangers ufually come, and
where no Coach could come 3 and that the Pales
were fo high, that i cafe a Man were defirous
to throw any thing out, it were impollible to
caft it above threc Foot.  And 1if there could no
Coach at all come 1nto the Yard, as 1t 1s plam
there could not, (for there 1s no Door, fave on-
Iy a back Houle-deor) then this muft needs be
a Lye, that was {pread abroad. And ’us beyond
ali peradventure true that my Lord of Zffew did
murder himfelf.

Now to have fo great a Truth as this to be
perverted, and to reproach the Government with
Falfities, is the moft malicious Thing in the World.
1f in cafe the Law has made it Penal for any Man
to {fcandalize any one private Perfon as it has;
and if it be by Law, much more Penal to {can-
dalize a Nobleiman : How much more ought it to
be, when the King and the whole Government
3s thus fcandalized ?

Now to comie to the Falt, as ncar as I can re-
colle&, 1 will give you an Account of what Evi-
dence has been given of the one Side, and of the
other. But this I thought fit to premife, becaufe
there will fome Circumfitances fall out fic to be
taken notice of in the Evidence, efpecially about
the Window in Captain Hewwlsy’s Yard and Houfe,
which may be cleared this Way,

In the firfy Part of the Evidence for the King,
they call 2 Witnefs to prove the Earl of A/’
Commitment, which 1s Part of the Inducement

in the Information. '
But for the Information it felf, there is this

Evidence. Firft, Evans, he comes and tells you,
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how that he had heard at the Cuffors-Honfe from
Edwards, the Father of this Boy, as tho’ there
had been a Report came to him from Home,
at Ten o’Clock that Morning my Lord Effex
cut his Throat, of a Razor thrown out of my
Lord of Effex’s Window ; That he came to him
in the Afternoon again, and in the Afternoon
told him he had examined the Matier further,
and his Boy confirmed the Truth of ir, He
fays, That after this, Mr. Bradden and another
Man, one Mr. Hatfell, 1f I am not miftaken in
his Name, camec to the Place where he was in
Lffex, and there they had fome Difcourfe about
my Lord of Effex’s Death, and there Hasfel] ook
out of his Pocket a printed Copy of the Inqui-
fition; and Mr. Braddon was then in the Room,
but he fays he thinks Mr, Braddon at that time
tcok no manner of notice of it, but walked a-
bout the Room, but he fays, the Inguifition
was read while he was iIn the Room, and
Lvans fad fomething about the Report he had
heard, which did feem to contradié that In-
quifition.  But fome time after, he fays, That
he being at the Cofiee-houfe, Braddoir and £d-
wards came to him into the Coffee-houfe, and
there they began to talk; Fdwards faid, That
Braddsn had been with his Child to examine
him, to bear Teltimony about flinging the Razor
out at Window. He was very full of the Word
[ Matter] and toffed that to and fro, but at length
the Subftance of his Matter was, that Report
of the Boy’s, and he advifed them to forbear
talking any farther to him about the Matter,
for it might do Edwards and Bradden both an In-
jury 3 and he had read the Inquifition which was
quite contrary. That was all he could fay.

Then comes Ldwards, and the Subftance of
what he fays, 1s this, That he firft heard 1c
from his Family, and afterwards the Boy con-
firmed the Truth of it; but then afterwards he
heard he had denied 1t, which was after Brad-
don had been there to inquire about 1t. And
then he fays, Braddon came to him again, and
then the had got a Note di¢tated by himfeli’ and
not by the Boy, but at firft he tendered it to
the Boy, and the Boy refuled to pur his Hand
to it ; and Mr, Biaddon came again another time,
(though he was told the Boy had denied it as
he heard) and then the Boy did fer his and.
This 1s the Subftance of what Edwards fays. He
does fay indeed, the Boy ufed to tell Lies very
often, to make excufes when he played T'ruant,
and that his Family told him, tic Boy was often
ouilty of telling of Lies.

Then the next Evidence is the Evidence
of the Boy himfelf. He it {feems is thirteen
Years of Age: Certainly any Man that had
been of an wprignht Mind and Conicience, as
Mr, Bradden pretends to be, and would have
you, Gentlemen, think them fo; would have it
thought that he was full of Honefty and Inte-
arity to the Boy, when he baited his Hook with
a Text of Scripture, about the Danger of telling
a Lye, and, Have a care, Child, of telliys a Ly
if he had done no more but given him this
Advice, 1t had been worthy of Commendation :
Bur when the Boy had refufed to fign it, for
him to go and make fuch a flir, withour exa-
mining furtner into the Particulars, but onlv
taking a {light Report from fuch a Child, and
to make fuch a Ditturbance in the Nation, and
fuch a Noife, not only here, but Abroad, as
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vhis -has done, fure argues neither Uprightnefs
nor Confcience. Had the Boy flood 1n it and
perfevered in it, it had become him, in regard
of the Tendernefs of the Boy’s Age, to have
been more inquifitive into Circumitances, before
he gave fuch Credit to what he faid, as to
make all this ado.

But what fays the Boy when he comes here,
he is now upon his Oath, and he tells you, He
did tell his Mother fo at firft, and he did tell
Mr. Bradden fo at firft ; but afierwards when his
Sifter {pake to him, and bid him be fure to tell
nothing but what was Trath, then he faid truly,
it was not Truth, He tells you, Mr. Braddox
offered him the Paper to fign, but he would not
fign it ; and being asked the Queftion, Why he
would not fign it? He fays, becaufe 1t was not
true s and being asked, Whether Braddsn had
notice of this? The Mother and Sifters, all tell
you, He had notice the Boy had denied it.

How came Mr. Breddon, what Aothority had
he to take this Examination 2 He is no Juftice
of Peace, no Magiftrate that had any Authority
to take Examinations. What Concern had he
in it more than other People? The Boy could
tell him there -were abundance of People there
befides himfelf, tho’ it was a Lye he told then,
and that the Girl told now. Why did not he
ftay to have it confirmed by {fome of thofe Peo-
ple? Why did not he carry thefe Children be-
tore fome Magiftrate or Juftice of Peace, fome
body that had Authority to take Examinations ?
There was a Spirit that prevailed with Mr,
Braddon to engage and make a ftir in this Bu-
finefs, and you may cafily guefs what a kind of
Spirit it was which gave him this Authority that
he had not before.

Gentlemen, another thing is this, "Tis plin,
and the Boy now {wears 1t directly, That where-
as he put it mto his Information, How that he
told him he was going to fee my Lord Brendon
Gerard’s Lodgings, but now he is upon his QOath,
he fwears directly he never told hun any fuch
thing, and yet he hath put it into the Paper ke
made him fign.

He tells you a fecond time, Mr. Biaddon came
to him, which was after the Boy had refufed
and declared himfelf unwilling, and that then he
was perluaded by Mr. Braddon, who told him
there was no Harm 1t ; if there be any Farm,
it would be to him, and rot to the Boy, and
{o by Virtue of that, he infinuated himfelf, and
oot the Child to fign that Paper, which is every
Tittle of it falfe; as the Boy now fivears di-
reftly. And he tells you, how he was mmpoled
upon by Mr. Breddsir, pretending there was no
Harm to him, all the Harm would come to
him{clf, and by reafon of thefe Infinuutions he
was prevail’d upon to put his Name to that
which was notorioufly falfe,

The next Witnefs (to make 1t appear that
it was notorioufly falle, not only by the Boy
himfelf, but by other Circumftances) 1s fHaw-
kins the Miniiter’s Son, Dr. FHawékins’s Son of
the Towwer. And hie tells you, I play’d Truant
as well as he that Day, and I faw the King
and the Duke at the Tower, and when ] had
feen them I went about as they did, and after-
wards I went home, and therc came a Reporr,
that my Lord of Efex had cut his Throat, which
made me go back again to the 7ower, and
there was 1 a conliderable time gaping among
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other People, and there did I fee this Boy Ed-
wards; when he came there, I was there, I
was there all the time thit he was there, and
we went out of the Jower together, and there
Was no fuch thing, nor any pretence or ground
for fuch a Story. And Edwards himfelf being
asked the Queftion, upon his Oath, doth like-
wife fay, Hawflins was with him all the timé
there. So that that fhews not only by what the
Boy fays, that it was falfe, but it isalfo proved
falfe by the Teltimony of this other Witnef3
Hawhkiss,

‘Then next comes Mr. Blathwaite, who was
prefent when Mr. Braddon was before the King,
and what does he fay? He fays, there was the
Boy fetched, and the Girl fetched, and all Per-
fons examined there, and then *tis told him, all
the Boy had faid to bim was falfe, and it was
told him with all its Circumf{tances. So that No-
tice fufficient, if you will believe Mr. Blathwaite,
was given to this Mr., Braaden, That the Boy had
denied 1t then, as he had before to his Sifter:
So he knew 1t was falfe,

But what does Mr. Braddon do now? He is
fo far from being fatisfied in the matter, that
inftead of ftopping there, his Zecal tranfported
bim to purfue it furcher: And fo he tells you,
that Mr. Braddon confefled he would have got
fome Juftice of Peace to have the Boy examined ;
and he applied himelf to Sir Robert Clayton, and
Sir Jobu Lewrence. There were many Juftices
of the Peace befides them, in Londoiz, to whom
he might have applied himfelf, Bur when he
comes to Sir Robert Claytonr, and acquaints him
with the matter, he would not do it alone; it
was thought a matter of that Importance. Then
fays Mr. Braddsn you {fhan’t do it ar all. He muft
have-the -Kindnefs of having it done in private;
to have it examined when any body was by,
was not fo well for his purpofe; which" fhews
you ftill, Gentlemen, his Defign was to contrive
privately, to efie¢t that which the Lizht fhould
not eafily difcover.

Then the next thing is the Evidence of Mr.
Monflcvens, and he gives you an Account, Thac
he came to him, and he read the Information,
and gave him a Caution, that he wondered at
him: Says he, Why do you concern your felf
about this Bufticls, there is Siv Hemiy Capell] he
does not concern himfelf? Then he precended
to come 1n his Name, but at length, whei Mr.
Monftevens began to difpute 1t with L, why
Sir Henry did not appear himiclf in 1t 5 then truly
Sir Heary Capell was very 1ll; and could not pols
fibly come himfelf, bar I am to go to him, and
oive him Satisfaction about what I do, and
fo alfo to the Countefs of Effex, No, fays Mr.
Monftevens, that cannot be, for Sir Heary Cepell
is not fo ill bur that he has been with my Lord
Sunderloid, and with the King too, fince the
Death of my Lord of Effex.  To which he mzde
him no Anfwer, So that that was but an Ex-
cufe and a Subteriuge ; but yer natwirhﬂnnding
al] this Caution, he continues on his Zeal in™ the
thing : Whereupon Mr. Monfievens brought him
to my Lord Swndeilond, and .whut Difcourfe hus
paft between them, he has given you an account
of,

The next Ewvidence 15 Sir Hewiy Capell, who
tells you, Thar Braddsiz comes officioully and
tells him, he had fome Difcovery 1o make
about the Death of the Earl of Efex and you

Hear




